
 

 

Ryedale District Council, Ryedale House, Malton, North Yorkshire, YO17 7HH 
Tel: 01653 600666  Fax: 01653 696801 
www.ryedale.gov.uk  working with you to make a difference 
 
 

 

1 Emergency Evacuation Procedure.    

 The Chairman to inform Members of the Public of the emergency evacuation 
procedure. 
 

2 Apologies for absence   
 

 

3 Declarations of Interest    

 Members to indicate whether they will be declaring any interests under the 
Code of Conduct. 
 
Members making a declaration of interest at a meeting of a Committee or 
Council are required to disclose the existence and nature of that interest.  
This requirement is not discharged by merely declaring a personal interest 
without further explanation.  
 

4 Annual Statement of Accounts and Annual Governance Statement  (Pages 1 - 
128) 

 

 

 

 

 
Please Contact 

 
Audrey Adnitt 

 
Extension 

 
203 

 
Date of Publication 

 
17 September 2012 

 
E Mail 

 
audrey.adnitt@ryedale.gov.uk 

 

 
 
OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 
 
Tuesday 25 September 2012 at 6.30 pm 
  
Council Chamber, Ryedale House, Malton 
 
 

     Agenda 
 

Public Document Pack



This page is intentionally left blank



 

  

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Statement of Accounts 

2011 / 2012 

 

 

 

 

 

R yedale D istrict Council 

working with you to m ake a difference 
 

 

Agenda Item 4

Page 1



 
1

 

 

 

STATEM EN T OF ACCOU N TS 

 

for the 

 

YEAR EN DED 31 M ARCH  2012 
 

 

 

T A B L E   O  F   C O  N  T E N  T S 

 

 

 Page N os 

 

Explanatory Forew ord 

 

2 - 7 

Statem ent of Accounts: 

 

 

Statem ent of Responsibilities 

 

8 

Core Financial Statem ents 

 

 

M ovem ent in Reserves Statem ent 

 

9 

Com prehensive Incom e and Expenditure Statem ent 

 

10 

Balance Sheet 

 

11 

Cash Flow Statem ent 

 

12 

N otes (including a sum m ary of significant accounting policies 

and other explanatory inform ation) 

 

13 - 66 

Collection Fund Statem ent and N otes 

 

67 - 69 

Supplem entary Statem ent:  

Annual Governance Statem ent  70 - 75 

Annual Governance Statem ent Appendix 76 - 77 

  

Independent Auditor’s R eport to R yedale D istrict Council  

(subject to external audit) 

78 - 80 

  

Supplem entary Inform ation to the Statem ents:  

  

Analysis of Incom e and Expenditure on the individual services 

of the Cost Of Services 

81 - 82 

  

Glossary of Term s 83 - 89  

  

Page 2



E X P L A N A TO R Y  F O R E W O R D  
 

 
2

1. Introduction 

 

This forew ord provides a brief explanation of the financial aspects of the Authority’s 

activities and draws attention to the m ain characteristics of the Authority’s 

financial position.  

 

2. C ouncil’s Accounts 

 

The Council’s accounts for the year ended 31 M arch 2012 are set out on pages 8 to 

69. They have been com piled using the Code of Practice on Local Authority 

Accounting in the U K 2011/12 (the Code). A sum m ary of the statem ents in the 

accounts and an explanation of their purpose is show n below : 

 

• the Statem ent of R esponsibilities for the Accounts - w hich sets out the 

Authority’s and Chief Finance Officer’s legal and professional responsibilities for 

the accounts. 

 

• the M ovem ent in R eserves Statem ent – this statem ent shows the m ovem ent 

in the year on the different reserves held by the Authority analysed into ‘usable 

reserves’ (i.e. those that can be applied to fund expenditure or reduce local 

taxation) and other reserves. The Surplus or (D eficit) on the Provision of 

Services line shows the true econom ic cost of providing the authority’s services 

m ore details of w hich are show n in the Com prehensive Incom e and Expenditure 

Statem ent. The net Increase / Decrease before Transfers to Earm arked Reserves 

line shows the statutory G eneral Fund Balance before any discretionary 

transfers to or from  earm arked reserves undertaken by the council.  

 

• the Com prehensive Incom e and Expenditure Statem ent - this statem ent 

shows the accounting cost in the year of providing services in accordance w ith 

generally accepted accounting practices, rather than the am ount to be funded 

from  taxation. Authorities raise taxation to cover expenditure in accordance 

w ith regulations; this m ay be different from  the accounting cost. The taxation 

position is show n in the M ovem ent in Reserves Statem ent. 

 

• the Balance Sheet – the Balance Sheet show s the value as at the Balance 

Sheet date of the assets and liabilities recognised by the Authority. The net 

assets  (assets less liabilities) are m atched by the reserves held by the Authority. 

Reserves are reported in tw o categories. The first category of reserves are 

useable reserves, i.e. those that the Authority m ay use to provide services 

subject to the need to m aintain a prudent level of reserves and any statutory 

lim itations on their use (for exam ple the Capital Receipts Reserve that m ay only 

be used to fund capital expenditure or repay debt). The second category of 

reserves is those that the Authority is not able to use to provide services. This 

category of reserves includes reserves that hold unrealised gains and losses (for 

exam ple the Revaluation Reserve) w here am ounts w ould only becom e available 

to provide services if the assets are sold; and reserves that hold tim ing 

differences show n in the M ovem ent in Reserves Statem ent line ‘Adjustm ents 

betw een accounting basis and funding basis under regulations’. 

 

• the Cash Flow  Statem ent - w hich show s the changes in cash and cash 

equivalents of the Authority during the reporting period. The statem ent shows 

how  the Authority generates and uses cash and cash equivalents by classifying 

Page 3



E X P L A N A TO R Y  F O R E W O R D  
 

 
3

cash flow s as operating, investing and financing activities. The am ount of net 

cash flows arising from  operating activities is a key indicator of the extent to 

w hich the operations of the Authority are funded by w ay of taxation and grant 

incom e or from  the recipients of services provided by the authority. Investing 

activities represent the extent to w hich cash outflow s have been m ade for 

resources w hich are intended to contribute to the authority’s future service 

delivery. Cash flows arising from  financing activities are useful in predicting 

claim s on future cash flows by providers of capital (i.e. borrow ing) to the 

authority.  

 

• the Collection Fund Statem ent  – is an agent’s statem ent that reflects the 

statutory obligation for billing authorities to m aintain a separate Collection 

Fund. The statem ent show s the transactions of the billing authority in relation 

to the collection from  taxpayers and distribution to local authorities and the 

G overnm ent of council tax and non-dom estic rates. 

 

Supplem entary Statem ent: 

 

• the Annual G overnance Statem ent – w hich sets out the internal control 

fram ew ork operated by the Authority and explains how  an effective system  of 

internal financial control is m aintained. 

 

3. G eneral Fund R evenue Expenditure in 2011/12 

 

The net cost of the Authority’s revenue activities w as £9.878m , this being spent on 

services as sum m arised in the chart below : 

 

P l an nin g

Econom ic  

Deve lo pm ent

Le i sur e  & Tour ism

Housi ng (in c l Hous ing  

Ben e fit)

E nvi ro nm ent al Heal th

Wast e  Coll e ct ion

Lo cal Tax  Col le c tio n

Oth er Se rv ic e s

WHERE THE MONEY IS  SPENT!

14%

27%

8%

15%

12%

5%

2%

17%

 

A m ore detailed analysis of the N et Cost of Services is show n on Pages 81 and 82 of 

this docum ent.  

 

Page 4



E X P L A N A TO R Y  F O R E W O R D  
 

 
4

 

 

After adjusting for the paym ent of parish precepts of £0.640m , the receipt of 

investm ent incom e (£0.137m ) and the net credit from  appropriations (£1.960m ) the 

am ount m et from  Taxation and N on-Specific G rant Incom e w as £8.421m , w hich is 

funded as follow s: 

 

Coun cil Taxpayers

Gen era l 
Governm en t Grants

Non -Domest ic Ra te  
In come

WHERE THE MONEY COMES FROM!

33% 52%

15%

 

The above chart shows that of the funding to m eet the Authority’s net revenue 

expenditure, around 52%  (£4.426m ) w as provided by the Council Taxpayers, an 

additional 33%  (£2.749m ) from  the G overnm ent’s N on-D om estic Rate Redistribution 

Pool and som e 15%  (£1.246m ) from  non-ringfenced general governm ent grants such 

as the Rate Support G rant. 

 

 

Page 5



E X P L A N A TO R Y  F O R E W O R D  
 

 
5

4. R evenue B udget C om pared to Actual Incom e and Expenditure 
 

The m ain com ponents of the revenue budget for 2011/12 and how  these com pared 

w ith the actual expenditure are set out below: 
 

 

 

Original 

Budget 

£’000 

 

Actual 

£’000 

 

Difference 

£’000 

N et Cost of Services 11,057 9,878 (1,179) 

    

O ther O perating Expenditure:    

Precepts paid to Parish Councils 640 640 - 

Capital Receipts unattached to non current assets  - (30) (30) 

 640 610 (30) 

Financing and Investm ent Incom e &  Expenditure    

Interest Payable 10 43 33 

Pensions interest cost & expected return on pension assets 1,100 725 (375) 

Incom e from  Investm ents (130) (137) (7) 

Incom e and expenditure in relation to investm ent properties (77) 11 88 

 903 642 (261) 

Taxation &  N on Specific G rant Incom e    

Council Precept (4,355) (4,355) - 

Collection Fund Surplus (52) (71) (19) 

N on-Dom estic Rate Incom e (2,749) (2,749) - 

Revenue Support Grant (850) (850) - 

Other G eneral Governm ent Grants - (396) (396) 

 (8,006) (8,421) (415) 

    

(Surplus) / D eficit on Provision of Services 4,594 2,709 (1,885) 

(Surplus) / Deficit on revaluation of property, plant &  

equipm ent assets 

- 262 262 

Actuarial (gains) / losses on Pensions assets / liabilities - 3,414 3,414 

Total Com prehensive Incom e and Expenditure 4,594 6,385 1,791 

    

Adjustm ents between accounting basis and funding basis 

under regulations 

(2,597) (5,440) (2,843) 

Transfers to or from  the G eneral Fund that are required to be 

taken into account – contribution from  earm arked reserves 

(1,997) (945) 1,052 

Increase/D ecrease in G eneral Fund Balance for Year - - - 

     

Supplem entary inform ation for this statem ent regarding the actual N et Cost of 

Services is show n at the end of this docum ent on pages 81 and 82. 

 

There is no m aterial assets acquired or liabilities incurred that w arrant specific 

disclosure and explanation. 

 

5. R eview  of the Authority’s Financial Position 
 

The balance of G eneral Fund Earm arked Reserves during 2011/12 has reduced by 

£0.945m  from  £5.195m  to £4.250m  at 31 M arch 2012. 

 

M ajor draw ings included the revenue support for the capital program m e of £1.447m  

from  the Authority’s Capital Fund. 

 

M ajor contributions to reserves and balances included the transfer of investm ent 

incom e of £0.137m  into the Capital Fund to finance the capital program m e and the 

transfer of unapplied grant incom e balances to the Grants Reserve £0.202m  and the 

O perational Reserve £0.133m . 

Page 6



E X P L A N A TO R Y  F O R E W O R D  
 

 
6

 

 

For further details regarding the purpose and balances of the Authority’s reserves 

see N ote 8 in the N otes to the Accounts. 

 

6. Pension Liability 

 

The Authority participates in the Local G overnm ent Pension Schem e, adm inistered 

by N orth Yorkshire County Council. The Pension Liability show n in the Balance 

Sheet increased from  £18.833m  as at 31 M arch 2011 to £22.785m  as at 31 M arch 

2012. This increase of £3.952m  is m atched by a decrease in the level of the Pension 

Reserve and does not represent a reduction in the Authority’s cash reserves or 

im pact on the council tax. 

 

7. C apital Expenditure 

 

The original capital budget for the financial year 2011/12 totalled £5.802m . D uring 

the year there were further re-program m ing m ovem ents approved resulting in an 

increase of £1.054m  and a revised budget of £6.856m . 

 

The total am ount invested in the capital program m e for 2011/12 was £4.478m . 

Significant investm ent w as m ade tow ards the land purchase and com m encem ent of 

the upgrade w orks at the A64 Bram bling Fields Junction (£1.780m ) and the 

com pletion of the acquisition of Stanley H arrison H ouse in N orton (£0.869m ).  

 

The m ajor under spend w as due to the delay in the im plem entation of an external 

schem e for Pickering Flood D efence (£0.950m ). There w ere further under spends 

regarding the take up on housing grants and loans (£0.544m ) and slippage on the 

Assem bly Room s and M ilton Room s Preservation W orks (£0.232m ).  

 

O f the £4.478m  capital expenditure incurred som e £4.008m  w as funded from  the 

Authority’s capital funds w ith the balance of £0.470m  being financed by external 

grants and contributions. 

 

8. C hanges in Accounting Policy 

 

Follow ing the significant num ber of changes in the accounting policies required to 

com ply w ith the m ove to IFRS in the 2010/11 accounts there are few  changes for the 

2011/12 accounts. 

 

The full adoption of the new  standard for H eritage Assets has been required for the 

2011/12 statem ents. The standard requires that a new  class of asset, H eritage 

Assets, is disclosed separately on the face of the Authority’s Balance Sheet in the 

2011/12 financial statem ents.  The Authority has review ed its assets and can report 

that there are none that require reclassification to H eritage Assets. 

 

The Authority is not required to participate in the Carbon Reduction Com m itm ent 

Energy Efficiency Schem e and therefore there is no requirem ent to introduce a 

policy for accounting for the costs of the schem e. 

 

 

 

Page 7



E X P L A N A TO R Y  F O R E W O R D  
 

 
7

 

9. Further Inform ation 
 

Further inform ation about the accounts is available from  Financial Services, 

Ryedale H ouse, M alton. In addition, interested m em bers of the public have a 

statutory right to inspect the accounts before the audit is com pleted. The 

availability of the accounts for inspection is advertised in the local press and on the 

Authority’s w ebsite. 

 

Page 8



ST A T E M E N T  O F  R E SP O N SIB IL IT IE S 

 
8

 

The Authority’s R esponsibilities 

 

The Authority is required: 

 

• to m ake arrangem ents for the proper adm inistration of its financial affairs and to secure 
that one of its officers has the responsibility for the adm inistration of those affairs.  In 

this Authority, that officer is the Corporate Director (s151); 

 

• to m anage its affairs to secure econom ic, efficient and effective use of resources and 
safeguard its assets; and 

 

• to approve the Statem ents of Accounts. 
 

The Chief Finance O fficer’s R esponsibilities 

 

The Corporate Director (s151) is responsible for the preparation of the Authority’s Statem ent 

of Accounts in accordance with proper practices as set out in the CIPFA/LASAAC Code of 

Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the U nited Kingdom  (the Code). 

 

In preparing this Statem ent of Accounts, the Corporate Director (s151) has: 

 

• selected suitable accounting policies and then applied them  consistently; 
 

• m ade judgem ents and estim ates that were reasonable and prudent; and 
 

• com plied with the local authority Code. 
 

The Corporate Director (s151) has also: 

 

• kept proper accounting records which were up-to-date; and 
 

• taken reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularities, 
through the use of the N orth Yorkshire Audit Partnership. 

 

Certification of the Accounts 

 

I certify that the Statem ent of Accounts presents a true and fair view of the financial 

position of Ryedale District Council as at 31 M arch 2012 and its incom e and expenditure for 

the year ended 31 M arch 2012. 

 

Signed:  Dated: 29 June 2012 

P D Cresswell 

Corporate Director (s151) 
 

Approval of the Accounts 

 

 This Statem ent of Accounts was approved by the Policy and Resources Com m ittee on  

 27 Septem ber 2012. 

Signed:  Dated:  

Cllr. G Acom b 

Chairm an of Policy &  Resources Com m ittee 

Page 9



M O VEM EN T IN  R ESER VES STATEM EN T 

For the Year Ended 31 M arch 2012 

 
9

 

 G
e
n
e
r
a
l 

F
u
n
d
 

B
a
la
n
c
e
 

E
a
r
m
a
r
k
e
d
 

G
e
n
e
r
a
l 

F
u
n
d
 

R
e
s
e
r
v
e
s
 

C
a
p
it
a
l 

R
e
c
e
ip
ts
 

R
e
s
e
r
v
e
 

C
a
p
it
a
l 

G
r
a
n
ts
 

U
n
a
p
p
li
e
d
 

T
o
ta
l 
U
s
a
b
le
 

R
e
s
e
r
v
e
s
 

U
n
u
s
a
b
le
 

R
e
s
e
r
v
e
s
 

T
o
ta
l 

A
u
th
o
r
it
y
 

R
e
s
e
r
v
e
s
 

 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 

        

Balance as at 31 M arch 

2010 

- 5,302 5,155 154 10,611 (7,519) 3,092 

M ovem ent in reserves during 2010/11 

Surplus or (deficit) on the 

provision of services. 

(1,018) - - - (1,018) - (1,018) 

Other Com prehensive 

Incom e and Expenditure. 

- - - - - 3,763 3,763 

Total Com prehensive 

Incom e and Expenditure 

(1,018) - - - (1,018) 3,763 2,745 

Adjustm ents between 

accounting basis &  funding 

basis under regulations 

(note7) 

911 - (2,503) (97) (1,689) 1,689 - 

N et Increase / D ecrease 

before Transfers to 

Earm arked R eserves 

(107) - (2,503) (97) (2,707) 5,452 2,745 

Transfers to/from  

Earm arked Reserves (note 8) 

107 (107) - - - - - 

Increase / D ecrease in 

2010/11 

- (107) (2,503) (97) (2,707) 5,452 2,745 

        

Balance as at 31 M arch 

2011 

- 5,195 2,652 57 7,904 (2,067) 5,837 

M ovem ent in reserves during 2011/12 

Surplus or (deficit) on the 

provision of services 

(2,709) - - - (2,709) - (2,709) 

Other Com prehensive 

Incom e and Expenditure  

- - - - - (3,676) (3,676) 

Total Com prehensive 

Incom e and Expenditure 

(2,709) - - - (2,709) (3,676) (6,385) 

Adjustm ents between 

accounting basis &  funding 

basis under regulations 

(note7) 

1,764 - (2,525) (57) (818) 818 - 

N et Increase / D ecrease 

before Transfers to 

Earm arked R eserves 

(945) - (2,525) (57) (3,527) (2,858) (6,385) 

Transfers to/from  

Earm arked Reserves (note 8) 

945 (945) - - - - - 

Increase / D ecrease in 

2011/12 

- (945) (2,525) (57) (3,527) (2,858) (6,385) 

        

Balance as at 31 M arch 

2012 

- 4,250 127 - 4,377 (4,925) (548) 

 Page 10



CO M PR EH EN SIVE IN CO M E AN D  EXPEN D ITU R E 

STATEM EN T 

for the year Ended 31 M arch 2012 

 
10

 

 

2010/11  2011/12 

G
r
o
s
s
 

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
r
e
 

G
r
o
s
s
 

I
n
c
o
m
e
 

N
e
t 

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
r
e
 

 G
r
o
s
s
 

E
x
p
en
d
it
u
re
 

G
r
o
s
s
 

I
n
c
o
m
e
 

N
e
t 

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
r
e
 

£’000 £’000 £’000  £’000 £’000 £000 

       

4,827 3,918 909 Central Services to the Public 4,819 3,872 947 

3,313 76 3,237 Cultural and Related Services 1,749 84 1,665 

4,482 1,573 2,909 Environm ental and Regulatory Services 4,199 1,632 2,567 

2,382 927 1,455 Planning Services 3,668 791 2,877 

1,045 954 91 H ighways and Transport Services 390 760 (370) 

12,749 11,754 995 H ousing Services 12,995 12,194 801 

1,376 - 1,376 Corporate and Dem ocratic Core 1,305 1 1,304 

(3,119) - (3,119) N on Distributed Costs – Change in Inflation 

Factor for Retirem ent Benefits 

- - - 

344 11 333 Other Corporate and N on Distributed Costs 88 1 87 

       

27,399 19,213 8,186 C O ST O F SER VIC ES 29,213 19,335 9,878 

       

779 - 779 Other Operating Expenditure (N ote 9) 640 30 610 

2,933 1,917 1,016 Financing and Investm ent Incom e and 

Expenditure (N ote 10) 

3,030 2,388 642 

- - - (Surplus) or Deficit of Discontinued 

Operations 

- - - 

- 8,963 (8,963) Taxation and N on-Specific Grant Incom e (N ote 

11) 

- 8,421 (8,421) 

       

  1,018 (SU R PLU S) O R  D EFIC IT O N  PR O VISIO N  O F SER VIC ES 2,709 

     

  (848) (Surplus) or Deficit on Revaluation of Property, Plant and 

Equipm ent Assets 

262 

  - Im pairm ent Losses on N on Current Assets Charged  to the 

Revaluation Reserve 

- 

  - (Surplus) or Deficit on Revaluation of Available for Sale Financial 

Assets 

- 

  (2,915) Actuarial (Gains) / Losses on Pension Assets / Liabilities 3,414 

     

  (3,763) O TH ER  C O M PR EH EN SIVE IN C O M E &  EXPEN D ITU R E 3,676 

       

  (2,745) TO TAL C O M PR EH EN SIVE IN C O M E &  EXPEN D ITU R E 6,385 

       

Page 11



CO M PR EH EN SIVE IN CO M E AN D  EXPEN D ITU R E 

STATEM EN T 

for the year Ended 31 M arch 2012 

 
11

 

Page 12



BALAN CE SH EET AS AT 31 M AR CH  2012 

 
12

 

 

1 April 

2010 

£’000 

31 M arch 

2011 

£’000 

 31 M arch 

2012 

£’000 

N otes 

Ref. 

     

14,012 14,275 Property Plant &  Equipm ent 15,274 12 

- - H eritage Assets - 13 

2,428 2,435 Investm ent Property 2,417 14 

299 773 Intangible Assets 695 15 

- - Assets H eld for Sale - 21 

- - Long Term  Investm ents - 16 

14 7 Long Term  D ebtors 1 16 

16,753 17,490 Long Term  Assets 18,387  

     

10,076 9,527 Short Term  Investm ents 5,533 16 

160 - Assets H eld for Sale - 21 

87 75 Inventories 94 17 

2,456 1,104 Short Term  D ebtors 1,468 19 

724 - Cash and Cash Equivalents 273 20 

13,503 10,706 C urrent Assets 7,368  

     

- (70) Cash and Cash Equivalents - 20 

- - Short Term  Borrow ing - 16 

(2,794) (2,817) Short Term  Creditors (2,907) 22 

(122) (166) O ther Short Term  Liabilities (178) 16 

- - Provisions - 23 

- - Liabilities in D isposal G roups -  

- - Revenue G rants Receipts in Advance (138) 34 

(2,916) (3,053) C urrent Liabilities (3,223)  

     

- - Long Term  Creditors - 16 

- - Provisions - 23 

- - Long Term  Borrow ing - 16 

(23,814) (18,833) Liability Related to Defined Pension Schem e (22,785) 40 

(434) (473) Other Long Term  Liabilities (295) 16 

- - Donated Assets Account - 34 

- - Capital G rants Received in Advance - 34 

(24,248) (19,306) Long Term  Liabilities (23,080)  

     

3,092 5,837 N et Assets / Liabilities (548)  

     

10,611 7,904 U sable Reserves 4,377 24 

(7,519) (2,067) U nusable Reserves (4,925) 25 

3,092 5,837 Total R eserves (548)  

 

 

 

 

CH IEF FIN AN CE O FFICER’S CERTIFICATE 

I certify that the above Balance Sheet, fairly states the financial position of the Authority as at 

31 M arch 2012 

Signed:   P D  Cressw ell 

 C O R P O R A T E  D IR E C T O R  (S151)                                29 JU N E  2012 

Page 13



BALAN CE SH EET AS AT 31 M AR CH  2012 

 
13

 

Page 14



CASH  FLO W  STATEM EN T 

For the Year Ended 31 M arch 2012 

 
14

 

 

2010/11 

£’000 

 

 2011/12 

£’000 

   

1,018 N et (surplus) or deficit on the provision of services 2,709 

   

(1,203) Adjustm ents to net surplus or deficit on the provision of services for 

non-cash m ovem ents (N ote 26) 

(1,210) 

   

626 Adjustm ents for item s included in the net surplus or deficit on the 

provision of services that are investing and financing activities 

449 

   

441 N et cash flow s from  O perating Activities (N ote 27) 1,948 

   

91 Investing Activities (N ote 28) (2,430) 

   

262 Financing Activities (N ote 29) 139 

   

794 N et (increase) or decrease in cash and cash equivalents (343) 

   

724 Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the reporting period (70) 

   

(70) C ash and cash equivalents at the end of the reporting period 

(N ote 20) 

273 

   

 

 

 

 

Page 15



N O TES TO  TH E ACCO U N TS 
 

 
15

 

1. ACC O U N TIN G  PO LIC IES 

 

i G eneral Principles 

 

The Statem ent of Accounts sum m arises the Authority’s transactions for the 2011/12 

financial year and its position at the year-end of 31 M arch 2012. The Authority is 

required to prepare an annual Statem ent of Accounts by the Accounts and Audit 

Regulations 2011, w hich require to be prepared in accordance w ith proper accounting 

practices. These practices prim arily com prise the Code of Practice on Local Authority 

Accounting in the U nited K ingdom  2011/12 and the Service Reporting Code of 

Practice 2011/12, supported by International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS). 

 

 The accounting convention adopted in the Statem ent of Accounts is principally 

historical cost, m odified by the revaluation of certain categories of non-current assets 

and financial instrum ents. 

 

ii Accruals of Incom e and Expenditure 

 

 Activity is accounted for in the year that it takes place, not sim ply w hen cash 

paym ents are m ade or received. In particular: 

 

• Revenue from  the sale of goods is recognised w hen the Authority transfers the 

significant risks and rew ards of ow nership to the purchaser and it is probable that 

econom ic benefits or service potential associated with the transaction w ill flow  to 

the Authority. 

• Revenue from  the provision of services is recognised w hen the Authority can 

m easure reliably the percentage of com pletion of the transaction and it is probable 

that econom ic benefits or service potential associated w ith the transaction w ill flow 

to the Authority. 

• Supplies are recorded as expenditure w hen they are consum ed – w here there is a 

gap betw een the date supplies are received and their consum ption, they are carried 

as inventories on the Balance Sheet. 

• Expenses in relation to services received (including services provided by 

em ployees) are recorded as expenditure w hen the services are received rather than 

w hen paym ents are m ade. 

• Interest receivable on investm ents and payable on borrow ings is accounted for 

respectively as incom e and expenditure on the basis of the effective interest rate 

for the relevant financial instrum ent rather than the cash flow s fixed or 

determ ined by the contract. 

• W here revenue and expenditure have been recognised but cash has not been 

received or paid, a debtor or creditor for the relevant am ount is recorded in the 

Balance Sheet. W here debts m ay not be settled, the balance of debtors is w ritten 

dow n and a charge m ade to revenue for the incom e that m ight not be collected. 

 

iii. C ash and C ash Equivalents 

 

 Cash is represented by cash in hand and deposits w ith financial institutions 

repayable w ithout penalty on notice of not m ore than 24 hours. Cash equivalents are 

investm ents that m ature in one m onth or less from  the date of acquisition and that 

are readily convertible to know n am ounts of cash w ith insignificant risk of change in 

value. 

 

Page 16



N O TES TO  TH E ACCO U N TS 
 

 
16

 

 In the cash flow  statem ent cash and cash equivalents are shown net of bank 

overdrafts that are repayable on dem and and form  an integral part of the Authority’s 

cash m anagem ent. 

 

iv. Exceptional Item s 

 

 W hen item s of incom e and expense are m aterial, their nature and am ount is disclosed 

separately, either on the face of the Com prehensive Incom e and Expenditure 

Statem ent or in the notes to the accounts, depending on how  significant the item s are 

to an understanding of the Authority’s financial perform ance.  

 

v. Prior Period Adjustm ents, C hanges in Accounting Policies and Estim ates 

and Errors 

 

 Prior period adjustm ents m ay arise as a result of a change in accounting policies or to 

correct a m aterial error. Changes in accounting estim ates are accounted for 

prospectively, i.e. in the current and future years affected by the change and do not 

give rise to a prior period adjustm ent. 

 

 Changes in accounting policies are only m ade w hen required by proper accounting 

practices or the change provides m ore reliable or relevant inform ation about the effect 

of transactions, other events and conditions on the Authority’s financial position or 

financial perform ance. W hen a change is m ade, it is applied retrospectively (unless 

stated otherw ise) by adjusting opening balances and com parative am ounts for the 

prior period as if the new  policy had alw ays been applied. 

 

 M aterial errors discovered in prior period figures are corrected retrospectively by 

am ending opening balances and com parative am ounts for the prior period. 

 

vi. C harges to R evenue for N on-C urrent Assets 

 

Services, support services and trading accounts are debited w ith the follow ing to 

record the real cost of holding fixed assets during the year: 

 

• depreciation attributable to the assets used by the relevant service; 
• revaluation and im pairm ent losses on assets used by the service w here there are 

no accum ulated gains on the Revaluation Reserve against w hich the losses can be 

w ritten off; and 

• am ortisation of intangible fixed assets attributable to the service. 
 

The Authority is not required to raise council tax to fund depreciation, revaluation 

im pairm ent losses or am ortisation. H owever, it is required to m ake an annual 

contribution from  revenue tow ards the reduction in its overall borrow ing requirem ent 

equal to an am ount calculated on a prudent basis determ ined by the authority in 

accordance w ith statutory guidance. D epreciation, revaluation and im pairm ent losses 

and am ortisation are therefore replaced by the contribution in the G eneral Fund 

Balance (M inim um  Revenue Provision), by w ay of an adjusting transaction w ith the 

Capital Adjustm ent Account in the M ovem ent in Reserves Statem ent for the 

difference betw een the tw o. 

 

  

Page 17



N O TES TO  TH E ACCO U N TS 
 

 
17

vii. Em ployee B enefits 

 

B enefits Payable D uring Em ploym ent 

 

Short-term  em ployee benefits are those due to be settled w ithin 12 m onths of the 

year-end. They include such benefits as salaries, paid annual leave and paid sick 

leave, bonuses and non-m onetary benefits for current em ployees and are recognised 

as an expense for services in the year in which em ployees render service to the 

Authority. An accrual is m ade for the cost of holiday entitlem ents (or any form  of 

leave e.g. tim e off in lieu) earned by em ployees but not taken before the year-end 

w hich em ployees can carry forw ard into the next financial year. The accrual is m ade 

at the salary rates applicable in the following accounting year, being the period in 

w hich the em ployee takes the benefit. The accrual is charged to Surplus or D eficit on 

the Provision of Services, but then reversed out through the M ovem ent in Reserves 

Statem ent so that holiday benefits are charged to revenue in the financial year in 

w hich the holiday absence occurs.  

 

Term ination Benefits 

 

Term ination benefits are am ounts payable as a result of a decision by the Authority 

to term inate an officer’s em ploym ent before the norm al retirem ent date or an officer’s 

decision to accept voluntary redundancy and are charged on an accruals basis to the 

relevant service line (or in discontinued operations) in the Com prehensive Incom e and 

Expenditure Statem ent w hen the Authority is dem onstrably com m itted to the 

term ination of the em ploym ent of an officer or group of officers or m aking an offer to 

encourage voluntary redundancy. 

 

W here term ination benefits involve the enhancem ent of pensions, statutory 

provisions require the G eneral Fund balance to be charged w ith the am ount payable 

by the Authority to the pension fund or pensioner in the year, not the am ount 

calculated according to the relevant accounting standards. In the M ovem ent in 

Reserves Statem ent, appropriations are required to and from  the Pension Reserve to 

rem ove the notional debits and credits for pension enhancem ent term ination benefits 

and replace them  w ith debits for the cash paid to the pension fund and pensioners 

and any such am ounts payable but unpaid at the year-end. 

 

Post Em ploym ent B enefits 

 

Em ployees of the Authority participate in the Local G overnm ent Pension Schem e, 

adm inistered by N orth Yorkshire County Council. 

 

The schem e provides defined benefits to m em bers (retirem ent lum p sum s and 

pensions) related to pay and service. 

 

The Local G overnm ent Schem e is accounted for as a defined benefits schem e: 

 

• The liabilities of the N orth Yorkshire pension fund attributable to the Authority 
are included in the Balance Sheet on an actuarial basis using the projected unit 

m ethod – i.e. an assessm ent of the future paym ents that w ill be m ade in relation to 

retirem ent benefits earned to date by em ployees, based on assum ptions about 

m ortality rates, em ployee turnover rates, etc, and projections of projected earnings 

for current em ployees. 

 

Page 18



N O TES TO  TH E ACCO U N TS 
 

 
18

 

• Liabilities are discounted to their value at current prices, using a discount rate 
based on the indicative rate of return on high quality corporate bonds. 

 

• The assets of the N orth Yorkshire pension fund attributable to the Authority are 
included in the Balance Sheet at their fair value: 

 

- quoted securities – current bid price; 

- unquoted securities – professional estim ate; 

- unitised securities – current bid price; and 

- property – m arket value. 

 

• The change in the net pensions liability is analysed into seven com ponents: 
 

-current service cost – the increase in liabilities as result of years of service earned 

this year – allocated in the Com prehensive Incom e and Expenditure Statem ent to 

the revenue accounts of services for w hich the em ployees w orked 

 

-past service cost – the increase in liabilities arising from  current year decisions 

w hose effect relates to years of service earned in earlier years – debited to the 

Surplus or D eficit on the Provision of Services in the Com prehensive Incom e and 

Expenditure Statem ent as part of N on D istributed Costs 

 

-interest cost – the expected increase in the present value of liabilities during the 

year as they m ove one year closer to being paid – debited to the Financing and 

Investm ent line in the Com prehensive Incom e and Expenditure Account 

 

- expected return on assets – the annual investm ent return on the fund assets 

attributable to the Council, based on an average of the expected long-term  return – 

credited to the Financing and Investm ent line in the Com prehensive Incom e and 

Expenditure Statem ent 

 

-gains/losses on settlem ents and curtailm ents – the result of actions to relieve the 

Authority of liabilities or events that reduce the expected future service or accrual 

of benefits of em ployees – debited or credited to the Surplus or Deficit on the 

Provision of Services in the Com prehensive Incom e and Expenditure Account as a 

part of N on D istributed Costs 

 

-actuarial gains and losses – changes in the net pensions liability that arise 

because events have not coincided w ith assum ptions m ade at the last actuarial 

valuation or because the actuaries have updated their assum ptions – charged to 

the Pensions Reserve 

 

-contributions paid to the N orth Yorkshire pension fund – cash paid as em ployer’s 

contributions to the pension fund in settlem ent of liabilities; not accounted for as 

an expense. 

 

In relation to retirem ent benefits, statutory provisions require the G eneral Fund 

balance to be charged w ith the am ount payable by the Authority to the pension fund 

or directly to pensioners in the year, not the am ount calculated according to the 

relevant accounting standards. In the M ovem ent in Reserves Statem ent, this m eans 

that there are appropriations to and from  the Pensions Reserve to rem ove the 

notional debits and credits for retirem ent benefits and replace them  w ith debits for 

the cash paid to the pension fund and pensioners and any such am ounts payable but 

Page 19



N O TES TO  TH E ACCO U N TS 
 

 
19

unpaid at the year-end. The negative balance that arises on the Pension Reserve 

thereby m easures the beneficial im pact to the G eneral Fund of being required to 

account for retirem ent benefits on the basis of cash flows rather than as benefits are 

earned by em ployees. 

 

D iscretionary B enefits 

 

The Authority also has restricted pow ers to m ake discretionary aw ards of retirem ent 

benefits in the event of early retirem ents. Any liabilities estim ated to arise as a result 

of an aw ard to any m em ber of staff are accrued in the year of the decision to m ake the 

aw ard and accounted for using the sam e policies as are applied to the Local 

G overnm ent Pension Schem e. 

 

viii. Events After the R eporting Period 

 

Events after the Balance Sheet date are those events, both favourable and 

unfavourable, that occur betw een the end of the reporting period and the date when 

the Statem ent of Accounts is authorised for issue. Tw o types of events can be 

identified: 

 

• Those that provide evidence of conditions that existed at the end of the reporting 

period – the Statem ent of Accounts is adjusted to reflect such events; and 

 

• Those that are indicative of conditions that arose after the reporting period – the 

Statem ent of Accounts is not adjusted to reflect  such events, but w here a 

category of events would have m aterial effect, disclosure is m ade in the notes of 

the nature of the events and their estim ated financial effect.  

 

Events taking place after the date of authorisation for issue are not reflected in the 

Statem ent of Accounts.  

 

ix. Financial Instrum ents 

 

 Financial Liabilities 

 

 The Code requires the fair value of each class of financial liability to be disclosed in 

the N otes to the Statem ent of Accounts, w here this is different from  the carrying 

am ount stated in the Balance Sheet. H ow ever, the Code also states that fair value 

disclosures are not required for short-term  trade payables since the carrying am ount 

is a reasonable approxim ation of fair value. 

 

The Authority did not enter any borrow ing arrangem ents during the financial year 

and had no loan debt on the Balance Sheet, therefore no fair value adjustm ent w as 

required and no transfer to or from  the Financial Instrum ents Adjustm ent Account 

w as m ade. 

 

 Financial Assets 

 

Financial assets are classified into tw o types: 

 

• Loans and receivables – assets that have fixed or determ inable paym ents but are 

not quoted in an active m arket; and 

• Available-for-sale assets – assets that have a quoted m arket price and / or do not 

Page 20



N O TES TO  TH E ACCO U N TS 
 

 
20

have fixed or determ inable paym ents. 

 

The Code requires the fair value of each class of financial asset to be disclosed in the 

N otes to the Statem ent of Accounts, w here this is different from  the carrying am ount 

stated in the Balance Sheet. Any changes in fair value are balanced by an entry in the 

Available-for-Sale Reserve. The Code also states that fair value disclosures are not 

required for short-term  trade receivables since the carrying am ount is a reasonable 

approxim ation of fair value. 

 

The Authority did not enter into any available-for-sale asset arrangem ents during the 

financial year. 

 

Loans and R eceivables 

 

Loans and receivables are recognised on the Balance Sheet w hen the Authority 

becom es a party to the contractual provisions of a financial instrum ent and are 

initially m easured at fair value. They are subsequently m easured at their am ortised 

cost. Annual credits to the Financing and Investm ent Incom e and Expenditure line in 

the Com prehensive Incom e and Expenditure Statem ent for interest receivable are 

based on the carrying am ount of the asset m ultiplied by the effective rate of interest 

for the instrum ent. For m ost of the loans that the Authority has m ade, this m eans 

that the am ount presented in the Balance Sheet is the outstanding principal 

receivable (plus accrued interest) and interest credited to the Com prehensive Incom e 

and Expenditure Statem ent is the am ount receivable for the year in the loan 

agreem ent. 

 

H owever, the Authority has m ade a num ber of loans to voluntary organisations that 

are interest free (soft loans). W hen soft loans are m ade, a loss is recorded in the 

Com prehensive Incom e and Expenditure Statem ent (debited to the appropriate 

service) for the present value of the interest that w ill be foregone over the life of the 

instrum ent, resulting in a low er am ortised cost than the outstanding principal. 

Interest is credited to the Financing and Investm ent Incom e and Expenditure line in 

the Com prehensive Incom e and Expenditure Statem ent at a higher effective rate of 

interest, w ith the difference serving to increase the am ortised cost of the loan to the 

Balance Sheet. Statutory provisions require that the im pact of soft loans on the 

G eneral Fund Balance is the interest receivable for the financial year – the 

reconciliation of am ounts debited and credited to the Com prehensive Incom e and 

Expenditure Statem ent to the net gain required against the General Fund Balance is 

m anaged by a transfer to or from  the Financial Instrum ent Adjustm ent Account in 

the M ovem ent in Reserves Statem ent. 

 

W here assets are identified as im paired because of a likelihood arising from  a past 

event that paym ents due under the contract w ill not be m ade, the asset is written 

dow n and a charge m ade to the relevant service (for receivables specific to that 

service) or the Financing and Investm ent Incom e and Expenditure line in the 

Com prehensive Incom e and Expenditure Statem ent. The im pairm ent loss is 

m easured as the difference betw een the carrying am ount and the present value of the 

revised future cash flows discounted at the asset’s original effective interest rate. 

 

Any gains or losses that arise on the derecognition of an asset are credited or debited 

to the Financing and Investm ent Incom e and Expenditure line in the Com prehensive 

Incom e and Expenditure Statem ent. 

 

Available-for Sale Assets  Page 21



N O TES TO  TH E ACCO U N TS 
 

 
21

 

Available-for-sale assets are recognised on the Balance Sheet w hen the Authority 

becom es a party to the contractual provisions of a financial instrum ent and are 

initially m easured and carried at fair value. W here the asset has fixed or 

determ inable paym ents, annual credits to the Financing and Investm ent Incom e and 

Expenditure line in the Com prehensive Incom e and Expenditure Statem ent for 

interest receivable are based on the am ortised cost of the asset m ultiplied by the 

effective rate of interest for the instrum ent. W here there are no fixed or determ inable 

paym ents, incom e (e.g. dividends) is credited to the Com prehensive Incom e and 

Expenditure Statem ent w hen it becom es receivable by the Authority. 

 

Assets are m aintained in the Balance Sheet at fair value. Values are based on the 

follow ing principles: 

 

• Instrum ents w ith quoted m arket prices – the m arket price; 
• O ther instrum ents w ith fixed and determ inable paym ents – discounted cash flow 

analysis; and 

• Equity shares w ith no quoted m arket prices – independent appraisal of com pany 
valuations. 

 

D uring the financial year 2011/12 the Authority did not enter any financial 

instrum ent transactions. 

 

x. Foreign C urrency Translation 

 

W here the Authority has entered into a transaction denom inated in a foreign 

currency, the transaction is converted into sterling at the exchange rate applicable on 

the date the transaction w as effective. W here am ounts in foreign currency are 

outstanding at the year-end, they are reconverted at the spot exchange rate at 31 

M arch. Resulting gains or losses are recognised in the Financing and Investm ent line 

in the Com prehensive Incom e and Expenditure Statem ent. 

 

xi. G overnm ent G rants and C ontributions 

 

W hether paid on account, by instalm ent or in arrears, governm ent grants and third 

party contributions and donations are recognised as due to the Authority w hen there 

is reasonable assurance that: 

 

• the Authority w ill com ply w ith the conditions attached to the paym ents; and 
• the grants or contributions w ill be received. 
 

Am ounts recognised as due to the Authority are not credited to the Com prehensive 

Incom e and Expenditure Statem ent until conditions attached to the grant or 

contribution have been satisfied. Conditions are stipulations that specify that the 

future econom ic benefits or service potential em bodied in the asset acquired using the 

grant or contribution are required to be consum ed by the recipient as specified, or 

future econom ic benefits or service potential m ust be returned to the transferor. 

 

M onies advanced as grants and contributions for w hich conditions have not been 

satisfied are carried in the Balance Sheet as creditors. W hen conditions are satisfied, 

the grant or contribution is credited to the relevant service line (attributable revenue 

grants and contributions) or Taxation and N on-Specific Incom e (non-ringfenced 

revenue grants) in the Com prehensive Incom e and Expenditure Statem ent. 

Page 22



N O TES TO  TH E ACCO U N TS 
 

 
22

 

W here capital grants are credited to the Com prehensive Incom e and Expenditure 

Statem ent, they are reversed out of the G eneral Fund Balance in the M ovem ent in 

Reserves Statem ent. W here the grant has yet to be used to finance capital 

expenditure, it is posted to the Capital G rants U napplied reserve. W here it has been 

applied, it is posted to the Capital Adjustm ent Account. Am ounts in the Capital 

G rants U napplied reserve are transferred to the Capital Adjustm ent Account once 

they have been applied to fund capital expenditure. 

 

xii. H eritage Assets 

 

H eritage assets are recognised and held at valuation rather than at fair value and 

under certain conditions at historical cost. The treatm ent of revaluation gains and 

losses are in accordance w ith the Authority’s accounting policies on property, plant 

and equipm ent. 

 

The carrying am ounts of heritage assets are reviewed w here there is evidence of 

im pairm ent for heritage assets, e.g. w here an item  has suffered physical deterioration 

breakage or w here doubts arise as to its authenticity. Any im pairm ent is recognised 

and m easured in accordance w ith the Authority’s general policies on im pairm ent – 

see note xviii in this sum m ary of significant accounting policies.  

 

D isposal proceeds are disclosed separately in the notes to the financial statem ents 

and are accounted for in accordance w ith statutory accounting requirem ents relating 

to capital expenditure and capital receipts. 

 

xiii. Intangible Assets 

 

Expenditure on non-m onetary assets that do not have physical substance but are 

controlled by the Authority, e.g. softw are licences, is capitalised w hen it is expected 

that future econom ic benefits or service potential w ill flow  from  the intangible asset 

to the Authority. 

 

Intangible assets are m easured initially at cost. Am ounts are only revalued w here the 

fair value of the assets held by the Authority can be determ ined by reference to an 

active m arket. In practice, no intangible asset held by the Authority m eets this   

criterion, and they are therefore carried at am ortised cost. The depreciable am ount of 

an intangible asset is am ortised over its useful life to the relevant service lines in the 

Com prehensive Incom e and Expenditure Statem ent. An asset is tested for 

im pairm ent w henever there is an indication that the asset m ight be im paired – any 

losses recognised are posted to the relevant service line(s) in the Com prehensive 

Incom e and Expenditure Statem ent. Any gain or loss arising on the disposal or 

abandonm ent of an intangible asset is posted to the Other O perating Expenditure 

line in the Com prehensive Incom e and Expenditure Statem ent. 

 

W here expenditure on intangible assets qualifies as capital expenditure for statutory 

purposes, am ortisation, im pairm ent losses and disposal gains and losses are not 

perm itted to have im pact on the G eneral Fund Balance. The gains and losses are 

therefore reversed out of the G eneral Fund Balance in the M ovem ent in Reserves 

Statem ent and posted to the Capital Adjustm ent Account and (for any sale proceeds 

greater than £10,000) the Capital Receipts Reserve. 

 

xiv. Inventories and Long Term  C ontracts 

 Page 23



N O TES TO  TH E ACCO U N TS 
 

 
23

Inventories are included in the Balance Sheet at the lower of cost and net realisable 

value. The cost of inventories is assigned using the FIFO costing form ula. 

 

Long term  contracts are accounted for on the basis of charging the Surplus or D eficit 

on the Provision of Services w ith the value of w orks and services received under the 

contract during the financial year. 

 

xv. Investm ent Property 

 

Investm ent properties are those that are used solely to earn rentals and/or for capital 

appreciation. The definition is not m et if the property is used in any way to facilitate 

the delivery of services or production of goods or is held for sale.  

 

Investm ent properties are m easured initially at cost and subsequently at fair value, 

based on the am ount at w hich the asset could be exchanged betw een know ledgeable 

parties at arm s-length. Properties are not depreciated but are revalued annually 

according to m arket conditions at the year-end. G ains and losses on revaluation are 

posted to the Financing and Investm ent Incom e and Expenditure line in the 

Com prehensive Incom e and Expenditure Statem ent. The sam e treatm ent is applied 

to gains and losses on disposal. 

 

Rentals received in relation to investm ent properties are credited to the Financing 

and Investm ent Incom e line and result in a gain to the G eneral Fund Balance. 

H owever, revaluation and disposal gains and losses are not perm itted by statutory 

arrangem ents to have an im pact on the G eneral Fund Balance. The gains and losses 

are therefore reversed out of the G eneral Fund Balance in the M ovem ent in Reserves 

Statem ent and posted to the Capital Adjustm ent Account and (for any sale proceeds 

greater than £10,000) the Capital Receipts Reserve. 

 

xvi. Leases 

 

Leases are classified as finance leases w here the term s of the lease transfer 

substantially all the risks and rew ards incidental to ow nership of the property, plant 

or equipm ent from  the lessor to the lessee. All other leases are classified as operating 

leases. 

 

W here a lease covers both land and buildings, the land and buildings elem ents are 

considered separately for classification. 

 

Arrangem ents that do not have the legal status of a lease but convey a right to use an 

asset in return for paym ent are accounted for under this policy w here fulfilm ent of 

the arrangem ent is dependent on the use of specific assets. 

 

The Authority as Lessee 

 

Finance Leases 

 

Property, plant and equipm ent held under finance leases is recognised on the Balance 

Sheet at the com m encem ent of the lease at its fair value m easured at the lease’s 

inception (or the present value of the m inim um  lease paym ents if low er). The asset 

recognised is m atched by a liability for the obligation to pay the lessor. Initial direct 

costs of the Authority are added to the carrying am ount of the asset. Prem ium s paid 

on entry into a lease are applied to w riting dow n the lease liability. Contingent rents 

are charged as expenses in the periods in w hich they are incurred. Page 24



N O TES TO  TH E ACCO U N TS 
 

 
24

 

  

Page 25



N O TES TO  TH E ACCO U N TS 
 

 
25

Lease paym ents are apportioned betw een: 

 

• a charge for the acquisition of the interest in the property, plant or equipm ent – 

applied to w rite dow n the lease liability; and 

• a finance charge (debited to the Financing and Investm ent Incom e and 

Expenditure line in the Com prehensive Incom e and Expenditure Statem ent). 

 

Property, Plant and Equipm ent recognised under finance leases is accounted for 

using the policies applied generally to such assets, subject to depreciation being 

charged over the lease term  if this is shorter than the asset’s estim ated useful life 

(w here ow nership of the asset does not transfer to the Authority at the end of the 

lease period). 

 

The Authority is not required to raise council tax to cover depreciation or revaluation 

and im pairm ent losses arising on leased assets. Instead, a prudent annual 

contribution is m ade from  revenue funds tow ards the deem ed capital investm ent in 

accordance w ith statutory requirem ents. D epreciation and revaluation and 

im pairm ent losses are therefore substituted by a revenue contribution in the G eneral 

Fund Balance, by w ay of an adjusting transaction w ith the Capital Adjustm ent 

Account in the M ovem ent in Reserves Statem ent for the difference betw een the tw o.  

 

O perating Leases 

 

Rentals paid under operating leases are charged to the Com prehensive Incom e and 

Expenditure Statem ent as an expense of the services benefiting from  use of the leased 

property, plant or equipm ent. Charges are m ade on a straight-line basis over the life 

of the lease, even if this does not m atch the pattern of paym ents, e.g. there is a rent-

free period at the com m encem ent of the lease. 

 

The Authority as Lessor 

 

Finance Leases 

 

W here the Authority grants a finance lease over a property or an item  of plant or 

equipm ent, the relevant asset is w ritten out of the Balance Sheet as a disposal. At the 

com m encem ent of the lease, the carrying am ount of the asset in the Balance Sheet 

(w hether Property, Plant and Equipm ent or Assets H eld for Sale) is w ritten off to the 

O ther O perating Expenditure line in the Com prehensive Incom e and Expenditure 

Statem ent as part of the gain or loss on disposal. A gain representing the Authority’s 

net investm ent in the lease, is credited to the sam e line in the Com prehensive Incom e 

and Expenditure Statem ent also as part of the gain or loss on disposal i.e. netted off 

against the carrying value of the asset at the tim e of disposal, m atched by a lease 

(long term  debtor) asset in the Balance Sheet. 

 

Lease rentals receivable are apportioned betw een: 

 

• a charge for the acquisition of the interest in the property, plant or equipm ent – 

applied to write dow n the lease debtor (together w ith any prem ium s received); 

and 

 

• finance incom e (credited to the Financing and Investm ent Incom e and 

Expenditure line in the Com prehensive Incom e and Expenditure Statem ent). 

 

Page 26



N O TES TO  TH E ACCO U N TS 
 

 
26

  

Page 27



N O TES TO  TH E ACCO U N TS 
 

 
27

The gain credited to the Com prehensive Incom e and Expenditure Statem ent on 

disposal is not perm itted by statute to increase the G eneral Fund Balance and is 

required to be treated as a capital receipt. W here a prem ium  has been received, this is 

posted out of the General Fund Balance to the Capital Receipts Reserve in the 

M ovem ent in Reserves Statem ent. W here the am ount due in relation to the lease 

asset is to be settled by the paym ent of rentals in future financial years, this is posted 

out of the G eneral Fund Balance to the D eferred Capital Receipts Reserve in the 

M ovem ent in Reserves Statem ent. W hen the future rentals are received, the elem ent 

for the capital receipt for the disposal of the asset is used to w rite dow n the lease 

debtor. At this point, the deferred capital receipts are transferred to the Capital 

Receipts Reserve. 

 

The w ritten-off value of disposals is not a charge against council tax, as the cost of 

fixed assets is fully provided for under separate arrangem ents for capital financing. 

Am ounts are therefore appropriated to the Capital adjustm ent Account from  the 

G eneral Fund Balance in the M ovem ent in Reserves Statem ent. 

 

O perating Leases 

 

W here the Authority grants an operating lease over a property or an item  of plant or 

equipm ent, the asset is retained in the Balance Sheet. Rental incom e is credited to 

the Other O perating Expenditure line in the Com prehensive Incom e and Expenditure 

Statem ent. Credits are m ade on a straight-line basis over the life of the lease, even if 

this does not m atch the pattern of paym ent, e.g. there is a prem ium  paid at the 

com m encem ent of the lease. Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating and arranging 

the lease are added to the carrying am ount of the relevant asset and charged as an 

expense over the lease term  on the sam e basis as rental incom e. 

 

xvii. O verheads and Support Services 

 

The costs of overheads and support services are charged to those that benefit from  the 

supply or service in accordance w ith the costing principles of the CIPFA Service 

Reporting Code of Practice 2011/12 (SeRCO P). The total absorption costing principle 

is used – the full cost of overheads and support services are shared betw een users in 

proportion to the benefits received, with the exception of: 

 

• Corporate and D em ocratic Core – costs relating to the Authority’s status as a 

m ulti-functional dem ocratic organisation. 

• N on D istributed Costs – the cost of discretionary benefits aw arded to em ployees 
retiring early and im pairm ent losses chargeable on non-current Assets H eld for 

Sale and Assets U nder Construction. 

 

These tw o cost categories are defined in SeRCO P and accounted for as separate 

headings in the Com prehensive Incom e and Expenditure Statem ent, as part of N et 

Expenditure on Continuing Services. 

 

xviii. Property, Plant and Equipm ent 

 

Assets  that have physical substance and are held for use in the production or supply 

of goods or services, for rental to others, or for adm inistrative purposes and that are 

expected to be used during m ore than one financial year are classified as Property, 

Plant and Equipm ent.  

 

  

Page 28



N O TES TO  TH E ACCO U N TS 
 

 
28

R ecognition 

 

Expenditure on the acquisition, creation or enhancem ent of Property, Plant and 

Equipm ent is capitalised on an accruals basis, provided that it is probable that the 

future econom ic benefits or service potential associated w ith the item  w ill flow  to the 

Authority and the cost of item  can be m easured reliably. Expenditure that m aintains 

but does not add to an asset’s potential to deliver future econom ic benefits or service 

potential i.e. repairs and m aintenance is charged as an expense w hen it is incurred. 
 

M easurem ent 
 

Assets are initially m easured at cost, com prising: 

• the purchase price; 

• any costs attributable to bringing the asset to the location and condition 

necessary for it to be capable of operating in the m anner intended by 

m anagem ent; and 

• the initial estim ate of the costs of dism antling and rem oving the item  and 

restoring the site on w hich it is located. 

 

The Authority does not capitalise borrowing costs incurred w hilst assets are under 

construction. 

 

The cost of assets acquired other than by purchase is deem ed to be fair value, unless 

the acquisition does not have com m ercial substance, i.e. it w ill not lead to a variation 

in the cash flows of the Authority. In the latter case, w here an asset is acquired via an 

exchange the cost of the acquisition is the carrying am ount of the asset given up by 

the Authority.  

 

D onated assets are m easured initially at fair value. The difference betw een fair value 

and any consideration paid is credited to the Taxation and N on-Specific G rant Incom e 

line of the Com prehensive Incom e and Expenditure Statem ent, unless the donation 

has been m ade conditionally. U ntil conditions are satisfied the gain is held in the 

D onated Assets Account. W here gains are credited to the Com prehensive Incom e and 

Expenditure Statem ent, they are reversed out of the G eneral Fund Balance to the 

Capital Adjustm ent Account and in the M ovem ent in Reserves Statem ent. 

 

Assets are then carried in the Balance Sheet using the follow ing m easurem ent basis: 

 

• infrastructure, com m unity assets and assets under construction – depreciated 
historical cost; and 

• all other assets – fair value, determ ined as the am ount that w ould be paid for the 
asset in its existing use (existing use value EU V). 

 

W here there is no m arket-based evidence of fair value because of the specialist nature 

of an asset, depreciated replacem ent cost (D RC) is used as an estim ate of fair value.  

 

W here non-property assets that have short useful lives or low  values (or both), 

depreciated historical cost basis is used as a proxy for fair value i.e. vehicles, plant, 

furniture and equipm ent. 

 

Assets included in the Balance Sheet at fair value are revalued sufficiently regularly 

to ensure that the carrying am ount is not m aterially different from  their fair value at 

the year-end, but as a m inim um  every five years. Any increase in valuations is 

m atched by credits to the Revaluation Reserve to recognise unrealised gains. 

Page 29



N O TES TO  TH E ACCO U N TS 
 

 
29

Exceptionally, gains m ight be credited to the Com prehensive Incom e and Expenditure 

Statem ent w here they arise from  the reversal of a loss previously charged to a service. 

 

W here decreases in value are identified, they are accounted for by: 

 

• w here there is a balance of revaluation gains for the asset in the Revaluation 
Reserve, the carrying am ount of the asset is written dow n against that balance (up 

to the am ount of the accum ulated gains); and 

 

• w here there is no balance in the Revaluation Reserve or an insufficient balance, 
the carrying am ount of the asset is written dow n against the relevant service 

line(s) in the Com prehensive Incom e and Expenditure Statem ent. 

 

The Revaluation Reserve contains revaluation gains recognised since 1 April 2007 

only, the date of its form al im plem entation. Gains arising before that date have been 

consolidated into the Capital Adjustm ent Account. 

 

 Im pairm ent 
 

Assets are assessed at each year-end as to w hether there is any indication that an 

asset m ay be im paired. W here indications exist and any possible differences are 

estim ated to be m aterial, the recoverable am ount of the asset is estim ated and, w here 

this is less than the carrying am ount of the asset, an im pairm ent loss is recognised 

for the shortfall. 

 

W here im pairm ent losses are identified, they are accounted for by: 

 

• W here there is a balance of revaluation gains for the asset in the Revaluation 

Reserve, the carrying am ount of the asset is written dow n against that balance (up 

to the am ount of the accum ulated gains) 

 

• W here there is no balance in the Revaluation Reserve or an insufficient balance, 

the carrying am ount of the asset is w ritten dow n against the relevant service line 

in the Com prehensive Incom e and Expenditure Statem ent. 

 

W here an im pairm ent loss is reversed subsequently, the reversal is credited to the 

relevant service line in the Com prehensive Incom e and Expenditure Statem ent, up to 

the am ount of the original loss, adjusted for depreciation that would have been 

charged if the loss had not been recognised.  

 

D epreciation 

 

D epreciation is provided for on all Property, Plant and Equipm ent assets by the 

system atic allocation of their depreciable am ounts over their useful lives. An 

exception is m ade for assets w ithout a determ inable finite useful life, i.e. freehold 

land and certain com m unity assets, and assets that are not yet available for use, i.e. 

assets under construction. 

 

D epreciation is calculated on the following bases: 

 

• D wellings and other buildings – straight line allocation over the useful life of the 
property as estim ated by the valuer; and 

 

• Vehicles, plant furniture and equipm ent – straight line allocation over the useful Page 30



N O TES TO  TH E ACCO U N TS 
 

 
30

life of the asset. 

 

W here an item  of Property, Plant and Equipm ent asset has m ajor com ponents w hose 

cost is significant in relation to the total cost of the item , the com ponents are 

depreciated separately. 

 

Revaluation gains are also depreciated, w ith an am ount equal to the difference 

betw een current value depreciation charged on assets and the depreciation that 

w ould have been chargeable based on their historical cost being transferred each year 

from  the Revaluation Reserve to the Capital Adjustm ent Account. 

 

D isposals and N on-current Assets H eld for Sale 

 

W hen it becom es probable that the carrying am ount of an asset will be recovered 

principally through a sale transaction rather than through its continuing use, it is 

reclassified as an Asset H eld for Sale. The asset is revalued im m ediately before 

reclassification and then carried at the low er of this am ount and fair value less costs 

to sell. W here there is a subsequent decrease to fair value less costs to sell, the loss is 

posted to the O ther Operating Expenditure line in the Com prehensive Incom e and 

Expenditure Account Statem ent. G ains in fair value are recognised only up to the 

am ount of any previous losses recognised in the Surplus or D eficit on Provision of 

Services. D epreciation is not charged on Assets H eld for Sale. 

 

If assets no longer m eet the criteria to be classified as Assets H eld for Sale, they are 

reclassified back to non-current assets and valued at the low er of their carrying 

am ount before they w ere classified as held for sale; adjusted for depreciation, 

am ortisation or revaluations that w ould have been recognised had they not been 

classified as H eld for Sale, and their recoverable am ount at the date of the decision 

not to sell. 

 

W hen an asset is disposed of or decom m issioned, the carrying am ount of the asset in 

the Balance Sheet is w ritten off to the O ther O perating Expenditure line in the 

Com prehensive Incom e and Expenditure Statem ent as part of the gain or loss on 

disposal. Receipts from  disposals (if any) are credited to the sam e line in the 

Com prehensive Incom e and Expenditure Statem ent also as part of the gain or loss on 

disposal (i.e. netted off against the carrying value of the asset at the tim e of disposal). 

Any revaluation gains accum ulated for the asset in the Revaluation Reserve are 

transferred to the Capital Adjustm ent Account. 

 

Am ounts received for disposal in excess of £10,000 are categorised as capital receipts. 

Receipts are credited to the Capital Receipts Reserve, and can then only be used for 

new  capital investm ent (or set aside to reduce the Authority’s underlying need to 

borrow ). Receipts are appropriated to the reserve from  the G eneral Fund Balance in 

the M ovem ent in Reserves Statem ent. 

 

The w ritten-off value of disposals is not a charge against council tax, as the cost of 

fixed assets is fully provided for under separate arrangem ents for capital financing. 

Am ounts are appropriated to the Capital Adjustm ent Account from  the G eneral Fund 

Balance in the M ovem ent in Reserves Statem ent. 

 

xix. Provisions, C ontingent Liabilities and C ontingent Assets 

 

Provisions 

 
Page 31



N O TES TO  TH E ACCO U N TS 
 

 
31

Provisions are m ade where an event has taken place that gives the Authority a legal 

or constructive obligation that probably requires settlem ent by a transfer of econom ic 

benefits or service potential, and a reliable estim ate can be m ade of the am ount of the 

obligation. For instance, the Authority m ay be involved in a court case that could 

eventually result in the m aking of a settlem ent or the paym ent of com pensation. 

 

Provisions are charged as an expense to the appropriate service line in the 

Com prehensive Incom e and Expenditure Statem ent in the year that the Authority 

becom es aw are of the obligation, and are m easured at the best estim ate at the 

Balance Sheet date of the expenditure required to settle the obligation, taking into 

account relevant risks and uncertainties. 

 

W hen paym ents are eventually m ade, they are charged to the provision carried in the 

Balance Sheet. Estim ated settlem ents are review ed  at the end of each financial year 

– w here it becom es less than probable that a transfer of econom ic benefits w ill now  be 

required (or a low er settlem ent than anticipated m ade), the provision is reversed and 

credited back to the relevant service. 

 

W here som e or all of the paym ent required to settle a provision is expected to be 

recovered from  another party e.g. from  an insurance claim , this is only recognised as 

incom e for the relevant service if it is virtually certain that reim bursem ent will be 

received if the Authority settles the obligation. 

 

For the financial year 2011/12 the Authority has no such provisions, other than for 

bad and doubtful debts. 

 

C ontingent Liabilities 

 

A contingent liability arises w here an event has taken place that gives the Authority 

a possible obligation whose existence w ill only be confirm ed by the occurrence or 

otherw ise of uncertain future events not w holly w ithin the control of the Authority. 

Contingent liabilities also arise in circum stances w here a provision w ould otherwise 

be m ade but either it is not probable that an outflow  of resources w ill be required or 

the am ount of the obligation cannot be m easured reliably. 

 

Contingent liabilities are not recognised in the Balance Sheet but disclosed in a note 

to the accounts. 

 

C ontingent Assets 

 

A contingent asset arises w here an event has taken place that gives the Authority a 

possible asset w hose existence w ill only be confirm ed by the occurrence or otherwise 

of uncertain future events not w holly within the control of the Authority. 

 

Contingent assets are not recognised in the Balance Sheet but disclosed in a note to 

the accounts w here it is probable that there will be an inflow  of econom ic benefits or 

service potential.  

 

xx. R eserves 

 

The Authority sets aside specific am ounts as reserves for future policy purposes or to 

cover contingencies. Reserves are created by appropriating am ounts out of the 

G eneral Fund Balance in the M ovem ent in Reserves Statem ent. W hen expenditure to 

be financed from  a reserve is incurred, it is charged to the appropriate service in that Page 32



N O TES TO  TH E ACCO U N TS 
 

 
32

year to score against the Surplus or D eficit on the Provision for Services in the 

Com prehensive Incom e and Expenditure Statem ent. The reserve is then appropriated 

back into the G eneral Fund Balance in the M ovem ent in Reserves Statem ent so that 

there is no net charge against council tax for the expenditure. 

 

Certain reserves are kept to m anage the accounting processes for non-current assets, 

financial instrum ents, retirem ent and em ployee benefits and do not represent usable 

resources for the Council. These reserves are explained in the relevant policies. 

 

xxi. R evenue Expenditure Funded from  C apital under Statute 

 

Expenditure incurred during the year that m ay be capitalised under statutory 

provisions but does not result in the creation of a non-current asset has been charged 

as expenditure to the relevant service in the Com prehensive Incom e and Expenditure 

Statem ent in the year.  W here the Authority has determ ined to m eet the cost of this 

expenditure from  existing capital resources or by borrow ing, a transfer in the 

M ovem ent in Reserves Statem ent from  the G eneral Fund Balance to the Capital 

Adjustm ent Account then reverses out the am ounts charged so there is no im pact on 

the level of council tax. 

 

xxii. VAT 

 

VAT payable is included as an expense only to the extent that it is not recoverable 

from  H er M ajesty’s Revenue and Custom s. VAT receivable is excluded from  incom e. 

 

2. ACC O U N TIN G  STAN D AR D S TH AT H AVE B EEN  ISSU ED  B U T N O T YET 

B EEN  AD O PTED  - IFR S FIN AN CIAL IN STR U M EN TS: D ISC LO SU R ES 

(TR AN SFER S O F FIN AN CIAL ASSETS) 

 

The Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the U nited Kingdom  2011/12 

(the Code) requires changes in accounting policy to be applied retrospectively unless 

alternative transitional arrangem ents are specified in the Code. In addition, it 

requires an authority to disclose inform ation relating to the im pact of an accounting 

change that w ill be required by a new  standard that has been issued but not yet 

adopted by the Code for the relevant financial year. 

 

The am endm ents to IFRS 7 – Financial Instrum ents: D isclosures (transfers of 

financial assets) are intended to assist users of the financial statem ents to evaluate 

the risk exposures that relate to transfers of financial assets and the effect of those 

risks on the authority’s financial position.  H ow ever, the transfers described by the 

accounting standard do not occur frequently in local authorities and the Authority 

has no disclosure to m ake regarding this am endm ent to the standard.  

 

3. C R ITIC AL JU D G EM EN TS IN  APPLYIN G  ACC O U N TIN G  PO LIC IES 

 

In applying the accounting policies set out in note 1, the Authority has had to m ake 

certain judgem ents about com plex transactions or those involving uncertainty about 

future events. The critical judgem ents m ade in the Statem ent of Accounts are: 

 

That there is a high degree of uncertainty about future levels of funding for local 

governm ent. H ow ever, the Authority has determ ined that this uncertainty is not yet 

sufficient to provide an indication that the assets of the Authority m ight be im paired 

as a result of a need to close facilities and reduce levels of service provision. 

Page 33



N O TES TO  TH E ACCO U N TS 
 

 
33

 

Estim ation of the net liability to pay pensions depends upon a num ber of com plex 

judgem ents relating to the discount rate used, the rate at w hich salaries are projected 

to increase, m ortality rates and expected returns on pension fund assets. A firm  of 

consulting actuaries is engaged by the County Council to provide expert advice about 

the assum ptions to be applied, these assum ptions m ay be adjusted on a yearly basis. 

 

The Authority w ill assess the degree of com ponentisation w ithin its net-current asset 

portfolio, as part of the five year rolling program m e of non-current asset valuations. A 

review  of Authority’s current properties concluded that no com ponents could be 

identified w hich w ere of a m aterial value w hen com pared to the entire value of the 

individual non-current asset or w hich w ould m aterially im pact on the useful 

rem aining life of the asset. O n an annual basis the Authority w ill review  Capital 

Expenditure to assess if any new  m aterial com ponents have been added to the 

Authority’s non-current asset portfolio. 

 

4. ASSU M PTIO N S M AD E ABO U T TH E FU TU R E AN D  O TH ER  M AJO R  

SO U R CES O F ESTIM ATIO N  U N CER TAIN TY 

 

The Statem ent of Accounts contains estim ated figures that are based on assum ptions 

m ade by the Authority about the future or that are otherw ise uncertain. Estim ates 

are m ade taking into account historical experience, current trends and other relevant 

factors. H ow ever, because balances cannot be determ ined w ith certainty, actual 

results could be m aterially different from  the assum ptions and estim ates. 

 

The item s in the Authority Balance Sheet at 31 M arch 2012 for which there is a 

significant risk of m aterial adjustm ent in the forthcom ing financial year are as 

follow s: 

 

Item  U ncertainties Effect if Actual R esults differ 

from  Assum ptions 

Pensions Liability Estim ation of the net liability to 

pay pensions depends on a 

num ber of com plex judgem ents 

relating to the discount rate 

used, the rate at w hich salaries 

are projected to increase, 

changes in retirem ent ages, 

m ortality rates and expected 

returns on pension fund assets. 

A firm  of consulting actuaries is 

engaged to provide the 

Authority w ith expert advice 

about the assum ptions to be 

applied. 

 

The effects on the net pensions 

liability of changes in individual 

assum ptions can be m easured. 

For instance, a 0.5%  increase in 

the discount rate w ould result in 

a decrease in the pension liability 

of £4.555m . 

H ow ever, assum ptions can 

interact in com plex w ays. In 

2011/12 the effect on the pension 

liability caused by a 0.6%  fall in 

the discount rate w as partially 

cancelled out by a 0.4%  fall of 

inflation (CPI). 

 

 

Arrears At 31 M arch 2012, the Authority 

had a balance for sundry debtors 

of £1.715m .  A review  of 

significant balances suggested 

that an im pairm ent of doubtful 

debts of 22.4%  (£385,000) w as 

appropriate. H ow ever, in the 

current econom ic clim ate it is 

not certain that this allow ance 

If collection rates w ere to 

deteriorate, a doubling of the 

am ount of im pairm ent of 

doubtful debts w ould require an 

additional £385,000 to be set 

aside as an allow ance. 

Page 34



N O TES TO  TH E ACCO U N TS 
 

 
34

w ould be sufficient. 

 

 

5. M ATER IAL ITEM S O F IN CO M E AN D  EXPEN SES 

 

There are no m aterial item s of incom e and expenditure in 2011/12 that w arrant 

separate disclosure. 

 

6. EVEN TS AFTER  TH E R EPO R TIN G  PER IO D  

 

U nder IAS 10 the Authority is required to disclose the date that the financial 

statem ents are authorised for issue. This confirm s the date after w hich events w ill 

not have been recognised in the Statem ent of Accounts. The Statem ent of Accounts 

w as issued by the responsible financial officer, Paul Cresswell Corporate D irector 

(s151) on 29 June 2012. 

 

All events between the balance sheet date and the issue date have been considered 

and there are no Post Balance Sheet Events to disclose. 

 

7. AD JU STM EN TS BETW EEN  ACCO U N TIN G  B ASIS AN D  FU N D IN G  BASIS 

U N D ER  R EG U LATIO N S 

 

This note details the adjustm ents that are m ade to the total com prehensive incom e 

and expenditure recognised by the Authority in the year in accordance w ith proper 

accounting practice to the resources that are specified by statutory provisions as 

being available to the Authority to m eet future capital and revenue expenditure. 

 

The follow ing sets out a description of the reserves that the adjustm ents are m ade 

against. 

 

G eneral Fund B alance 

 

The G eneral Fund is the statutory fund into which all the receipts of an authority are 

required to be paid and out of w hich all liabilities of the authority are to be m et, 

except to the extent that statutory rules m ight provide otherw ise. These rules can 

also specify the financial year in w hich liabilities and paym ents should im pact on the 

G eneral Fund Balance, w hich is not necessarily in accordance with proper accounting 

practice. The G eneral Fund Balance therefore sum m arises the resources that the 

Council is statutorily  em pow ered to spend on its services or on capital investm ent (or 

the deficit of resources that the Council is required to recover) at the end of the 

financial year. 

 

C apital R eceipts R eserve 

 

The Capital Receipts Reserve holds the proceeds from  the disposal of land or other 

assets, w hich are restricted by statute from  being used other than to fund new  capital 

expenditure or to be set aside to finance historical capital expenditure. The balance on 

the reserve show s the resources that have yet to be applied for those purposes at the 

year end. 

 

C apital G rants U napplied 

 

The Capital G rants U napplied Reserve holds the grants and contributions received 

tow ards capital projects for w hich the Council has m et the conditions that w ould Page 35



N O TES TO  TH E ACCO U N TS 
 

 
35

otherw ise require repaym ent of the m onies but w hich have yet to be applied to m eet 

expenditure. The balance is restricted by grant term s as to the capital expenditure 

against w hich it can be applied and/or the financial year in w hich this can take place. 

 

2011/12 Adjustm ents 

 

2011/12 G eneral 

Fund 

B alance 

C apital 

R eceipts 

R eserve 

C apital 

G rants 

U napplied 

M ovem ent 

in 

U nusable 

R eserves 

 £000 £000 £000 £000 

Adjustm ents prim arily involving 

the C apital Adjustm ent Account: 

    

Reversal of item s debited or credited to 

the Com prehensive Incom e and 

Expenditure Statem ent: 

    

Charges for depreciation and 

im pairm ent of non-current assets 

608 - - (608) 

Revaluation losses on Property Plant 

and Equipm ent 

- - - - 

M ovem ents in the fair value of 

investm ent properties 

31 - - (31) 

Am ortisation of intangible assets 208 - - (208) 

Capital grants and contributions 

applied 

(413) - - 413 

Incom e in relation to donated assets - - - - 

Revenue expenditure funded from  

capital under statute 

2,465 - - (2,465) 

Am ounts of non-current assets w ritten 

off on disposal or sale as part of the 

gain/loss on disposal to the 

Com prehensive Incom e and 

Expenditure Statem ent 

- - - - 

Insertion of Item s not debited or 

credited to the Com prehensive Incom e 

and Expenditure Statem ent: 

    

Statutory provision for the financing of 

capital investm ent 

(166) - - 166 

Capital expenditure charged against 

the G eneral Fund 

(1,447) - - 1,447 

Adjustm ents prim arily involving 

the C apital G rants U napplied 

Account: 

    

Capital grants and contributions 

unapplied credited to the 

Com prehensive Incom e and 

Expenditure Statem ent 

- - - - 

Application of grants to capital 

financing transferred to the Capital 

Adjustm ent Account 

- - (57) 57 

Adjustm ents prim arily involving 

the C apital R eceipts R eserve: 

    

Transfer of cash sale proceeds credited 

as part of the gain/loss on disposal to 

the Com prehensive Incom e and 

Expenditure Statem ent 

- - - - 

U se of the Capital Receipts Reserve to - (2,561) - 2,561 

Page 36



N O TES TO  TH E ACCO U N TS 
 

 
36

finance new  capital expenditure 

Contribution from  the Capital Receipts 

Reserve tow ards adm inistrative costs of 

non-current asset disposals  

- - - - 

Contribution from  the Capital Receipts 

Reserve to finance the paym ents to the 

G overnm ent capital receipts pool 

- - - - 

Transfer from  D eferred Capital 

Receipts Reserve upon receipt of cash 

- - - - 

Capital receipts unattached to non-

current assets 

(30) 30 - - 

Repaym ent of principal on loans - 6 - (6) 

Adjustm ents prim arily involving 

the D eferred C apital R eceipts 

R eserve: 

    

Transfer of deferred sale proceeds 

credited as part of the gain/loss on 

disposal to the Com prehensive Incom e 

and Expenditure Statem ent 

- - - - 

Adjustm ent prim arily involving the 

Financial Instrum ents Adjustm ent 

Account: 

    

Am ount by w hich finance costs charged 

to the Com prehensive Incom e and 

Expenditure Statem ent are different 

from  finance costs chargeable in the 

year in accordance w ith statutory 

requirem ents 

- - - - 

Adjustm ents prim arily involving 

the Pensions R eserve: 

    

Reversal of item s relating to retirem ent 

benefits debited or credited to the 

Com prehensive Incom e and 

Expenditure Statem ent (see note 40) 

1,721 - - (1,721) 

Em ployers pensions contributions and 

direct paym ents to pensioners payable 

in the year 

(1,183) - - 1,183 

Adjustm ents prim arily involving 

the C ollection Fund Adjustm ent 

Account: 

    

Am ount by w hich council tax incom e 

credited to the Com prehensive Incom e 

and Expenditure Statem ent is different 

from  council tax incom e calculated for 

the year in accordance w ith statutory 

requirem ents 

(19) - - 19 

Adjustm ent prim arily involving the 

Accum ulated Absences Account 

    

Am ount by w hich officer rem uneration 

charged to the Com prehensive Incom e 

and Expenditure Statem ent on an 

accruals basis is different from  

rem uneration chargeable in the year in 

accordance w ith statutory requirem ents  

(11) - - 11 

     

Total Adjustm ents 1,764 (2,525) (57) 818 

     

 
Page 37



N O TES TO  TH E ACCO U N TS 
 

 
37

  

Page 38



N O TES TO  TH E ACCO U N TS 
 

 
38

 

2010/11 C om parative Figures 

 

 

2010/11 C om parative Figures 

G eneral 

Fund 

B alance 

C apital 

R eceipts 

R eserve 

C apital 

G rants 

U napplied 

M ovem ent 

in 

U nusable 

R eserves 

 £000 £000 £000 £000 

Adjustm ents prim arily involving 

the C apital Adjustm ent Account: 

    

Reversal of item s debited or credited to 

the Com prehensive Incom e and 

Expenditure Statem ent: 

    

Charges for depreciation and 

im pairm ent of non-current assets 

609 - - (609) 

Revaluation losses on Property Plant 

and Equipm ent 

848 - - (848) 

M ovem ents in the fair value of 

investm ent properties 

- - - - 

Am ortisation of intangible assets 173 - - (173) 

Capital grants and contributions 

applied 

(606) - - 606 

Incom e in relation to donated assets - - - - 

Revenue expenditure funded from  

capital under statute 

2,296 - - (2,296) 

Am ounts of non-current assets w ritten 

off on disposal or sale as part of the 

gain/loss on disposal to the 

Com prehensive Incom e and 

Expenditure Statem ent 

161 - - (161) 

Insertion of Item s not debited or 

credited to the Com prehensive Incom e 

and Expenditure Statem ent: 

    

Statutory provision for the financing of 

capital investm ent 

(170) - - 170 

Capital expenditure charged against the 

G eneral Fund 

(336) - - 336 

Adjustm ents prim arily involving 

the C apital G rants U napplied 

Account: 

    

Capital grants and contributions 

unapplied credited to the 

Com prehensive Incom e and 

Expenditure Statem ent 

- - - - 

Application of grants to capital 

financing transferred to the Capital 

Adjustm ent Account 

- - (97) 97 

Adjustm ents prim arily involving 

the C apital R eceipts R eserve: 

    

Transfer of cash sale proceeds credited 

as part of the gain/loss on disposal to 

the Com prehensive Incom e and 

Expenditure Statem ent 

(20) 20 - - 

U se of the Capital Receipts Reserve to 

finance new  capital expenditure 

- (2,529) - 2,529 

Contribution from  the Capital Receipts 

Reserve tow ards adm inistrative costs of 

non-current asset disposals  

- - - - 

Page 39



N O TES TO  TH E ACCO U N TS 
 

 
39

Contribution from  the Capital Receipts 

Reserve to finance the paym ents to the 

G overnm ent capital receipts pool 

- - - - 

Transfer from  D eferred Capital 

Receipts Reserve upon receipt of cash 

- - - - 

Capital receipts unattached to non-

current assets 

- - - - 

Repaym ent of principal on loans - 6 - (6) 

Adjustm ents prim arily involving 

the D eferred C apital R eceipts 

R eserve: 

    

Transfer of deferred sale proceeds 

credited as part of the gain/loss on 

disposal to the Com prehensive Incom e 

and Expenditure Statem ent 

- - - - 

Adjustm ent prim arily involving the 

Financial Instrum ents Adjustm ent 

Account: 

    

Am ount by w hich finance costs charged 

to the Com prehensive Incom e and 

Expenditure Statem ent are different 

from  finance costs chargeable in the 

year in accordance w ith statutory 

requirem ents 

- - - - 

Adjustm ents prim arily involving 

the Pensions R eserve: 

    

Reversal of item s relating to retirem ent 

benefits debited or credited to the 

Com prehensive Incom e and 

Expenditure Statem ent (see note 40) 

(803) - - 803 

Em ployers pensions contributions and 

direct paym ents to pensioners payable 

in the year 

(1,263) - - 1,263 

Adjustm ents prim arily involving 

the C ollection Fund Adjustm ent 

Account: 

    

Am ount by w hich council tax incom e 

credited to the Com prehensive Incom e 

and Expenditure Statem ent is different 

from  council tax incom e calculated for 

the year in accordance w ith statutory 

requirem ents 

17 - - (17) 

Adjustm ent prim arily involving the 

Accum ulated Absences Account 

    

Am ount by w hich officer rem uneration 

charged to the Com prehensive Incom e 

and Expenditure Statem ent on an 

accruals basis is different from  

rem uneration chargeable in the year in 

accordance w ith statutory requirem ents  

5 - - (5) 

Total Adjustm ents 911 (2,503) (97) 1,689 

     

 

  

Page 40



N O TES TO  TH E ACCO U N TS 
 

 
40

8. TR AN SFER S TO /FR O M  EAR M AR K ED  R ESER VES 

 

This note sets out the am ounts set aside from  the G eneral Fund in earm arked 

reserves to provide financing for future expenditure plans and the am ounts posted 

back from  earm arked reserves to m eet General Fund expenditure in 2011/12. 

 

 Balance 

 at 

1/04/10 

£000 

Transfers 

Out 

2010/11 

£000 

Transfers 

In 

2010/11 

£000 

Balance 

 At 

 31/03/11 

£000 

Transfers 

Out 

2011/12 

£000 

Transfers 

In 

2011/12 

£000 

Balance 

 At 

 31/03/12 

£000 

G eneral Reserve 632 - 16 648 - - 648 

Capital Fund 3,524 (336) 180 3,368 (1,448) 213 2,133 

Com m unity 

Investm ent Fund 

17 (17) - - - - - 

Election Reserve 49 - 16 65 (52) - 13 

G rants Reserve 70 - 21 91 - 232 323 

IT Fund 139 (18) 9 130 (15) 10 125 

ICE Fund 222 (24) - 198 (3) - 195 

Local D evelopm ’t 

Fram ew ork 

Reserve 

50 - - 50 - - 50 

O perational 

Reserve 

463 (28) 24 459 (57) 170 572 

Restructure 

Reserve 

136 - 50 186 (128) 133 191 

Total 5,302 (423) 316 5,195 (1,703) 758 4,250 

        

 

The m ain purpose of the reserves is as follows: 

 

(a) The General Reserve receives or contributes to differences in the estim ated to 

actual net expenditure on the Revenue Account. It provides a working balance for 

the day-to-day revenue costs and incom e and m eets any unforeseen liabilities  not 

provided elsewhere in the accounts. 
 

(b) The Capital Fund is the reserve that holds the resources from  the revenue stream  

of funding to be applied to the capital program m e. 
 

(c) The Im provem ent, Contingency &  Em ergency (ICE) Fund is available for a 

num ber of purposes that include m eeting the cost of unexpected significant 

revenue item s and initial financial support to achieve efficiency savings.  
 

(d) The Authority provides grants and loans to voluntary bodies and other 

organisations  to help establish and im prove a variety of facilities throughout the 

District. Grants are also issued to support rural com m unity transport initiatives. If 

funds m ade available are not fully utilised during a particular year, the 

rem aining budget provision is transferred into this reserve to help off-set 

expenditure in future years. 

 

(e) An Election Reserve is used to equalise the effect of the four yearly D istrict 

Election costs. 
 

(f)  An Inform ation Technology Fund is used to finance the purchase and renew al of 

item s of com puter equipm ent such as personal com puters, printers and 

associated softw are. 
 

(g)  The O perational Reserve allows Service U nits to set aside a proportion of Page 41



N O TES TO  TH E ACCO U N TS 
 

 
41

savings in their budgets earm arked to be used in later years. It also includes 

revenue grants w ith no conditions that have been recognised in the 

Com prehensive Incom e and Expenditure Statem ent and are identified for 

specific services but not yet applied. 
 

(h)  The Restructure Reserve w as established to cover the set-up costs associated 

w ith the restructure of the Council. 

 

(i) A reserve w as established to cover the additional cost associated w ith 

accelerating the com pletion of the Local D evelopm ent Fram ework. 

 

9. O TH ER  O PER ATIN G  EXPEN D ITU R E 

 

2010/11 

£000 
 

2011/12 

£000 

638 Parish council precepts 640 

- Paym ents to the G overnm ent H ousing Capital Receipts Pool - 

141 Losses on the disposal of non-current assets - 

- Capital receipts unattached to non-current assets (30) 

779 Total 610 

   

 

10. FIN AN CIN G  AN D  IN VESTM EN T IN C O M E AN D  EXPEN D ITU R E 

 

2010/11 

£000 
 

2011/12 

£000 

42 Interest payable and sim ilar charges 43 

1,114 Pensions interest cost and expected return on pensions assets 725 

(127) Interest receivable and sim ilar incom e (137) 

(13) Incom e and expenditure in relation to investm ent properties 

and changes in their fair value 

11 

1,016 Total 642 

   

 

11. TAXATIO N  AN D  N O N  SPEC IFIC  G R AN T IN C O M E 

 

2010/11 

£000 
 

2011/12 

£000 

(4,382) Council tax incom e (4,426) 

(3,947) N on dom estic rates (2,749) 

(634) N on-ringfenced governm ent grants (1,246) 

- Capital grants and contributions - 

(8,963) Total (8,421) 

   

 

  

Page 42



N O TES TO  TH E ACCO U N TS 
 

 
42

12. PR O PER TY, PLAN T AN D  EQ U IPM EN T 

 

M ovem ents on B alance Sheet 

 

M ovem ents in 2011/12 

 

 O
th
e
r
 L
a
n
d
 &
 

B
u
il
d
in
g
s
 

V
e
h
ic
le
s
, 

p
la
n
t,
 

fu
r
n
it
u
r
e
 &
 

e
q
u
ip
m
e
n
t 

In
fr
a
s
tr
u
c
tu
r
e
 

a
s
s
e
ts
 

C
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 

A
s
s
e
ts
 

S
u
r
p
lu
s
 a
s
s
e
ts
 

A
s
s
e
ts
 u
n
d
e
r
 

c
o
n
s
tr
u
c
ti
o
n
 

T
o
ta
l 
p
r
o
p
e
r
ty
, 

p
la
n
t 
&
 

e
q
u
ip
m
e
n
t 

 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 

Cost or Valuation        

At 1 April 2011 13,089 4,571 - 234 513 - 18,407 

Additions 317 536 - 142 5 869 1,869 

Donations - - - - - - - 

Revaluation increases/ 

(decreases) recognised in the 

Revaluation Reserve 

(262) - - - - - (262) 

Revaluation increases/ 

(decreases) recognised in the 

Surplus/Deficit on the Provision 

of Services 

- - - - - - - 

Derecognition – disposals - (140) - - - - (140) 

Derecognition –  other - - - - - - - 

Assets reclassified (to)/from  

H eld for Sale 

- - - - - - - 

Other m ovem ents in cost or 

valuation 

- - - - - - - 

        

At 31 M arch 2012 13,144 4,967 - 376 518 869 19,874 

        

Accum ulated D epreciation 

and Im pairm ent 

       

At April 2011 574 3,556 - - 2 - 4,132 

Depreciation charge 285 321 - - 2 - 608 

Depreciation written out to the 

Revaluation Reserve 

-  - - - -  

Depreciation written out to the 

Surplus/Deficit on the Provision 

of Services  

- - - - - - - 

Im pairm ent loses/(reversals) 

recognised in the Revaluation 

Reserve   

- - - - - - - 

Im pairm ent losses/(reversals) 

recognised in the Surplus/Deficit 

on the Provision of Services  

- - - - - - - 

Derecognition – disposals - (140) - - - - (140) 

Derecognition –  other - - - - - - - 

Other m ovem ents in 

depreciation and im pairm ent  

- - - - - - - 

        

At 31 M arch 2012 859 3,737 - - 4 - 4,600 

        

N et Book Value        

At 31 M arch 2012 12,285 1,230 - 376 514 869 15,274 

At 31 M arch 2011 12,515 1,015 - 234 511 - 14,275 

        

Owned asset as at 31 M arch 

2012 

 

12,285 

 

773 

 

- 

 

376 

 

514 

 

869 

 

14,817 

Asset acquired under finance 

lease as at 31 M arch 2012 

 

- 

 

457 

 

- 

 

- 

 

- 

 

- 

 

457 

Total 12,285 1,230 - 376 514 869 15,274 

 

  
Page 43



N O TES TO  TH E ACCO U N TS 
 

 
43

Com parative M ovem ents in 2010/11  

 
 O
th
e
r
 L
a
n
d
 &
 

B
u
il
d
in
g
s
 

V
e
h
ic
le
s
, 

p
la
n
t,
 

fu
r
n
it
u
r
e
 &
 

e
q
u
ip
m
e
n
t 

In
fr
a
s
tr
u
c
tu
r
e
 

a
s
s
e
ts
 

C
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 

A
s
s
e
ts
 

S
u
r
p
lu
s
 a
s
s
e
ts
 

A
s
s
e
ts
 u
n
d
e
r
 

c
o
n
s
tr
u
c
ti
o
n
 

T
o
ta
l 
p
r
o
p
e
r
ty
, 

p
la
n
t 
&
 

e
q
u
ip
m
e
n
t 

 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 

Cost or Valuation        

At 1 April 2010 12,638 4,389 - 213 513 - 17,753 

Additions 451 399  21 - - 871 

Donations - - - - - - - 

Revaluation increases/ 

(decreases) recognised in the 

Revaluation Reserve 

- - - - - - - 

Revaluation increases/ 

(decreases) recognised in the 

Surplus/Deficit on the Provision 

of Services 

- - - - - - - 

Derecognition – disposals - (217) - - - - (217) 

Derecognition –  other - - - - - - - 

Assets reclassified (to)/from  

H eld for Sale 

- - - - - - - 

Other m ovem ents in cost or 

valuation 

- - - - - - - 

        

At 31 M arch 2011 13,089 4,571 - 234 513 - 18,407 

        

Accum ulated D epreciation 

and Im pairm ent 

       

At April 2010 301 3,439 - - 1 - 3,741 

Depreciation charge 273 334 - - 1 - 608 

Depreciation written out to the 

Revaluation Reserve 

- - - - - - - 

Depreciation written out to the 

Surplus/Deficit on the Provision 

of Services  

- - - - - - - 

Im pairm ent loses/(reversals) 

recognised in the Revaluation 

Reserve   

- - - - - - - 

Im pairm ent losses/(reversals) 

recognised in the Surplus/Deficit 

on the Provision of Services  

- - - - - - - 

Derecognition – disposals - (217) - - - - (217) 

Derecognition –  other - - - - - - - 

Other m ovem ents in 

depreciation and im pairm ent  

- - - - - - - 

        

At 31 M arch 2011 574 3,556 - - 2 - 4,132 

        

N et Book Value        

At 31 M arch 2011 12,515 1,015 - 234 511 - 14,275 

At 31 M arch 2010 12,337 950 - 213 512 - 14,012 

        

Owned assets as at 31 M arch 

2011 

 

12,515 

 

380 

 

- 

 

234 

 

511 

 

- 

 

13,640 

Assets acquired under finance 

leases at 31 M arch 2011 

 

- 

 

635 

 

- 

 

- 

 

- 

 

- 

 

635 

Total 12,515 1,015 - 234 511 - 14,275 

 

 

  

Page 44



N O TES TO  TH E ACCO U N TS 
 

 
44

D epreciation 

 

The follow ing useful lives and depreciation rates have been used in the calculation of 

depreciation: 

 

• O ther Land and Buildings – 10-60 years 

• Vehicles, Plant, Furniture &  Equipm ent - 5-10 years 

 

C apital C om m itm ents 

 

At 31 M arch 2012 the Authority had entered into contracts for the construction or 

enhancem ent of Property Plant and Equipm ent in 2012/13 and future years at an 

estim ated cost of £27k (£nil in 2010/11). 

 

R evaluations 

 

The Authority carries out a rolling program m e that ensures that all Property, Plant 

and Equipm ent required to be m easured at fair value is revalued at least every five 

years. All valuations are carried out internally. Valuations of land and buildings are 

carried out in accordance w ith the m ethodologies and bases for estim ation set out in 

the professional standards of the Royal Institution of Charted Surveyors. Valuations 

of vehicles, plant, furniture and equipm ent are based on historic cost. 

 

Valuation of properties w as carried out internally and w as com pleted in accordance 

w ith the m ethodologies and bases for estim ation set out in the standards of the Royal 

Institution of Chartered Surveyors. 

 

D uring 2011/12 there w ere no significant revaluations of Property, Plant and 

Equipm ent as there w as a full revaluation of assets in 2009/10.  An adjustm ent to the 

revaluation in that year w as recorded in 2010/11. 

 

13. H ER ITAG E ASSETS 

 

In com pliance w ith the 2011/12 Code, the Authority has review ed its assets and 

concluded that there is no reclassification of assets to heritage assets to disclose in the 

accounts. 

 

14. IN VESTM EN T PR O PER TIES 

 

The follow ing item s of incom e and expense have been accounted for in the Financing 

and Investm ent Incom e and Expenditure line in the Com prehensive Incom e and 

Expenditure Statem ent: 

 

 2011/12 

£000 

2010/11 

£000 

Rental Incom e from  Investm ent Property 157 136 

N et gain / (loss) from  fair value adjustm ent (32) - 

 125 136 

D irect operating expenses arising from  investm ent property (136) (123) 

N et gain / (loss) (11) 13 

 

There are no restrictions on the Authority’s ability to realise the value inherent in its 

investm ent property or on the Authority’s right to the rem ittance of incom e and the 

proceeds of disposal. The Authority has no contractual obligations to purchase, 

Page 45



N O TES TO  TH E ACCO U N TS 
 

 
45

construct or develop investm ent property or repairs, m aintenance or enhancem ent. 

 

The follow ing table sum m arises the m ovem ent in the fair value of investm ent 

properties over the year. 

 

 2011/12 

£000 

2010/11 

£000 

B alance at start of the year 2,435 2,428 

Additions - - 

Purchases - - 

Construction - - 

Subsequent expenditure 13 7 

D isposals - - 

N et gains / (losses) from  fair value adjustm ents (31) - 

Transfers: - - 

To/from  inventories - - 

To/from  Property Plant and Equipm ent - - 

O ther changes - - 

B alance at end of the year 2,417 2,435 

 

15. IN TAN G IB LE ASSETS 

 

The Authority accounts for its softw are as intangible assets to the extent that the 

softw are is not an integral part of a particular IT system  and accounted for as part of 

the hardw are item  of Property, Plant and Equipm ent.  

 

All softw are is given a finite useful life, based on assessm ents of the period that the 

softw are is expected to be of use to the Council. The useful lives assigned to the m ajor 

softw are suites used by the Authority are: 

 

 Internally G enerated Assets O ther Assets 

5 Years N one Revenues and benefits system  

Electronic docum ent m anagem ent system  

Cash receipting system  

Financial m anagem ent system  

 

The carrying am ount of intangible assets is am ortised on a straight-line basis. The 

am ortisation of £209k charged to revenue in 2011/12 w as charged direct to services 

w here appropriate, how ever, an elem ent w as charged to the IT Adm inistration cost 

centre and then as overhead across the service headings in the net expenditure of 

services. It is not possible to quantify exactly how m uch of the am ortisation is 

attributable to each service heading. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

Page 46



N O TES TO  TH E ACCO U N TS 
 

 
46

The m ovem ent on Intangible Asset balances during the year is as follow s: 

 

 2011/12 2010/11 

 Internally 

Generated 

Assets 

£’000 

Other 

Asset 

Costs 

£’000 

 

 

Total 

£’000 

Internally 

Generated 

Assets 

£’000 

Other 

Asset 

Costs 

£’000 

 

 

Total 

£’000 

Balance at start of year: 

Gross carrying am ounts 

 

- 1,472 1,472 - 827 827 

Accum ulated am ortisation - (699) (699) - (528) (528) 

N et carrying am ount at start of year - 773 773 - 299 299 

 

Additions: 

      

Internal developm ent - - - -   

Purchases - 131 131 - 648 648 

Acquired through business com binations - - - - - - 

       

Assets reclassified as held for sale - - - - - - 

Other disposals - - - - (1) (1) 

Revaluation increases or decreases - - - - - - 

Im pairm ent losses recognised or reversed 

directly in the Revaluation Reserve 

- - - - - - 

Im pairm ent losses recognised in the 

surplus/deficit on the Provision of 

Services 

- - - - - - 

Reversals of past im pairm ent losses 

written back to the Surplus/Deficit on the 

Provision of Services 

- - - - - - 

Am ortisation for the period - (209) (209) - (173) (173) 

Other changes - - - -   

N et carrying am ount at year end - 695 695 - 773 773 

       

Com prom ising:       

Gross carrying am ounts - 1,573 1,573 - 1,472 1,472 

Accum ulated am ortisation - (878) (878) - (699) (699) 

 - 695 695 - 773 773 

       

 

There is one item  of capitalised softw are that is individually m aterial to the financial 

statem ents: 

 

 Carrying Am ount Rem aining 

 31 M arch 2012 31 M arch 2011 Am ortised period 

 £000 £000  

Revenues and benefits system  323 399 4 years 

 

The Authority has capital com m itm ents am ounting to £7k for the acquisition of 

intangible assets. 

 

  

Page 47



N O TES TO  TH E ACCO U N TS 
 

 
47

16. FIN AN CIAL IN STR U M EN TS 

 

The follow ing categories of financial instrum ents are carried in the Balance Sheet: 

 

 Long-term  Current 

 31 M arch 

2012 

£000 

31 M arch 

2011 

£000 

31 M arch 

2010 

£’000 

31 M arch 

2012 

£000 

31 M arch 

2011 

£000 

31 M arch 

2010 

£’000 

       

Investm ents       

Loans and receivables - - - 5,533 9,527 10,076 

Available-for-sale financial 

assets  

 

- 

 

- 

 

- 

 

- 

 

- 

 

- 

U nquoted equity investm ent 

at cost 

 

- 

 

- 

 

- 

 

- 

 

- 

 

- 

Financial assets at fair value 

through profit and loss 

 

- 

 

- 

 

- 

 

- 

 

- 

- 

Total Investm ents - - - 5,533 9,527 10,076 

       

D ebtors       

Loans and receivables 1 7 14 - - - 

Financial assets carried at 

contract am ounts 

 

- 

 

- 

 

- 

 

1,330 

 

1,104 

 

2,456 

Total D ebtors 1 7 14 1,330 1,104 2,456 

       

Borrow ings       

Financial liabilities at 

am ortised cost 

 

- 

 

- 

 

- 

 

- 

 

- 

 

- 

Financial liabilities at fair 

value through profit and loss 

 

- 

 

- 

 

- 

 

- 

 

- 

 

- 

Total Borrow ings - - - - - - 

       

O ther Liabilities       

Finance lease liabilities (295) (473) (434) (178) (166) (122) 

Total O ther Liabilities (295) (473) (434) (178) (166) (122) 

       

Creditors       

Financial liabilities at 

am ortised cost 

 

- 

 

- 

 

- 

 

- 

 

- 

 

- 

Financial liabilities carried 

at contract am ount 

 

- 

 

- 

 

- 

 

2,907 

 

2,817 

 

2,794 

Total Creditors - - - 2,907 2,817 2,794 

       

 

Fair value of Assets and Liabilities 

 

 Fair value H istoric cost 

 31 M arch 

2012 

£000 

31 M arch 

2011 

£000 

31 M arch 

2010  

£’000 

31 M arch 

2012 

£000 

31 M arch 

2011 

£000 

31 M arch 

2010 

£’000 

       

Loans and receivables 5,533 9,529 10,094 5,533 9,527 10,076 

       

       

 

There is no difference betw een the carrying value and fair value of the Authority’s 

debtors and creditors. M inim um  future lease paym ents are disclosed in note 37. 

 

 

 

Page 48



N O TES TO  TH E ACCO U N TS 
 

 
48

 

17. IN VEN TO R IES 

 

 Consum able 

Stores 

Client 

Services W ork 

in 

Progress 

Property 

Acquired or 

Constructed 

 for Sale 

Total 

 

2
0
1
1
/1
2
 

£
0
0
0
 

2
0
1
0
/1
1
 

£
0
0
0
 

2
0
1
1
/1
2
 

£
0
0
0
 

2
0
1
0
/1
1
 

£
0
0
0
 

2
0
1
1
/1
2
 

£
0
0
0
 

2
0
1
0
/1
1
 

£
0
0
0
 

2
0
1
1
/1
2
 

£
0
0
0
 

2
0
1
0
/1
1
 

£
0
0
0
 

Balance outstanding 

at start of year 

75 87 - - - - 75 87 

Purchases 426 396 - - - - 426 396 

Recognised as an expense 

in the year  

(407) (408) - - - - (407) (408) 

W ritten off balances - - - - - - - - 

Reversals of write-offs in 

previous years 

- - - - - - - - 

Balance outstanding 

at year-end 

94 75 - - - - 94 75 

         

 

18. C O N STR U C TIO N  CO N TR AC TS 

 

As at the 31 M arch 2012 the Authority had no significant contracts in progress. 

 

19. D EB TO R S 

 

 31 M arch 2012 

£000 

31 M arch 2011 

£000 

1 April 2010 

£’000 

Central governm ent bodies 727 205 1,533 

O ther local authorities 98 156 252 

N H S Bodies - - - 

Public corporations and trading funds  - - - 

O ther entities and individuals 643 743 671 

Total 1,468 1,104 2,456 

 

20. C ASH  AN D  C ASH  EQ U IVALEN TS 

 

The balance of cash and cash equivalents is m ade up of the follow ing elem ents 

 

 31 M arch 2012 

£000 

31 M arch 2011 

£’000 

1 April 2010 

£’000 

Cash held by the Council 88 153 145 

Bank current account 115 (263) 209 

Special Interest Bearing Account 70 40 370 

Total Cash and Cash Equivalents 273 (70) 724 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

Page 49



N O TES TO  TH E ACCO U N TS 
 

 
49

21. ASSETS H ELD  FO R  SALE 

 

 Current N on Current 

 2011/12 

£000 

2010/11 

£000 

2011/12 

£000 

2010/11 

£000 

Balance outstanding at start of year - 160 - - 

     

Assets newly classified as held for sale:     

Property, Plant and equipm ent - - - - 

Intangible Assets - - - - 

     

Revaluation losses - - - - 

Revaluation gains - - - - 

Im pairm ent losses - - - - 

     

Assets declassified as held for sale:     

Property, Plant and equipm ent - - - - 

Intangible Assets - - - - 

     

Assets sold - (160) - - 

Transfers from  non-current to current - - - - 

     

Balance outstanding at year end - - - - 

     

 

22. C R ED ITO R S 

 

 31 M arch 2012 

£000 

31 M arch 2011 

£000 

1 April 2010 

£’000 

Central governm ent bodies 199 677 331 

O ther local authorities 625 335 530 

Public corporations and trading funds  - - - 

O ther entities and individuals 2,083 1,805 1,933 

Total 2,907 2,817 2,794 

 

23. PR O VISIO N S 

 

There are no significant events that have taken place that w ould give the Authority a 

legal or constructive obligation to provide any m aterial provision for the financial 

year ending 31 M arch 2012 (31 M arch 2011 £nil).  

 

24. U SAB LE R ESER VES 

 

1 April 2010 

 

£’000 

31 M arch 

2011 

£000 

 31 M arch 

2012 

£000 

5,302 5,195 Earm arked G eneral Fund Reserves 4,250 

5,155 2,652 Capital Receipts Reserve 127 

154 57 Capital G rants U napplied - 

10,611 7,904 Total U sable R eserves 4,377 

 

M ovem ents in the Authority’s usable reserves are detailed in the M ovem ent in 

Reserves Statem ent. 

 

Earm arked G eneral Fund R eserves 

 

D etails of the m ovem ents w ithin the individual earm arked reserves are show n in note 

8, together with an explanation of the purpose of each reserve. 

Page 50



N O TES TO  TH E ACCO U N TS 
 

 
50

 

C apital R eceipts R eserve 

 

2010/11 

£000 

 2011/12 

£000 

5,155 Balance at 1 April 2,652 

20 Receipts from  disposal of non-current assets - 

6 O ther receipts 36 

5,181  2,688 

(2,529) Receipts used to finance capital expenditure (2,561) 

2,652 B alance at 31 M arch 127 

 

The Capital Receipts Reserve holds cash received from  the disposal of non-current 

assets, or other m oney received that can be applied tow ards financing capital 

expenditure or repay loan debt. 

 

C apital G rants U napplied 

 

2010/11 

£000 

 2011/12 

£000 

154 Balance at 1 April 57 

- Reversal of grants credited to the Com prehensive 

Incom e and Expenditure Statem ent but 

expenditure has not been incurred 

- 

154  57 

(97) G rants used to finance capital expenditure (57) 

57 B alance at 31 M arch - 

 

This reserve retains the receipts of grants and contributions from  central governm ent 

and other funding organisations available to finance capital expenditure and w ill be 

applied to fund relevant projects in future years.  

 

25. U N U SAB LE R ESER VES 

 

1 April 

2010 

£’000 

31 M arch 

2010 

£000 

 31 M arch 

2011 

£000 

3,200 3,953 Revaluation Reserve 3,610 

 

- 

 

- 

Available for Sale Financial Instrum ents 

Reserve 

 

- 

13,157 12,897 Capital Adjustm ent Account 14,304 

- - Financial Instrum ents Adjustm ’t Account - 

- - D eferred Capital Receipts Reserve - 

(23,814) (18,833) Pensions Reserve (22,785) 

55 38 Collection Fund Adjustm ent Account 57 

(117) (122) Accum ulated Absences Account (111) 

(7,519) (2,067) Total U nusable R eserves (4,925) 

 

R evaluation R eserve 

 

The Revaluation Reserve contains the gains m ade by the Authority arising from  

increases in the value of its Property Plant and Equipm ent (and intangible assets). 

The balance is reduced w hen assets w ith accum ulated gains are: 

 

• revalued dow nw ards or im paired and the gains are lost; 
• used in the provision of services and the gains are consum ed through depreciation; 

Page 51



N O TES TO  TH E ACCO U N TS 
 

 
51

or  

• disposed of and the gains are realised. 
 

The Reserve contains only revaluation gains accum ulated since 1 April 2007, the date 

that the Reserve w as created. Accum ulated gains arising before that date are 

consolidated into the balance on the Capital Adjustm ent Account. 

 

2010/11 

£000 

  

£000 

2011/12 

£000 

3,200 B alance at 1 April  3,953 

- U pw ard revaluation of assets -  

- D ow nw ard revaluation of assets and im pairm ent losses not 

charged to the Surplus/D eficit on the Provision of Services 

(262)  

    

3,200 Surplus or deficit on revaluation of non-current assets not 

posted to the Surplus or D eficit on the Provision of Services 

 (262) 

    

(75) D ifference betw een fair value depreciation and historical 

cost depreciation 

(81)  

(20) Accum ulated gains on assets sold or scrapped -  

848 Adjustm ent to reclassify prior year im pairm ent to the 

Capital Adjustm ent Account 

-  

753 Am ount w ritten off to the Capital Adjustm ent Account  (81) 

    

3,953 B alance at 31 M arch  3,610 

 

Available for Sale Financial Instrum ents R eserve 

 

The Authority has not entered into any available-for-sale asset arrangem ents during 

the financial year. 

 

C apital Adjustm ent Account 

 

The Capital Adjustm ent Account absorbs the tim ing differences arising from  the 

different arrangem ents for accounting for the consum ption of non-current assets and 

for financing the acquisition, construction or enhancem ent of those assets under 

statutory provisions. The Account is debited with the cost of acquisition, construction 

or enhancem ent as depreciation, im pairm ent losses and am ortisations are charged to 

the Com prehensive Incom e and Expenditure Statem ent (w ith reconciling postings 

from  the Revaluation Reserve to convert fair value figures to a historical cost basis). 

The Account is credited w ith the am ounts set aside by the Authority as finance for the 

costs of acquisition, construction and enhancem ent.  

 

The Account contains accum ulated gains and losses on Investm ent Properties and 

gains recognised on donated assets that have yet to be consum ed by the Council. 

 

The Account also contains revaluation gains accum ulated on Property, Plant and 

Equipm ent before 1 April 2007, the date that the Revaluation Reserve w as created to 

hold such gains. 

 

N ote 7 provides details of the source of all transactions posted to the Account, apart 

from  those involving the Revaluation Reserve. 

 

 

  

Page 52



N O TES TO  TH E ACCO U N TS 
 

 
52

 

2010/11 

£000 

 

£’000 

2011/12 

£000 

13,157 B alance at 1 April  12,897 

 Reversal of item s relating to capital expenditure debited or 

credited to the Com prehensive Incom e and Expenditure 

Statem ent: 

  

(609) • Charges for depreciation and im pairm ent of non-current 
assets 

(608)  

- • Revaluation losses on Property, Plant and Equipm ent -  

(174) • Am ortisation of Intangible Assets (208)  

(160) • Am ounts of non-current assets w ritten off on disposal or 
sale as part of the gain/loss on disposal to the 

Com prehensive Incom e and Expenditure Statem ent 

  

(2,296) • Revenue Expenditure Funded by Capital U nder Statute (2,465)  

(3,239)   (3,281) 

(753) Adjusting am ounts w ritten out of the Revaluation Reserve  81 

9,165 N et w ritten out am ount of the cost of non-current assets 

consum ed in the year 

 9,697 

    

 Capital financing applied in the year:   

2,529 • U se of the capital receipts reserve to finance new  capital 
expenditure 

2,561  

606 • Capital grants and contributions credited to the 
Com prehensive Incom e and Expenditure Statem ent that 

has been applied to capital financing 

413  

98 • Application of grants to capital financing from  the Capital 
G rants U napplied Account 

57  

170 • Statutory provision for the financing of capital 
investm ent charged against the G eneral fund 

166  

336 • Capital expenditure charged against the G eneral Fund 1,447  

3,739   4,644 

- M ovem ents in the m arket value of Investm ent Properties 

debited or credited to the Com prehensive Incom e and 

Expenditure Statem ent 

 (31) 

- M ovem ents in the D onated Assets Account credited to the 

Com prehensive Incom e and Expenditure Statem ent 

 - 

(7) M ovem ents in Long-term  D ebtors   (6) 

12,897 B alance at 31 M arch  14,304 

    

 

Financial Instrum ents Adjustm ent Accounts   

 

The Financial Instrum ents Adjustm ent Account absorbs the tim ing differences 

arising from  different arrangem ents for accounting for incom e and expenses relating 

to certain financial instrum ents and for bearing losses or benefiting from  gains per 

statutory provisions.  The account has a very sm all balance that relates to a soft loan 

arrangem ent w ith the M ilton Room s M anagem ent Com m ittee. 

 

Pensions R eserve 

 

The Pensions Reserve absorbs the tim ing differences arising from  the different 

arrangem ents for accounting for post em ploym ent benefits and for funding benefits in 

accordance w ith statutory provisions. The Authority’s accounts for post em ploym ent 

benefits in the Com prehensive Incom e and Expenditure Statem ent as the benefits are 

earned by em ployees accruing years of service, updating the liabilities recognised to 

Page 53



N O TES TO  TH E ACCO U N TS 
 

 
53

reflect inflation, changing assum ptions and investm ent returns on any resources set 

aside to m eet the costs. H ow ever, statutory arrangem ents require benefits earned to 

be financed as the Authority m akes em ployer’s contributions to the pension fund or 

eventually pays any pensions for w hich it is directly responsible. The debit balance on 

the Pensions Reserve therefore show s a substantial shortfall in the benefits earned by 

past and current em ployees and the resources the Authority has set aside to m eet 

them . The statutory arrangem ents w ill ensure that funding w ill have been set aside 

by the tim e the benefits com e to be paid. 

 

2010/11 

£000 

 2011/12 

£000 

(23,814) Balance at 1 April (18,833) 

   

2,915 Actuarial gains or losses on pensions assets and liabilities (3,414) 

   

803 Reversal of item s relating to retirem ent benefits D ebited or 

Credited to the surplus or deficit on the Provision of Services in 

the Com prehensive Incom e and Expenditure Statem ent 

(1,721) 

   

1,263 Em ployer’s pensions contributions and direct paym ents to 

pensioners payable in the year 

1,183 

   

(18,833) Balance at 31 M arch (22,785) 

 

D eferred C apital R eceipts R eserve  

 

The D eferred Capital Receipts Reserve holds the gains recognised on the disposal of 

non-current assets but for w hich cash settlem ent has yet to take place. U nder 

statutory arrangem ents, the Authority w ould not treat these gains as usable for the 

financing of new  capital expenditure until they are by cash receipts. W hen the 

deferred cash settlem ent eventually takes place, am ounts are transferred to the 

Capital Receipts Reserve. 

 

There w ere no gains during the 2011/12 financial year. 

 

C ollection Fund Adjustm ent Account 

 

The Collection Fund Adjustm ent Account m anages the differences arising from  the 

recognition of council tax incom e in the Com prehensive Incom e and Expenditure 

Statem ent as it falls due from  council tax payers com pared w ith the statutory 

arrangem ents for paying across am ounts to the G eneral Fund from  the Collection 

Fund.  

 

2010/11 

£000 

 2011/12 

£000 

55 Balance at 1 April 38 

   

(17) Am ount by w hich council tax incom e credited to the 

Com prehensive Incom e and Expenditure Statem ent is different 

from  council tax incom e calculated for the year in accordance w ith  

statutory requirem ents  

19 

   

38 Balance at 31 M arch 57 

 

  

Page 54



N O TES TO  TH E ACCO U N TS 
 

 
54

Accum ulated Absences Account 

 

The Accum ulated Absences Account absorbs the differences that would otherw ise 

arise on the G eneral Fund Balance from  accruing for com pensated absences earned 

but not taken in the year, e.g. annual leave entitlem ent carried forw ard at 31 M arch. 

Statutory arrangem ents require that the im pact on the General Fund Balance is 

neutralised by transfers to or from  the Account. 

 

2010/11 

£000 

  

£000 

2011/12 

£000 

(117) Balance at 1 April  (122) 

    

117 Settlem ent or cancellation of accrual m ade at the end of 

the preceding year 

122  

(122) Am ount accrued at the end of the current year (111)  

(5) Am ount by w hich officer rem uneration charged to the 

Com prehensive Incom e and Expenditure Statem ent on 

an accruals basis is different from  rem uneration 

chargeable in the year in accordance w ith statutory 

requirem ents 

 11 

    

(122) Balance at 31 M arch  (111) 

 

26. C ASH  FLO W  STATEM EN T – AD JU ST N ET SU R PLU S O R  D EFIC IT O N  TH E 

PR O VISIO N  O F SER VICES FO R  N O N -C ASH  M O VEM EN TS 

 

2010/11 

£000 

 2011/12 

£000 

(609) D epreciation (608) 

(849) Im pairm ent and dow nw ard valuations - 

(173) Am ortisation (209) 

(17) Increase / decrease in im pairm ent for bad debts (16) 

(106) Increase / decrease in Creditors 76 

(1,325) Increase / decrease in D ebtors 294 

(12) Increase / decrease in Stock 19 

2,066 Increase / decrease in pension liability (538) 

(161) Carrying am ount of non-current assets and non-current assets 

held for sale, sold or derecognised 

0 

(17) O ther non-cash item s charged to the net surplus or deficit on the 

provision of services 

(228) 

(1,203)  (1,210) 

 

27. C ASH  FLO W  STATEM EN T – O PER ATIN G  AC TIVITIES 

 

The cash flows for operating activities include the follow ing item s: 

 

2010/11 

£000 

 2011/12 

£000 

(128) Interest received (137) 

42 Interest paid 43 

- D ividends received - 

   

 

  

Page 55



N O TES TO  TH E ACCO U N TS 
 

 
55

 

28. C ASH  FLO W  STATEM EN T – IN VESTIN G  AC TIVITIES 

 

2010/11 

£000 

 2011/12 

£000 

1,273 Purchase of property, plant and equipm ent, investm ent property 

and intangible assets 

2,013 

39,800 Purchase of short-term  and long-term  investm ents 26,000 

- O ther paym ents for investing activities - 

(20) Proceeds from  the sale of property, plant and equipm ent, 

investm ent property and intangible assets   

- 

(40,349) Proceeds from  short-term  and long-term  investm ents (29,994) 

(613) O ther receipts from  investing activities (449) 

   

91 N et cash flow s from  investing activities (2,430) 

 

29. C ASH  FLO W  STATEM EN T – FIN AN C IN G  AC TIVITIES 

 

2010/11 

£000 

 2011/12 

£000 

- Cash receipts of short and long term  borrow ing - 

(45) O ther receipts from  financing activities (421) 

170 Cash paym ents for the reduction of the outstanding liabilities 

relating to finance leases 

166 

- Repaym ents of short and long-term  borrow ing - 

137 O ther paym ents for financing activities 394 

   

262 N et cash flow s from  financing activities 139 

 

30. AM O U N TS R EPO R TED  FO R  R ESO U R C E ALLO CATIO N S D ECISIO N S 

 

The analysis of incom e and expenditure by service on the face of the Com prehensive 

Incom e and Expenditure Statem ent is that specified by the Service Reporting Code of 

Practice. H ow ever, decisions about resource allocation are taken by the Authority’s 

com m ittees on the basis of budget reports. These reports are prepared on a different 

basis from  the accounting policies used in the financial statem ents. In particular: 

 

• N o charges are m ade in relation to capital expenditure (w hereas depreciation, 

revaluation and im pairm ent losses in excess of the balance on the Revaluation 

Reserve and am ortisations are charged to services in the Com prehensive Incom e 

and Expenditure Statem ent). 

• The cost of retirem ent benefits is based on cash flow s (paym ent of em ployers 

pensions contributions) rather than current service cost of benefits accrued in the 

year. 

  

Page 56



N O TES TO  TH E ACCO U N TS 
 

 
56

 

2011/12 

 

 Com m issioning 

 Board 

Policy &   

Resources 

Total 

Com m ittee Incom e and Expenditure 

 

£000 £000 £000 

Fees, charges &  other service incom e 2,870 796 3,666 

G overnm ent grants 502 15,167 15,669 

Total Incom e 3,372 15,963 19,335 

    

Em ployee expenses 3,188 2,232 5,420 

O ther service expenses 3,400 17,701 21,101 

Support service recharges 1,004 1,237 2,241 

Total Expenditure 7,592 21,170 28,762 

    

N et Expenditure 4,220 5,207 9,427 

    

 

2010/11 C om parative Figures 

 

 Com m issioning 

 Board 

Policy &   

Resources 

Total 

Com m ittee Incom e and Expenditure 

 

£000 £000 £000 

Fees, charges &  other service incom e 2,740 965 3,705 

G overnm ent grants 690 14,818 15,508 

Total Incom e 3,430 15,783 19,213 

    

Em ployee expenses 3,260 2,425 5,685 

O ther service expenses 5,036 16,096 21,132 

Support service recharges 1,088 1,378 2,466 

Total Expenditure 9,384 19,899 29,283 

    

N et Expenditure 5,954 4,116 10,070 

    

 

R econciliation of Incom e and Expenditure to the C ost of Services in the 

C om prehensive Incom e and Expenditure Statem ent 

 

This reconciliation show s how  the figures in the analysis of com m ittee incom e and 

expenditure relate to the am ounts included in the Com prehensive Incom e and 

Expenditure Statem ent. 

 

 2011/12 2010/11 

 £000 £000 

N et expenditure in the Com m ittee Analysis 9,427 10,070 

   

N et expenditure of service and support services not included 

in the Analysis 

- - 

Am ounts in the Com prehensive Incom e and Expenditure 

Statem ent not reported to m anagem ent in the Analysis 

451 (1,884) 

Am ounts included in the Analysis not included in the 

Com prehensive Incom e and Expenditure Statem ent 

- - 

C ost of Services in C om prehensive Incom e and 

Expenditure Statem ent 

9,878 8,186 

Page 57



N O TES TO  TH E ACCO U N TS 
 

 
57

  

Page 58



N O TES TO  TH E ACCO U N TS 
 

 
58

 

R econciliation to Subjective Analysis 

 

This reconciliation show s how  the figures in the analysis of com m ittee incom e and 

expenditure relate to a subjective analysis of the Surplus or D eficit on the Provision of 

Services included in the Com prehensive Incom e and Expenditure Statem ent. 

 

2011/12 

 

 Com m ittee 

 Analysis 

Am ounts not 

Reported to 

M anagem ent 

for 

D ecision 

M aking 

Cost of 

Services 

Corporate 

Am ounts 

Total 

 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 

Fees, charges &  other 

service incom e 

3,666 - 3,666 - 3,666 

Surplus or deficit on 

associates and joint 

ventures 

- - - - - 

Interest and investm ent 

incom e 

- - - 126 126 

Incom e from  council tax - - - 7,175 7,175 

G overnm ent grants and 

contributions 

15,669 - 15,669 1,246 16,915 

Total Incom e 19,335 - 19,335 8,547 27,882 

      

Em ployee expenses 5,420 (141) 5,279 - 5,279 

O ther service expenses 21,101 - 21,101 - 21,101 

Support service 

recharges 

2,241 - 2,241 - 2,241 

D epreciation, 

am ortisation and 

im pairm ent 

- 592 592 - 592 

Interest paym ents - - - 768 768 

Precepts &  levies - - - 640 640 

G ain or loss on disposal 

of non-current assets 

- - - - - 

Capital receipts 

unattached to non-

current assets 

- - - (30) (30) 

Total Expenditure 28,762 451 29,213 1,378 30,591 

      

Surplus or D eficit on 

the Provision of 

Services 

9,427 451 9,878 (7,169) 2,709 

      

 

 

 

 

 

Page 59



N O TES TO  TH E ACCO U N TS 
 

 
59

 

 

2010/11 C om parative Figures 

 

 Com m ittee 

 Analysis 

Am ounts not 

Reported to 

M anagem ent 

for 

D ecision 

M aking 

Cost of 

Services 

Corporate 

Am ounts 

Total 

 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 

Fees, charges &  other 

service incom e 

3,705 - 3,705 - 3,705 

Surplus or deficit on 

associates and joint 

ventures 

- - - - - 

Interest and investm ent 

incom e 

- - - 140 140 

Incom e from  council tax - - - 8,329 8,329 

G overnm ent grants and 

contributions 

15,508 - 15,508 634 16,142 

Total Incom e 19,213 - 19,213 9,103 28,316 

      

Em ployee expenses 5,685 (3,042) 2,643 - 2,643 

O ther service expenses 21,132 - 21,132 - 21,132 

Support service 

recharges 

2,466 - 2,466 - 2,466 

D epreciation, 

am ortisation and 

im pairm ent 

- 1,158 1,158 - 1,158 

Interest paym ents - - - 1,156 1,156 

Precepts &  levies - - - 638 638 

G ain or loss on disposal 

of non-current assets 

- - - 141 141 

Capital receipts 

unattached to non-

current assets 

- - - - - 

Total Expenditure 29,283 (1,884) 27,399 1,935 29,334 

      

Surplus or D eficit on 

the Provision of 

Services 

10,070 (1,884) 8,186 (7,168) 1,018 

      

 

  

Page 60



N O TES TO  TH E ACCO U N TS 
 

 
60

31. M EM BER S ALLO W AN CES 

 

The Authority paid the follow ing am ounts to m em bers of the Authority during the 

year: 

 

 2011/12 

£000 

2010/11 

£000 

Allow ances 123 123 

Expenses 11 11 

   

Total 134 134 

 

A sum m ary of paym ents m ade to each m em ber is publicised through the Authority’s 

w ebsite and is also available for view ing at the reception of the adm inistrative offices. 

 

32. O FFICER S R EM U N ER ATIO N  

 

The rem uneration paid to the Authority’s senior em ployees is as follows: 

 

Job Title Year Salary, fees 

and 

allowances 

Bonuses Expenses 

allowances 

Com pen- 

sation 

 for loss of 

office 

Pension 

contribution 

Total 

  £ £ £ £ £ £ 

Chief Executive 2011/12 104,460 - 5,505 - 22,459 132,424 

        

 2010/11 104,460 - 5,505 - 21,101 131,066 

Corporate 

Director (s151) 

2011/12 70,000 - 1,239 - 15,050 86,289 

 2010/11 70,000 - 1,239 - 14,140 85,379 

Corporate 

Director 

2011/12 - - - - - - 

 2010/11 62,649 - 5,766 40,586 12,560 121,561 

 

The Authority’s em ployees receiving m ore than £50,000 rem uneration for the year 

(excluding em ployer’s pension contributions) were paid the follow ing am ounts: 

 

Rem uneration Band 2011/12 2010/11 

 N um ber of em ployees N um ber of em ployees 

£50,000 - £54,999 3 6 

£55,000 - £59,999 3 1 

£60,000 - £64,999 - - 

£65,000 - £69,999 - - 

£70,000 - £74,999 1 1 

£75,000 - £79,999 1 - 

£80,000 - £84,999 - - 

£85,000 - £89,999 - - 

£90,000 - £94,999 - - 

£95,000 - £99,999 - - 

£100,000 - £104,999 - - 

£105,000 - £109,999 1 2 

 

  

Page 61



N O TES TO  TH E ACCO U N TS 
 

 
61

33. EXTER N AL AU D IT CO STS 

 

The Authority has incurred the follow ing costs in relation to the audit of the 

Statem ent of Accounts, certification of grant claim s and statutory inspections and to 

non-audit services provided by the Authority’s external auditors: 

 

 2011/12 

£’000 

2010/11 

£’000 

* Fees payable to D eloitte LLP w ith regard to external audit 

services carried out by the appointed auditor for the year 

 

84 

 

89 

* Fees payable to D eloitte LLP in respect of statutory inspections - - 

* Fees payable to D eloitte LLP  for the certification of grant 

claim s and returns for the year 

33 22 

* Fees payable in respect of other services provided by D eloitte 

LLP during the year 

- 2 

 117 113 

 

The fees for other services payable in 2010/11 related to professional fees for 

additional challenge w ork, follow ing the receipt of an elector’s question. 

 

34. G R AN T IN CO M E 

 

The Authority credited the follow ing grants, contributions and donations to the 

Com prehensive Incom e and Expenditure Statem ent in 2011/12:  

 

 2011/12 2010/11 

 £000 £000 

C redited to Taxation and N on Specific G rant Incom e:   

Revenue Support G rant 850 573 

N ew  H om es Bonus  250 - 

Council Tax Freeze G rant 94 - 

Area Based G rant - 23 

O ther G rants 52 38 

Total 1,246 634 

   

C redited to Services:   

G overnm ent G rants:   

D isabled Facilities G rant 224 204 

Regional H ousing Board Pot - 229 

H ousing Benefit Subsidy 11,231 10,580 

Council Tax Benefit Subsidy 3,374 3,350 

H ousing Benefit &  Council Tax Benefit Adm inistration 310 325 

H om elessness 85 61 

Concessionary Fares - 235 

Safer Stronger Com m unities 30 44 

Personal Search Fee s31  - 34 

O ther governm ent grants 58 104 

N on G overnm ent G rants:   

Flood D efence G rant 67 - 

Recycling 54 34 

O ther grants 43 108 

Total 15,476 15,308 

   

C ontributions 129 160 

   

 

Page 62



N O TES TO  TH E ACCO U N TS 
 

 
62

  

Page 63



N O TES TO  TH E ACCO U N TS 
 

 
63

The Authority is required to disclose any grants, contributions or donations that have 

yet to be recognised as incom e as they have conditions attached to them  that w ill 

require the m onies or property to be returned to the giver. As at the 31 M arch 2012 

the Authority held a balance of £137,556 (31 M arch 2011 £N il) in Revenue G rants 

Receipts in Advance relating to the Ryedale Flood D efence Schem es. 

 

35. R ELATED  PAR TIES 

 

The Authority is required to disclose m aterial transactions w ith related parties – 

bodies or individuals that have the potential to control or influence the Authority or 

to be controlled or influenced by the council. D isclosure of these transactions allows 

readers to assess the extent to w hich the Authority m ight have been constrained in 

its ability to operate independently or m ight have secured the ability to lim it another 

party’s ability to bargain freely w ith the Council.  

 

C entral G overnm ent 

 

Central governm ent has effective control over the general operations of the Authority 

– it is responsible for providing the statutory fram ew ork w ithin w hich the Authority 

operates, provides the m ajority of its funding in the form  of grants and prescribes the 

term s of m any of the transactions that the Authority has with other parties, e.g. 

council tax bills, housing benefits. G rants received from  governm ent departm ents are 

set out in N ote 34.  

 

M em bers 

 

M em bers of the Authority have direct control over the Authority’s financial and 

operating policies. The total of m em bers’ allowances paid in 2011/12 is show n in N ote 

31. 

 

O fficers 

 

The Corporate D irector (Section 151), P D  Cressw ell, of Ryedale D istrict Council is a 

related party of the N orth Yorkshire Audit Partnership and the N orth Yorkshire 

Building Control Partnership by virtue of being a client officer. 

 

O ther Public B odies  

 

D uring the year transactions w ith related parties arose as follow s: 

 

 Receipts Paym ents 

 £’000 £’000 

Rye Internal D rainage Board - levy - 61 

Thornton Internal D rainage Board - levy - 14 

M uston &  Yedingham  Internal D rainage Board - levy - 2 

Foss Internal D rainage Board - levy - 1 

N orth Yorkshire Audit Partnership  see note below  (6) 56 

N orth Yorkshire Building Control Partnership see note below  (32) 57 

 

At the end of the financial year the total am ount due to and from  these related parties 

w as £nil. 

 

The N orth Yorkshire Audit Partnership provided an internal audit service for a 

num ber of local authorities in the region. Ryedale D istrict Council w as the host 

Page 64



N O TES TO  TH E ACCO U N TS 
 

 
64

authority and a full partner, other local authorities w ithin the Partnership being 

Scarborough BC, Selby D C, H am bleton D C and Richm ondshire D C. Ryedale D istrict 

Council’s proportion of the Partnership’s accum ulated surplus is £2,322 as at 31 

M arch 2012. The N orth Yorkshire Audit Partnership ceased to exist on 31 M arch 

2012 and, w ith effect from  1 April 2012, Veritau N orth Yorkshire Ltd w as form ed and 

w ill provide internal audit services to Ryedale and the other aforem entioned district 

councils. 

 

The N orth Yorkshire Building Control Partnership provides a building control service 

on behalf of five councils: Ryedale D C (host authority), Selby D C, H am bleton D C, 

Scarborough BC and Richm ondshire D C. Ryedale District Council’s proportion of the 

Partnership’s accum ulated surplus is £2,000 as at 31 M arch 2012. 

 

Entities C ontrolled or Significantly Influenced by the C ouncil 

 

Com m unity Leisure Ltd is an Industrial Provident Society initially set up to run the 

Authority’s leisure centre and sw im m ing pools. Paym ent of grant of £335,000 w as 

m ade to Com m unity Leisure Ltd to support the operation of the leisure facilities in 

2011/12. 

 

36. C APITAL EXPEN D ITU R E AN D  CAPITAL FIN AN CIN G  

 

The total am ount of capital expenditure incurred in the year is show n in the table 

below, together w ith the resources that have been used to finance it. W here capital 

expenditure is to be financed in future years by charges to revenue as assets are used 

by the Council, the expenditure results in an increase in the Capital Financing 

Requirem ent (CFR), a m easure of the capital expenditure incurred historically by the 

Authority that has yet to be financed. The CFR is analysed in the second part of this 

note. 

 

 2011/12 2010/11 

 £000 £000 

O pening Capital Financing Requirem ent 639 556 

   

Capital investm ent   

Property plant and equipm ent 1,869 871 

Investm ent properties 13 7 

Intangible assets 131 648 

Revenue expenditure funded from  capital under statute 2,465 2,296 

   

Sources of finance   

Capital receipts (2,561) (2,529) 

G overnm ent grants and other contributions (470) (704) 

Sum s set aside from  revenue   

D irect revenue contributions (1,447) (336) 

M inim um  Revenue Provision  (166) (170) 

Closing Capital Financing Requirem ent 473 639 

   

Explanation of m ovem ents in year   

   

D ecrease in underlying need to borrow ing (unsupported 

by governm ent financial assistance) 

(166) (170) 

Assets acquired under finance leases - 253 

   

Increase / (decrease) in Capital Financing Requirem ent (166) 83 

   

Page 65



N O TES TO  TH E ACCO U N TS 
 

 
65

 

37. LEASES 

 

Authority as Lessee – Finance Leases 

 

The Authority has acquired a num ber of vehicles under finance leases. 

 

This Authority is com m itted to m aking m inim um  paym ents under these leases 

com prising settlem ent of the long-term  liability for the interest in the vehicles 

acquired by the Authority and finance costs that w ill be payable by the Authority in 

future years w hile the liability rem ains outstanding. The m inim um  lease paym ents 

are m ade up of the follow ing am ounts: 

 

 31 M arch 2012 31 M arch 2011 

 £000 £000 

Finance lease liabilities (net present value of 

m inim um  lease paym ents) 

  

Current 178 166 

N on-current 295 473 

Finance costs payable in future years 61 105 

M inim um  lease paym ents 534 744 

 

The m inim um  lease paym ents w ill be payable over the following periods: 

 

 M inim um  lease 

paym ents 

Finance lease 

liabilities 

 31 M arch 

2012 

£000 

31 M arch 

2011 

£000 

31 M arch 

2012 

£000 

31 M arch 

2011 

£000 

N ot later than one year 210 210 178 166 

Later than one year and not later 

than five years 

 

324 

 

534 

 

295 

 

473 

Later than five years - - - - 

 534 744 473 639 

 

Authority as Lessee - O perating Leases 

 

The Authority norm ally acquires vehicles, plant and equipm ent using operating 

leases. The Authority also provides certain em ployees w ith lease vehicles under three 

year contract hire agreem ents. 

 

The future m inim um  lease paym ents due under non-cancellable leases in future years 

are: 

 

 31 M arch 2012 31 M arch 2011 

 £000 £000 

N ot later than one year 153 137 

Later than one year and not later than five years 104 187 

Later than five years - - 

 257 324 

 

  

Page 66



N O TES TO  TH E ACCO U N TS 
 

 
66

The expenditure charged to the Cost of Services line in the Com prehensive Incom e 

and Expenditure Statem ent during the year in relation to these leases w as: 

 

 2011/12 2010/11 

 £000 £000 

M inim um  lease paym ents 186 144 

Contingent rents - - 

Sublease paym ents receivable - - 

 186 144 

 

Authority as Lessor 

 

The Authority has not leased out property, vehicles or equipm ent under either 

finance lease or operating lease arrangem ents. 

 

38. IM PAIR M EN T LO SSES 

 

The Authority has no im pairm ent losses to report on revaluations m ade in 2011/12. 

 

39. TER M IN ATIO N  B EN EFITS 

 

The Authority has agreed to term inate the contracts of a num ber of em ployees in 

2011/12, incurring liabilities of £177,481. Voluntary redundancy paym ents w ill be 

m ade to 13 officers w ho leave as part of the Authority’s continued rationalisation of 

services.  The im plem entation of the relevant restructure com m enced in April 2012 

w ith officers scheduled to leave during the period from  M arch to July 2012 inclusive. 

 

The num ber of exit packages that have been agreed, accrued for and charged to the 

Authority’s Com prehensive Incom e and Expenditure Statem ent w ith total cost per 

band are set out in the table below: 

 

Exit 

package cost 

band 

(including 

special 

paym ents) 

N um ber of 

com pulsory 

redundancies 

N um ber of other 

departures agreed 

Total num ber of 

exit packages by 

cost band 

Total cost of exit 

packages in each 

band 

 2011/12 2010/11 2011/12 2010/11 2011/12 2010/11 2011/12 2010/11 

£0 - £20,000 - - 11 10 11 10 £94,555 £89,603 

£20,000 -  

£60,000 

- - 2 8 2 8 £82,926 £257,448 

Total - - 13 18 13 18 £177,481 £347,051 

 

40. D EFIN ED  BEN EFIT PEN SIO N  SC H EM ES 

 

Participation in Pension Schem es 

 

As part of the term s and conditions of em ploym ent of its officers, the authority m akes 

contributions tow ards the cost of post em ploym ent benefits. Although these benefits 

w ill not actually be payable until em ployees retire, the Authority has a com m itm ent 

to m ake the paym ents that need to be disclosed at the tim e that em ployees earn their 

future entitlem ent. The Authority participates in tw o post em ploym ent schem es: 

 

• The Local G overnm ent Pension Schem e, adm inistered by N orth Yorkshire 

County Council – this is a funded defined benefit final salary schem e, m eaning 
Page 67



N O TES TO  TH E ACCO U N TS 
 

 
67

that the authority and em ployees pay contributions into a fund, calculated at a 

level intended to balance the pensions liabilities w ith investm ent assets. 

 

• Arrangem ents for the aw ard of discretionary post retirem ent benefits upon early 

retirem ent – this is an unfunded defined benefit arrangem ent, under w hich 

liabilities are recognised w hen aw ards are m ade. H ow ever, there are no 

investm ent assets built up to m eet these pensions liabilities and cash has to be 

generated to m eet actual pensions paym ents as they eventually fall due.  

 

Transactions relating to retirem ent benefits 

 

W e recognise the cost of retirem ent benefits in the reported cost of services w hen they 

are earned by em ployees, rather than w hen the benefits are eventually paid as 

pensions. H ow ever, the charge w e are required to m ake against council tax is based 

on the cash payable in the year, so the real cost of post em ploym ent/retirem ent 

benefits is reversed out of the General Fund via the M ovem ents in Reserves 

Statem ent. The follow ing transactions have been m ade in the Com prehensive Incom e 

and Expenditure Statem ent and the G eneral Fund Balance via the M ovem ent in 

Reserves Statem ent during the year: 

 

 Local G overnm ent 

Pension Schem e 

D iscretionary 

Benefits 

Arrangem ents 

 2011/12 

£000 

2010/11 

£000 

2011/12 

£000 

2010/11 

£000 

Com prehensive Incom e and Expenditure 

Statem ent 

    

Cost of Services:     

• Current service cost 956 1,066 - - 

• Past service costs / (gains) - (3,085) - (34) 

• Settlem ents and curtailm ents 40 136 - - 

Financing and Investm ent Incom e and 

Expenditure 

    

• Interest cost 2,785 2,754 33 14 

• Expected return on schem e assets (2,093) (1,654) - - 

Total Post Em ploym ent Benefit Charged to the 

Surplus or D eficit on the Provision of Services 

1,688 (783) 33 (20) 

     

O ther Post Em ploym ent Benefit Charged to the 

Com prehensive Incom e and Expenditure 

Statem ent 

    

• Actuarial gains and losses 3,399 (2,915) 15 - 

Total Post Em ploym ent Benefit Charged to the 

Com prehensive Incom e and Expenditure 

Statem ent 

5,087 (3,698) 48 (20) 

     

M ovem ent in Reserves Statem ent     

• Reversal of net charges m ade to the Surplus 

or D eficit for the Provision of Services for post 

em ploym ent benefits in accordance w ith the 

Code 

(5,087) 3,698 (48) 20 

     

Actual am ount charged against the G eneral 

Fund Balance for pensions in the year: 

    

• Em ployers contributions payable to schem e  1,167 1,248   

• Retirem ent benefits payable to pensioners   16 15 

Page 68



N O TES TO  TH E ACCO U N TS 
 

 
68

     

 

The cum ulative am ount of actuarial gains and losses recognised in the 

Com prehensive Incom e and Expenditure Statem ent to the 31 M arch 2012 is a loss of 

£3.414m  (2010/11: £2.915m  gain). 

 

Assets and liabilities in relation to post em ploym ent benefits 

 

Reconciliation of present value of the schem e liabilities (defined benefit obligations). 

 
 

Funded liabilities: 

G overnm ent Pension 

Schem e 

U nfunded liabilities: 

D iscretionary 

Benefits 
 

 
2011/12 

£’000 

2010/11 

£’000 

2011/12 

£’000 

2010/11 

£’000 

O pening balance at 1 April 51,110 49,481 616 265 

Current service cost 956 1,066 - - 

Interest cost 2,785 2,754 33 14 

Contribution by schem e participants 342 365 - - 

Actuarial gains and losses 1,795 2,432 15 386 

Benefits paid (2,258) (2,039) (15) (15) 

Past service costs - (3,085) - (34) 

Entity com binations - - - - 

Curtailm ents 40 136 - - 

Settlem ents - - - - 

Closing balance at 31 M arch 
 

54,770 51,110 649 616 

 

Reconciliation of fair value of the schem e assets: 

 
 

 
2011/12 

£’000 

2010/11 

£’000 

O pening balance at 1 April 32,893 25,932 

Expected rate of return 2,093 1,654 

Actuarial gains and losses (1,604) 5,733 

Em ployer contributions 1,183 1,263 

Contributions by schem e participants 342 365 

Benefits paid (2,273) (2,054) 

Entity com binations - - 

Settlem ents - - 

Closing balance at 31 M arch 
 

32,634 32,893 

 

The expected return on schem e assets is determ ined by considering the expected 

returns available on the assets underlying the current investm ent policy. Expected 

yields on fixed interest investm ents are based on gross redem ption yields as at the 

Balance Sheet date. Expected returns on equity investm ents reflect long-term  real 

rates of return experienced in the respective m arkets. 

 

 

  

Page 69



N O TES TO  TH E ACCO U N TS 
 

 
69

Schem e history 

 

 31.03.12 31.03.11 31.03.10 31.03.09 31.03.08 

 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 

Present value of liabilities:      

Local G overnm ent Pension 

Schem e 

(54,770) (51,112) (49,483) (35,756) (41,918) 

D iscretionary Benefits (649) (616) (265) (221) (258) 

Fair value of assets in the 

Local G overnm ent Schem e 

32,634 32,895 25,934 16,370 25,056 

      

Surplus / (deficit) in the 

schem e: 

     

Local G overnm ent Pension 

Schem e 

(22,136) (18,217) (23,549) (19,386) (16,862) 

D iscretionary Benefits (649) (616) (265) (221) (258) 

Total (22,785) (18,833) (23,814) (19,607) (17,120) 

 

The liabilities show  the underlying com m itm ents that the authority has in the long 

term  to pay post em ploym ent (retirem ent) benefits. The total liability of £55.4m  has a 

substantial im pact on the net w orth of the authority as recorded in the Balance 

Sheet, resulting in a negative overall balance of £22.7m . H owever, statutory 

arrangem ents for funding the deficit m ean that the financial position of the authority 

rem ains healthy: 

 

• The deficit on the schem e will be m ade good by increased contributions over the 

rem aining w orking life of em ployees, i.e. before paym ents fall due, as assessed by 

the schem e actuary; and 

• Finance is only required to be raised to cover discretionary benefits w hen the 

pensions are actually paid. 

 

The total contributions expected to be m ade to the Local G overnm ent Pension 

Schem e by the Authority in the year to 31 M arch 2013 is £1.217m . Expected 

contributions for the D iscretionary Benefits schem e in the year to 31 M arch 2012 are 

£0.016m . 

 

B asis for estim ating assets and liabilities 

 

Liabilities have been assessed on an actuarial basis using the projected unit m ethod, 

an estim ate of the pensions that w ill be payable in future years dependent on 

assum ptions about m ortality rates, salary levels etc. Both the Local G overnm ent 

Pension Schem e and D iscretionary Benefits liabilities have been assessed by M ercer 

Lim ited an independent firm  of actuaries, estim ates for the fund being based on the full 

valuation of the schem e as at 31 M arch 2010. 

 

 

 

 

 

  

Page 70



N O TES TO  TH E ACCO U N TS 
 

 
70

The principal assum ptions used by the actuary have been: 

 

 31.03.12 31.03.11 

Long-term  expected rate return on assets in the schem e:   

Equity investm ents 7.0%  7.5%  

G overnm ent bonds 3.1%  4.4%  

O ther bonds 4.1%  5.1%  

Cash/liquidity 0.5%  0.5%  

O ther n/a n/a 

M ortality assum ptions:   

Longevity at 65 for current pensioners:   

M en  22.2 yrs 21.1 yrs 

W om en  24.8 yrs 24.7 yrs 

Longevity at 65 for future pensioners:   

M en  23.6 yrs 23.5 yrs 

W om en  26.4 yrs 26.3 yrs 

Rate of Inflation (CPI) 2.5%  2.9%  

Rate of increase in salaries 4.25%  4.65%  

Rate of increase in pensions 2.5%  2.9%  

Rate for discounting schem e liabilities 4.9%  5.5%  

Take-up of option to convert annual pension to retirem ent grant 50%  50%  

 

The Local G overnm ent Pension Schem e’s assets consist of the following categories, by 

proportion of the total assets held: 

 

  31.03.12 

%  

31.03.11 

%  

Equity Investm ents 70.8 74.7 

D ebt Instrum ents 28.4 24.8 

O ther Assets 0.8 0.5 

 100.0 100.0 

 

H istory of experience gains and losses 

 

The actuarial loss identified as m ovem ents on the Pension Reserve in 2011/12 can be 

analysed into the following categories, m easured as a percentage of assets or liabilities 

at 31 M arch 2012: 

 

 2011/12 

%  

2010/11 

%  

2009/10 2008/09 2007/08 

%  

      

Differences betw een the expected and 

actual return on assets 

4.9 16.3 31.8 64.9 9.5 

Experience gains and losses on 

liabilities 

0.0 5.6 0.0 0.0 5.2 

      

 

Further inform ation can be found in the N orth Yorkshire Pension Fund’s Annual 

Report that is available upon request from  Financial Services, County H all, 

N orthallerton, D L7 8AL. 

 

The Authority also m akes paym ents to the W est Yorkshire Superannuation Fund in 

respect of pension increases for form er authorities that am algam ated to form  

Ryedale.  This am ounted to £22,459 in 2011/12 (2010/11: £32,899). 

 

  

Page 71



N O TES TO  TH E ACCO U N TS 
 

 
71

41. C O N TIN G EN T LIAB ILITIES 

 

At 31 M arch 2012 the Authority had no m aterial contingent liabilities to report. 

 

42. C O N TIN G EN T ASSETS 

 

At 31 M arch 2012 the Authority had no m aterial contingent assets to report. 

 

43. N ATU R E AN D  EXTEN T O F R ISK S AR ISIN G  FR O M  FIN AN CIAL 

IN STR U M EN TS 

 

The Authority’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks: 

 

• Credit risk – the possibility that other parties m ight fail to pay am ounts due to the 
Authority; 

• Liquidity risk – the possibility that the Authority m ight not have funds available 
to m eet its com m itm ents to m ake paym ents; and 

• M arket risk – the possibility that financial loss m ight arise for the Authority as a 

result of changes in such m easures as interest rates m ovem ents. 

 

The Authority’s overall risk m anagem ent procedures focus on the unpredictability of 

financial m arkets and are structured to im plem ent suitable controls to m inim ise 

these risks. The procedures for risk m anagem ent are set out through a legal 

fram ew ork in the Local G overnm ent Act 2003 and associated regulations. These 

require the Authority to com ply w ith the CIPFA Prudential Code, the CIPFA Code of 

Practice on Treasury M anagem ent in the Public Services and Investm ent G uidance 

issued through the Act. O verall these procedures require the Authority to m anage 

risk in the following w ays: 

 

• By form ally adopting the requirem ents of the CIPFA Treasury M anagem ent 

Code of Practice; 

• By the adoption of a Treasury Policy Statem ent and treasury m anagem ent 

clauses w ithin its financial regulations, standing orders and constitution; 

• By approving annually in advance prudential and treasury indicators for the 

follow ing three years lim iting: 

o The councils overall borrow ing; 

o Its m axim um  and m inim um  exposures to fixed and variable rates; and 

o Its m axim um  and m inim um  exposures to the m aturity structure of its 

debt; and 

o Its m axim um  and annual exposures to investm ents m aturing beyond a 

year; and 

 

• By approving an investm ent strategy for the forthcom ing year setting out its 
criteria for both investing and selecting investm ent counterparties in 

com pliance w ith the G overnm ent G uidance. 

 

These are required to be reported and approved at or before the Authority’s annual 

Council Tax setting budget or before the start of the year to w hich they relate. These 

item s are reported w ith the annual treasury m anagem ent strategy w hich outlines the 

detailed approach to m anaging risk in relation to the Authority’s financial 

instrum ent exposure. Actual perform ance is also reported after each year, as is a 

m id-year update. 

 

Page 72



N O TES TO  TH E ACCO U N TS 
 

 
72

  

Page 73



N O TES TO  TH E ACCO U N TS 
 

 
73

C redit R isk 

 

Credit risk arises from  deposits w ith banks and financial institutions, as w ell as 

credit exposures to the Authority’s custom ers. 

 

This risk is m inim ised through the Annual Investm ent Strategy, w hich requires that 

deposits are not m ade w ith financial institutions unless they m eet m inim um  credit 

criteria, in accordance w ith the Fitch, M oody’s and Standard &  Poors Credit Ratings 

services. The Annual Investm ent Strategy also considers the m axim um  am ounts and 

tim e lim its in respect of each financial institution. D eposits are not m ade w ith banks 

and financial institutions unless they m eet the m inim um  requirem ents of the 

investm ent criteria outlined above. Additional selection criteria are also applied after 

this initial criteria is applied. 

 

This Authority uses the creditw orthiness service provided by its treasury advisers. 

This service uses a sophisticated m odelling approach w ith credit ratings from  all 

three rating agencies form ing the core elem ent. H ow ever, it does not rely solely on 

the current credit ratings of counterparties but also uses the following as overlays: 

 

• Credit w atches and credit outlooks from  credit rating agencies; 

• CD S spreads to give early w arning of likely changes in credit ratings; and 

• Sovereign ratings to select counterparties from  only the m ost creditw orthy 

countries 

 

The authority’s m axim um  exposure to credit risk in relation to its investm ents in 

banks and building societies of £2m  cannot be assessed generally as the risk of any 

institution failing to m ake interest paym ents or repay the principal sum  w ill be 

specific to each institution. Recent experience has show n that it is rare for such 

entities to be unable to m eet their com m itm ents. The risk of non recovery applies to 

all of the authority’s deposits but there is no evidence at 31 M arch 2012 that this w as 

likely to crystallise.  

 

Custom ers for goods and services are assessed, taking into account their financial 

position, past experience and other factors, w ith individual credit lim its being set in 

accordance w ith internal ratings in accordance w ith param eters set by the council.   

 

The follow ing analysis sum m arises the Authority’s potential m axim um  exposure to 

credit risk, based on experience of default and uncollectability in previous financial 

years, adjusted to reflect current m arket conditions. 

 

 Am ount 

at 31 

M arch 

2012 

 

 

 

H istorical 

Experience 

of D efault 

 

 

 

 

H istorical 

Experience 

adjusted for 

m arket 

conditions at 

31 M arch 2012 

 

Estim ated 

m axim um  

exposure to 

default and 

uncollectabi

lity at 31 

M arch 2012 

Estim ated 

m axim um  

exposure to 

default and 

uncollectab

ility at 31 

M arch2011 

 £’000 %  %  £000 £000 

D eposits w ith Banks and 

Financial Institutions 

5,533 0%  0%  0 0 

 

  

Page 74



N O TES TO  TH E ACCO U N TS 
 

 
74

Liquidity R isk 

 

The Authority has a com prehensive cash flow  m anagem ent system  that seeks to 

ensure that cash is available w hen needed.  If unexpected m ovem ents happen, the 

Authority has ready access to borrow ings from  the m oney m arkets and the Public 

W orks Loan Board.  There is no significant risk that it w ill be unable to raise finance 

to m eet its com m itm ents under financial instrum ents.  The authority currently has 

no borrow ings and all trade and other payables are due to be paid in less than one 

year. 

 

M arket R isk 

 

Interest Rate Risk 

 

The Authority is exposed to risk in term s of its exposure to interest rate m ovem ents 

on its borrow ings and investm ents.  M ovem ents in interest rates have a com plex 

im pact on the authority.  For instance, a rise in interest rates would have the 

follow ing effects: 

 

• borrow ings at variable rates – the interest expense charged to the Surplus or 
D eficit on the Provision of Services w ill rise; 

• borrow ings at fixed rates – the fair value of the liabilities borrow ings w ill fall; 
• investm ents at variable rates – the interest incom e credited to the Surplus or 

D eficit on the Provision of Services w ill rise; and 

• investm ents at fixed rates – the fair value of the assets w ill fall. 
 

Changes in interest payable and receivable on variable rate borrow ings and 

investm ents and investm ents w ill be posted to the Surplus or D eficit on the Provision 

of Services and affect the G eneral Fund Balance. M ovem ents in the fair value of fixed 

rate investm ents that have a quoted m arket price w ill be reflected in Other 

Com prehensive Incom e and Expenditure. 

 

The Authority has set an upper lim it of 20%  variable rate exposure to its 

investm ents. H ow ever, all investm ents are currently fixed rate, w hich helps to reduce 

uncertainty.  The authority continues to keep a proportion of its investm ents short 

term  to allow  for flexibility in interest rate m ovem ents. 

 

Price Risk 

 

The Authority does not generally invest in equity shares and is therefore not subject 

to any price risk, that is, the risk that the authority w ill suffer loss as a result of 

adverse m ovem ents in the price of financial instrum ents. 

 

Foreign Exchange Risk 

 

The Authority has no financial assets or liabilities denom inated in foreign currencies, 

therefore it has no exposure to loss arising as a result of adverse m ovem ents in 

exchange rates. 

 

 

 

 

  

Page 75



CO LLECTIO N  FU N D  STATEM EN T 

For the Year Ended 31 M arch 2012 

 
75

 

 

2010/11 

£’000 

  

£’000 

2011/12 

£’000 

 

N O TE 

     

 

 

(29,228) 

IN C O M E 

 

Council Tax 

 

 

 

 

 

(29,378) 

 

 

 

     

 

(3,327) 

 

(13,866) 

Transfers from  G eneral Fund 

- Council Tax Benefits 

 

Incom e collectable from  business ratepayers 

 

  

(3,335) 

 

(14,474) 

 

 

 

 

 

(46,421) Total Incom e  (47,187)  

 

 

 

 

22,452 

4,343 

1,319 

4,399 

52 

EXPEN D ITU R E 

 

Precepts and D em ands: 

N orth Yorkshire County Council 

N orth Yorkshire Police Authority 

N orth Yorkshire Fire &  Rescue 

Ryedale D istrict Council 

Street Lighting Expenses 

 

 

 

 

22,495 

4,351 

1,321 

4,407 

48 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

32,622 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

(3) 

     

     

 

13,739 

112 

15 

 

Business Rates: 

Paym ent to N ational Pool 

Costs of Collection Allow ance 

Allow ance for Losses 

 

 

14,317 

112 

45 

 

 

 

 

14,474 

 

(4) 

 

(5) 

 

110 Provision for non-paym ent of Council Tax  (50) (5) 

     

46,541 Total Expenditure  47,046  

     
     

120 (Surplus) / deficit for the year  (141)  

(398) Surplus at 1 April  (278)  

     

     

(278) Surplus at 31 M arch  (419)  

     

     

 

 

Page 76



N O TES O N  TH E CO LLECTIO N  FU N D  

 

 
76

 

1. G eneral 

 

 This statem ent represents the transactions of the Collection Fund, a statutory fund 

separate from  the G eneral Fund of the Council.  The Collection Fund accounts 

independently for incom e relating to Council Tax and N on-Dom estic rates on behalf of 

those bodies (including the Council’s ow n G eneral Fund) for w hom  the incom e has 

been raised. 

 

The Collection Fund accounts are consolidated w ith the other accounts of the Council. 

Transactions are prescribed by legislation and are prepared on the accruals basis.  The 

costs of adm inistering collection are accounted for in the G eneral Fund. 

 

The surplus or deficit on the Collection Fund at the end of the year is required to be 

distributed to or m ade good by contributions from  the Council, N orth Yorkshire 

County Council, N orth Yorkshire Police Authority and N orth Yorkshire Fire and 

Rescue Authority in a subsequent financial year.   

 

2. C ouncil Tax 

 

The Council Tax is a tax levied on all dom estic properties, in a proportion, w hich is 

determ ined by the valuation band allocated to a property. The Council Tax base, i.e. 

the num ber of chargeable dw ellings in each valuation band converted to an equivalent 

num ber of Band D dw ellings, w as calculated as follow s: 

 

Band N o 

of 

Properties 

Ratio Band D  

Equivalent 

D w ellings 

A 

B 

C 

D  

E 

F 

G  

H  

1,816 

5,130 

4,861 

3,741 

2,900 

1,815 

1,037 

93 

6/9 

7/9 

8/9 

1 

11/9 

13/9 

15/9 

18/9 

1,211 

3,990 

4,321 

3,741 

3,544 

2,621 

1,729 

186 

TO TAL 21,393  21,343 

Less adjustm ent for Collection Rate (320) 

Council Tax Base 21,023 

 

3. Precepts 

 

Precepts and dem ands for 2011/12 are analysed as follows: 
 

 Ryedale D C 

£’000 

N YCC 

£’000 

N YPA 

£’000 

N YFRA 

£’000 

 

2011/12 Precept/D em and 

Paym ent in respect of 2010/11 

surplus 

 

4,355 

52 

 

22,231 

264 

 

4,300 

51 

 

1,305 

16 

 

 4,407 22,495 4,351 1,321 

Page 77



N O TES O N  TH E CO LLECTIO N  FU N D  

 

 
77

 

The balance on the Collection Fund is available for funding the precept requirem ent 

for the authorities as follows: 

 

 £’000 

Ryedale D istrict Council 57 

N orth Yorkshire County Council 289 

N orth Yorkshire Police Authority 56 

N orth Yorkshire Fire &  Rescue Authority 17 

 

 

4. Incom e from  B usiness R ates 

 

The Authority collects business rates for its area, w hich are based on local rateable 

values m ultiplied by a uniform  rate. The total am ount, less certain reliefs and other 

deductions, is paid to a central pool (the N N D R pool) m anaged by central governm ent, 

w hich in turn pays back to authorities their share of the pool based on a standard 

am ount per head of the local adult population. U nder these arrangem ents the am ounts 

included in these accounts can be analysed as follows: 
 

 £’000 

N on-D om estic Rateable Value m ultiplied by the uniform  business rate (net of 

rateable value adjustm ents) 
 

Less net adjust. for Transitional Relief, Part O ccupancy, W rite-offs and 

Transitional Prem ium  

 

17,718 

 

 

(2,375) 

 15,343 

Less Charitable Relief (878) 

 14,465 

O ther adjustm ents including m aking provision for bad debts and interest 

paym ents m ade 
(148) 

 14,317 

 

Redistribution from  the N N D R Pool is credited to the G eneral Fund Sum m ary. 
 

5. B ad and D oubtful D ebts 

 

 The figures show  any m ovem ent on the provision for bad and doubtful debts. Provision 

has been m ade for Council Tax payers of £510,000 (2010/11: £560,000) and Business 

Ratepayers of £190,000 (2010/11: £145,000) and is included w ithin D ebtors in the 

Authority’s Balance Sheet. 
 

6. Statistics 
 

Additional inform ation is as follows: 

Total N ational N on D om estic Rateable Value in £’s at 31.03.12 

N D R Rate in £ for 2011/12 

Sm all Business Rate in £ for 2011/12 

N um ber of Business Prem ises (H ereditam ent) at 31.03.12 

N um ber of Council Tax Benefit claim ants at 31.03.12 

 

42,780,805 

43.3p 

42.6p 

2,787 

3,769 

 

Page 78



AN N U AL G O VER N AN CE STATEM EN T 2011/12 

 

 

 
78

 

1. Scope of R esponsibility 

 

The Authority is responsible for ensuring that its business is conducted in accordance w ith 

the law  and proper standards, and that public m oney is safeguarded and properly 

accounted for, and used econom ically, efficiently and effectively.  The Authority also has a 

duty under the Local G overnm ent Act 1999 to m ake arrangem ents to secure continuous 

im provem ent in the w ay in w hich its functions are exercised, having regard to a 

com bination of econom y, efficiency and effectiveness. 

 

In discharging this overall responsibility, the Authority is also responsible for putting in 

place proper arrangem ents for the governance of its affairs, facilitating the effective 

exercise of its functions, and w hich includes arrangem ents for the m anagem ent of risk. 

 

2. The Purpose of the G overnance Fram ew ork 

 

Corporate G overnance is the system  by w hich local authorities direct and control their 

functions and relate to their com m unities.  The fram ework for corporate governance 

recom m ended by the Chartered Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy (CIPFA) and 

the Society of Local Authority Chief Executives (SO LACE) identifies three underlying 

principles of good governance, nam ely: 

 

• O penness and Inclusivity 

• Integrity 

• Accountability 

 

The principles of corporate governance should be em bedded into the culture of each local 

authority. Furtherm ore each local authority has to be able to dem onstrate that it is 

com plying w ith these principles. To achieve this, the fram ew ork docum ent recom m ends 

that all local authorities should develop a local code of corporate governance, com prising 

the follow ing elem ents: 

 

• Com m unity Focus 

• Service D elivery Arrangem ents 

• Structures and Processes 

• Risk M anagem ent and Internal Control 

• Standards of Conduct 

 

The Authority has form ally adopted a local code of corporate governance, consequently the 

principles and standards contained in the fram ework docum ent are recognised as good 

w orking practice, and hence are supported and follow ed.  To this end both Officers and 

M em bers have had externally provided training to ensure governance arrangem ents are 

understood and em bedded.  This Statem ent form s part of the overall process within the 

Authority for m onitoring and reporting on the adequacy and effectiveness of the corporate 

governance arrangem ents, particularly those in respect of risk m anagem ent and internal 

control. 

 

The system  of internal control is designed to m anage risk to a reasonable level rather than 

to elim inate all risk of failure to achieve policies, aim s and objectives; it can therefore only 

provide reasonable and not absolute assurance of effectiveness. The system  of internal 

Page 79



AN N U AL G O VER N AN CE STATEM EN T 2011/12 

 

 

 
79

control is based on a continuous process designed to identify and prioritise the risks to the 

achievem ent of the Authority’s policies, aim s and objectives, to evaluate the likelihood of 

those risks being realised and the im pact should they be realised, and to m anage them  

efficiently, effectively and econom ically. This has been in place w ithin the Authority for the 

year ended 31 M arch 2012 and up to the date of approval of the Statem ent of Accounts. 

 

3. The G overnance Fram ew ork 

 

The requirem ent to have a governance fram ework, incorporating a sound system  of 

internal control covers all of the Authority’s activities. The internal control environm ent 

w ithin the Authority consists of a num ber of different key elem ents, which taken together 

contribute to the overall corporate governance fram ew ork. The key elem ents of internal 

control w ithin the Authority consist of 

 

Policies and G uidance 

 

Specific policies and w ritten guidance exist to support the corporate governance 

arrangem ents and include: 

 

• The Council’s Constitution, including Financial Regulations, Procurem ent 

Regulations and Contract Standing Orders 

• Codes of Conduct for M em bers and O fficers 

• The Corporate Plan 

• M edium  Term  Financial Plan 

• M em ber and O fficer Schem es of delegation 

• Registers of interests, gifts and hospitality 

• Corporate policies, for exam ple those relating to W histleblow ing and Counter 

Fraud and Corruption 

• Asset M anagem ent Plan/Capital Strategy Statem ent 

• Strategic Risk Register 

• Council Procurem ent Strategy 

 

Political and M anagerial Structures and Processes 

 

The Authority is responsible for agreeing overall policies and setting the budget.  The 

Policy and Resources Com m ittee and Com m issioning Board are responsible for decision 

m aking w ithin the policy and budget fram ew ork set by the Council. The Authority’s 

Corporate M anagem ent Team  has responsibility for im plem enting Authority’s policies and 

decisions, providing advice to M em bers and for co-ordinating the use of resources. The 

Corporate M anagem ent Team  m eet regularly and the Com m ittees usually every two 

m onths. Both the Com m ittees and the Corporate M anagem ent Team  m onitor and review 

Authority activity to ensure corporate com pliance w ith governance, legal and financial 

requirem ents. In addition, the Authority has scrutiny arrangem ents, through the O verview 

and Scrutiny Com m ittee that include the review  of policies, budgets and service delivery to 

ensure that they rem ain appropriate. This Com m ittee is also form ally designated as the 

Page 80



AN N U AL G O VER N AN CE STATEM EN T 2011/12 

 

 

 
80

Authority’s Audit Com m ittee. A forw ard plan detailing the m ain work of Com m ittees over 

the next year has been devised to ensure decisions are taken in a tim ely m anner.  U rgent 

item s w ill be debated as appropriate. 

 

The Authority has developed a process that is intended to reflect political and com m unity 

objectives as expressed in the Com m unity Strategy (“Im agine Ryedale”) and acts as a basis 

for corporate prioritisation. The process has identified the Authority’s corporate aim s 

together w ith a num ber of associated objectives. These w ill be review ed at appropriate 

intervals to ensure that they continue to m eet the needs of the com m unity. The Authority 

has linked the perform ance m anagem ent process across all service areas to provide an 

integrated perform ance m anagem ent system .  Each service has developed a perform ance 

im provem ent plan as part of their Service Delivery Plan showing how  that service w ill 

w ork to achieve the Authority’s objectives. 

 

Financial M anagem ent 

 

The Corporate D irector (s151 O fficer) has the overall statutory responsibility for the proper 

adm inistration of the Authority’s financial affairs, including m aking arrangem ents for 

appropriate system s of financial control. The Authority operates w ithin a system  of 

financial regulations, com prehensive budgetary control, regular m anagem ent inform ation, 

adm inistrative procedures (including the segregation of duties) and m anagem ent 

supervision. 

 

The Corporate D irector (s151 O fficer) is a m em ber of the Authority’s Corporate 

M anagem ent Team , and is directly responsible to the Chief Executive.  The Authority is 

therefore fully com pliant w ith the requirem ents of the 2010 CIPFA/SO LACE Application 

N ote to D elivering G ood G overnance. 

 

Com pliance Arrangem ents 

 

M onitoring and review  of the Authority’s activities is undertaken by a num ber of Officers 

and external regulators to ensure com pliance w ith relevant policies, procedures, laws and 

regulations.  They include: 

 

• The Chief Executive Officer 

• The Corporate D irector (s151) w ho is the s151 O fficer of the Authority and the 

Chief Finance O fficer (CFO ) 

• The M onitoring Officer 

• The External Auditor and various other external inspection agencies 

• Internal Audit (provided by the N orth Yorkshire Audit Partnership up to 31 

M arch 2012 and Veritau N orth Yorkshire Lim ited from  1 April 2012) 

• Finance O fficers and other relevant service m anagers 

 

 

Value For M oney 

 

Through review s by external auditors, external agencies, internal audit, the 

transform ation team , and the Financial Services M anager the Authority constantly seeks 

w ays of ensuring the econom ic, effective and efficient use of resources, and securing 

Page 81



AN N U AL G O VER N AN CE STATEM EN T 2011/12 

 

 

 
81

continuous im provem ent in the w ay in w hich its functions are exercised.  

 

 

R isk M anagem ent 

 

The Authority has adopted a form al system  of Risk M anagem ent. This is effectively 

delivered through w idespread use of Covalent, the Authority’s Perform ance and Risk 

M anagem ent softw are.  Although responsibility for the identification and m anagem ent of 

risks rests w ith service m anagers, corporate arrangem ents are co-ordinated by the H eads 

of Service Group. The process serves to ensure that: 

 

• The Authority identifies, prioritises and takes appropriate m itigation for those 

risks it identifies as potentially preventing achievem ent of the Corporate and 

Com m unity Plan 

• The Authority’s assets are adequately protected 

• Losses resulting from  hazards and claim s against the Authority are m itigated 

through the effective use of risk control m easures 

• Service m anagers are adequately supported in the discharge of their 

responsibilities in respect of Risk M anagem ent 

 

The system  of Risk M anagem ent requires the inclusion of risk evaluation assessm ents in 

all Com m ittee reports and the m aintenance of a corporate risk register. Relevant staff 

w ithin the Authority have received training and guidance in Risk M anagem ent principles. 

 

Internal Audit &  Fraud 

 

The Authority operates internal audit and internal (non H ousing Benefit) fraud 

investigation functions. In 2011/12 these services w ere provided by the N orth Yorkshire 

Audit Partnership. From  1 April 2012 internal audit and counter fraud services have been 

provided by Veritau N orth Yorkshire Lim ited – a com pany partly owned by the Authority. 

Internal audit services are provided in accordance w ith the Accounts and Audit 

Regulations 2011 and the CIPFA Code of Practice for Internal Audit in Local G overnm ent. 

An annual program m e of reviews covering financial and operational system s is 

undertaken, to give assurance to M em bers and m anagers on the effectiveness of the control 

environm ent operating w ithin the Council.  The w ork of internal audit com plim ents and 

supports the w ork of the external auditors (D eloitte LLP for 2011/12).  In addition, internal 

audit provides assurance to the Corporate D irector (s151) as the Authority’s s151 O fficer in 

discharging his statutory review  and reporting responsibilities.  The Authority also 

undertakes an annual review  of the effectiveness of its internal audit arrangem ents as 

required by the Accounts and Audit Regulations. The results of the review  are reported to 

the O verview  &  Scrutiny (Audit) Com m ittee. 

 

Internal audit also has an advisory role that provides: 

• Advice and assistance to m anagers in the design, im plem entation and operation of 

controls 

• Support to m anagers in the prevention and detection of fraud, corruption and 

other irregularities 

H ousing Benefit Counter Fraud w ork is undertaken w ithin the Benefits Office through 

contractual arrangem ents w ith Veritau. A pro-active approach is taken to supplem ent 

Page 82



AN N U AL G O VER N AN CE STATEM EN T 2011/12 

 

 

 
82

referrals, both internal and external, w ith any leads arising from  participation in the 

N ational Fraud Initiative, the H ousing Benefits M atching Service, and internal data 

m atching. 

 

Perform ance M anagem ent  

 

The Authority has established effective perform ance m anagem ent arrangem ents.  The 

Chief Executive has overall responsibility for the function and the Corporate M anagem ent 

Team  undertakes an ongoing m onitoring role.  H eads of Service and their Service U nit 

M anagers are expected to deliver im provem ents or m aintain perform ance standards w here 

appropriate. The Covalent perform ance m anagem ent system  is used to record and m onitor 

perform ance. 

 

4. R eview  of Effectiveness 

 

The Authority has responsibility for conducting, at least annually, a review  of the 

effectiveness of its system s of internal control. In preparing this Statem ent a review  of 

corporate governance arrangem ents and the effectiveness of the Authority’s system s of 

internal control has been undertaken, by the Corporate M anagem ent Team .  This review 

has included consideration of: 

 

• Reports received from  the Authority’s external auditors and other inspection 

agencies 

• The results of internal audit and fraud investigation w ork 

• The view s of senior m anagers, including Chief Executive, the s151 Officer and the 

M onitoring O fficer 

• The w ork of the H eads of Service Group in com piling the Authority’s Strategic 

Risk Register 

• O utcom es of service im provem ent reviews and perform ance m anagem ent 

processes 

• Com pliance w ith the CIPFA Statem ent on the role of the CFO 

 

In addition, the Authority through its Com m ittees especially the O verview  and Scrutiny 

(Audit) Com m ittee considers corporate governance issues as they arise throughout the year 

and agree recom m endations for im provem ent as necessary. 

 

A com prehensive review  has been undertaken to support the preparation of this AGS 

docum ent as required by the Accounts and Audit Regulations 2011. The Authority has 

produced a detailed statem ent along w ith a targeted action plan to ensure that full 

com pliance is achieved. This has follow ed the best practice fram ew ork suggested by CIPFA 

and adopted by the Authority.  An action plan schedule has been produced to ensure 

com pliance and a list of those Officers having responsibility is available. 

 

An Action Plan is appended w hich identifies and notes progress with previous year’s 

m atters of concern, and includes those arising from  this year’s review .  The Annual 

G overnance Statem ent for 2011/12 w ill provide details of the w ork com pleted against this 

Plan. 

 

W e have been advised on the im plications of the results of the review of the effectiveness of 

the system  of internal control by the O verview  &  Scrutiny (Audit) Com m ittee, and a plan 

Page 83



AN N U AL G O VER N AN CE STATEM EN T 2011/12 

 

 

 
83

to address w eaknesses and ensure continuous im provem ent of the system  is in place. 

 

 

 

 

5. SIG N IFIC AN T IN TER N AL C O N TR O L ISSU ES 

 

A review  of the internal control arrangem ents in place w ithin the Authority has identified 

areas w here im provem ents could be m ade. Specific actions are proposed to address the 

issues identified. Attached is the action plan for 2011/12 incorporating those issues brought 

forw ard from  the previous plan, w hich are still outstanding. 

 

The Authority w ill continue to seek to im prove perform ance and take action on agreed 

recom m endations by both internal and external agencies. 

 

 

 

Signed: ...............................................................................  D ated: 25 Septem ber 2012 

Janet W aggott 

Chief Executive 

 

 

Signed: ...............................................................................  D ated: 25 Septem ber 2012 

Cllr K eith K naggs 

Leader of the Council 

 

Page 84



AN N U AL G O VER N AN CE STATEM EN T APPEN D IX 

 
84

 

 

STATU S C O N TR O L ISSU E AC TIO N  PR O PO SED  R ESPO N SIB ILITY TAR G ET D ATE 

C U R R EN T 

PO SITIO N  &  

C O M M EN TS 

 

Brought Forw ard 

 

 

Corporate Business Continuity 

Plan (BCP) requires testing for 

resilience and further training 

m ay be required. 

 

U se consultancy days from  

our insurers and specialist 

to ensure the plan is fit for 

purpose and appropriate 

staff have currency of 

know ledge. 

 

 

Corporate D irector (s151) 

 

 

Com pleted 

 

O ngoing updating and 

training 

 

Brought Forw ard 

 

 

Risk of com prom ise and 

w eaknesses in operational 

system s as a consequence of 

continuing reductions in 

staffing as G overnm ent 

funding cuts m ade. 

 

 

 

W here changes in staffing 

occur, that changes in 

operating arrangem ents 

are review ed prior to 

reducing the controls. 

 

Internal audit w ill be 

included in w orking 

groups review ing 

operating system s and 

arrangem ents, including 

com m issioning, 

partnership arrangem ents 

etc. 

 

 

 

Corporate D irector (s151) 

 

 

Continuing 

 

This w ill be a 

continuing issue in 

2012/13 

  

P
age 85



AN N U AL G O VER N AN CE STATEM EN T APPEN D IX 

 
85

 

 

STATU S C O N TR O L ISSU E AC TIO N  PR O PO SED  R ESPO N SIB ILITY TAR G ET D ATE 

C U R R EN T 

PO SITIO N  &  

C O M M EN TS 

 

N ew  2011/12 

 

Internal changes w ithin the 

Council including the 

establishm ent of the H ub and 

im plem entation of the new  

Financial M anagem ent 

System  w eaken the control 

environm ent or affect service 

standards. 

 

Project and risk 

m anagem ent applied to 

changes 

 

Changes subject to audit 

review  

 

O ngoing m onitoring of 

perform ance 

 

 

 

Corporate D irector (s151) 

 

O ngoing 

 

N ew  control issue 

P
age 86



IN D EPEN D EN T AU D ITO R ’S R EPO R T 

86 

 

Independent Auditor’s R eport to M em bers of R yedale D istrict Council 

O pinion on the Authority accounting statem ents 

W e have audited the accounting statem ents and related notes of Ryedale D istrict 

Council for the year ended 31 M arch 2012 under the Audit Com m ission Act 1998. 

The accounting statem ents com prise the M ovem ent in Reserves Statem ent, the 

Com prehensive Incom e and Expenditure Statem ent, the Balance Sheet, the Cash 

Flow  Statem ent, the Collection Fund, N otes to the Collection Fund Accounting 

Statem ent and the related notes 1 to 43.  The financial reporting fram ew ork that 

has been applied in their preparation is applicable law  and the CIPFA/LASAAC 

Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the U nited K ingdom  2011/12 

This report is m ade solely to the m em bers of Ryedale D istrict Council in 

accordance w ith Part II of the Audit Com m ission Act 1998 and for no other 

purpose, as set out in paragraph 48 of the Statem ent of Responsibilities of 

Auditors and of Audited Bodies published by the Audit Com m ission in M arch 

2010. O ur audit w ork has been undertaken so that w e m ight state to the 

Authority those m atters w e are required to state to them  in an auditors’ report 

and for no other purpose.  To the fullest extent perm itted by law , w e do not 

accept or assum e responsibility to anyone other than the Authority, as a body, for 

our audit w ork, for this report, or for the opinions w e have form ed. 

 

R espective responsibilities of the C orporate D irector (s151) and auditor 

As explained m ore fully in the Statem ent of the Corporate D irector (s151) 

Responsibilities, the Corporate D irector (s151) is responsible for the preparation 

of the Authority’s Statem ent of Accounts in accordance w ith proper practices as 

set out in the CIPFA/LASAAC Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in 

the U nited K ingdom .  O ur responsibility is to audit the accounting statem ents in 

accordance w ith applicable law and International Standards on Auditing (U K 

and Ireland). Those standards require us to com ply w ith the Auditing Practice’s 

Board’s Ethical Standards for Auditors. 

 

Scope of the audit of the financial statem ents 

An audit involves obtaining evidence about the am ounts and disclosures in the 

accounting statem ents sufficient to give reasonable assurance that the 

accounting statem ents are free from  m aterial m isstatem ent, w hether caused by 

fraud or error. This includes an assessm ent of: w hether the accounting policies 

are appropriate to the Authority’s circum stances and have been consistently 

applied and adequately disclosed; the reasonableness of significant accounting 

estim ates m ade by the Authority; and the overall presentation of the accounting 

statem ents. W e read all the inform ation in the explanatory forew ord and the 

annual report to identify m aterial inconsistencies with the audited accounting 

statem ents.  If we becom e aw are of any apparent m aterial m isstatem ents or 

inconsistencies w e consider the im plications for our report. 

 

 

Page 87



IN D EPEN D EN T AU D ITO R ’S R EPO R T 

87 

 

 

 

O pinion on accounting statem ents 

In our opinion the accounting statem ents: 

• give a true and fair view  of the state of Ryedale D istrict Council’s affairs 

as at 31 M arch 2012 and of its expenditure and incom e for the year then 

ended; and 

• have been properly prepared in accordance w ith the CIPFA/LASAAC Code 

of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the U nited K ingdom  2011/12. 

O pinion on other m atters 

In our opinion, the inform ation given in the explanatory forew ord and the 

content of the Annual Report for the financial year for w hich the accounting 

statem ents are prepared is consistent w ith the accounting statem ents. 

 

M atters on w hich w e report by exception 

W e report to you if: 

• in our opinion the annual governance statem ent does not reflect 

com pliance w ith ‘D elivering Good G overnance in Local G overnm ent: a 

Fram ew ork’ published by CIPFA/SO LACE in June 2007; 

• w e issue a report in the public interest under section 8 of the Audit 

Com m ission Act 1998; 

• w e designate under section 11 of the Audit Com m ission Act 1998 any 

recom m endation as one that requires the Authority to consider it at a 

public m eeting and to decide w hat action to take in response; or 

• w e exercise any other special pow ers of the auditor under the Audit 

Com m ission Act 1998. 

W e have nothing to report in these respects. 

C onclusion on Authority’s arrangem ents for securing econom y, 

efficiency and effectiveness in the use of resources  

 

R espective responsibilities of the Authority and the auditor 

 

The Authority is responsible for putting in place proper arrangem ents to secure 

econom y, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources, to ensure proper 

stew ardship and governance, and to review  regularly the adequacy and 

effectiveness of these arrangem ents. 

 

W e are required under Section 5 of the Audit Com m ission Act 1998 to satisfy 

ourselves that the Authority has m ade proper arrangem ents for securing 

econom y, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources. The Code of Audit 

Practice issued by the Audit Com m ission requires us to report to you our 

conclusion relating to proper arrangem ents, having regard to relevant criteria 

specified by the Audit Com m ission. 

W e report if significant m atters have com e to our attention w hich prevent us 

from  concluding that the Authority has put in place proper arrangem ents for 

Page 88



IN D EPEN D EN T AU D ITO R ’S R EPO R T 

88 

 

securing econom y, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources.  W e are not 

required to consider, nor have w e considered, w hether all aspects of the 

Authority’s arrangem ents for securing econom y, efficiency and effectiveness in its 

use of resources are operating effectively. 

 

Scope of the review  of arrangem ents for securing econom y, efficiency 

and effectiveness in the use of resources 

W e have undertaken our audit in accordance w ith the Code of Audit Practice, 

having regard to the guidance on the specified criteria, published by the Audit 

Com m ission in October 2011, as to w hether the has proper arrangem ents for: 

• securing financial resilience; and 

• challenging how  it secures econom y, efficiency and effectiveness. 

The Audit Com m ission has determ ined these tw o criteria as those necessary for 

us to consider under the Code of Audit Practice in satisfying ourselves w hether 

the Authority put in place proper arrangem ents for securing econom y, efficiency 

and effectiveness in its use of resources for the year ended 31 M arch 2012. 

W e planned our w ork in accordance w ith the Code of Audit Practice.  Based on 

our risk assessm ent, w e undertook such work as w e considered necessary to form  

a view  on w hether, in all significant respects, the Authority had put in place 

proper arrangem ents to secure econom y, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of 

resources. 

 

Conclusion 

O n the basis of our w ork, having regard to the guidance on the specified criteria 

published by the Audit Com m ission in O ctober 2011, w e are satisfied that, in all 

significant respects, Ryedale District Council put in place proper arrangem ents 

to secure econom y, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources for the year 

ending 31 M arch 2012. 

D elay in certification of com pletion of the audit 

W e cannot form ally conclude the audit and issue an audit certificate until w e 

have com pleted the w ork necessary to issue our assurance statem ent in respect of 

the authority’s W hole of G overnm ent Accounts consolidation pack. W e are 

satisfied that this w ork does not have a m aterial effect on the financial 

statem ents or on our value for m oney conclusion. 

 

 

Paul Thom son ACA (Engagem ent Lead) 

for and on behalf of D eloitte LLP 

Appointed Auditor 

Leeds, U nited K ingdom  

 

 

 

 

Page 89



IN D EPEN D EN T AU D ITO R ’S R EPO R T 

89 

 

 

 

Page 90



AN ALYSIS O F TH E CO ST O F SER VICES 

(Com prehensive Incom e &  Expenditure 

Statem ent) 

90 

 

 

This analysis provides supplem entary inform ation to the audited accounting 

statem ents. It provides details of the expenditure and incom e for each 

individual service for the Cost of Services line in the Com prehensive Incom e 

and Expenditure Statem ent: 
 

2010/11  2011/12 2011/12 2011/12 

N et Exp. Service Expenditure Incom e N et Exp. 

£'000  £'000 £'000 £'000 

 C entral Services to the Public    

78 Em ergency Relief W ork 47 - 47 

73 G rants 88 - 88 

396 Cost of Rate/Council Tax Collection 575 194 381 

(24) Council Tax Benefits Paym ents 3,336 3,375 (39) 

147 Council Tax Benefits Adm inistration 264 126 138 

79 Rate Relief 167 82 85 

115 Conducting Elections 162 - 162 

84 Registration of Electors 86 1 85 

(39) Land Charges 94 94 - 

909 N et Expenditure C entral Services to the Public 4,819 3,872 947 

     

 C ultural, Environm ental, R egulatory &  Planning    

 Services    

     
 C ultural &  R elated Services    

277 Culture &  H eritage 438 2 436 

2,512 Recreation &  Sport 853 25 828 

127 Parks &  O pen Spaces 109 7 102 

145 Tourism  113 9 104 

176 Tourist Inform ation Centres 236 41 195 

3,237  1,749 84 1,665 

 Environm ental &  R egulatory Services    

46 Crim e &  D isorder 67 45 22 

45 Tow n Centre Security 28 (4) 32 

7 Footw ay Lighting - - - 

44 Flood D efence &  Land D rainage  107 67 40 

156 Pollution Reduction 188 19 169 

43 Pest Control 108 52 56 

54 D og Control  61 2 59 

188 Food Safety 140 8 132 

155 Public H ealth 166 (6) 172 

450 Public Conveniences 270 - 270 

(9) Cesspool Em ptying 22 26 (4) 

11 H ackney Carriage &  Private H ire Vehicles Licensing 36 41 (5) 

1 Licences 81 80 1 

333 Street Cleansing 404 56 348 

583 Refuse Collection 571 11 560 

(7) Trade W aste 590 639 (49) 

734 Recycling 1,282 596 686 

75 D rainage Boards 78 - 78 

2,909  4,199 1,632 2,567 

Page 91



AN ALYSIS O F TH E CO ST O F SER VICES 

(Com prehensive Incom e &  Expenditure 

Statem ent) 

91 

 

     

Page 92



AN ALYSIS O F TH E CO ST O F SER VICES 

(Com prehensive Incom e &  Expenditure 

Statem ent) 

92 

 

2010/11  2011/12 2011/12 2011/12 

N et Exp. Service Expenditure Incom e N et Exp. 

£'000  £'000 £'000 £'000 

     
 Planning Services    

21 Street N am ing 18 18 - 

226 Environm ental Initiatives 201 43 158 

218 Econom ic D evelopm ent Support 192 7 185 

(53) M arkets 17 68 (51) 

43 Building Control 240 195 45 

429 Developm ent Control 752 295 457 

288 Planning Policy 2,093 158 1,935 

146 N on-Industrial Prem ises &  Land - - - 

137 Com m unity D evelopm ent 155 7 148 

1,455  3,668 791 2,877 

     

7,601 N et Expenditure Cultural, Environm ental, R egulatory 9,616 2,507 7,109 

 &  Planning Services    

     

 H ighw ays &  Transport Services    

(204) Car Parks 298 760 (462) 

295 Transport Support 92 - 92 

91 N et Expenditure H ighw ays &  Transport Services 390 760 (370) 

     

 H ousing Services    

122 H ousing Strategy 71 1 70 

29 Registered Social Landlords 25 - 25 

67 H ousing Advice 55 - 55 

183 Private Sector H ousing Renewal 480 253 227 

121 H om elessness 316 229 87 

84 Travellers Site, M alton 20 - 20 

(4) Ryecare Services 256 278 (22) 

6 H ousing Benefits Paym ents 11,225 11,231 (6) 

387 H ousing Benefits Adm inistration 547 202 345 

995 N et Expenditure H ousing Services 12,995 12,194 801 

     

 Corporate &  D em ocratic Core    

713 Dem ocratic Representation &  M anagem ent 697 1 696 

663 Corporate M anagem ent 608 - 608 

1,376 N et Expenditure Corporate &  D em ocratic C ore 1,305 1 1,304 

     

 O ther Corporate &  N on D istributed Costs    

(3,119) Retirem ent Benefits - Change in Inflation Factor - - - 

169 Retirem ent Benefits – O ther Costs 63 - 63 

15 Costs of U nused Shares of Assets 11 - 11 

- Assets U nder Construction &  Surplus Assets for Disposal - - - 

25 General Financial Provisions 14 1 13 

76 Other Em ployee Related Costs - - - 

46 Custom er Liaison &  M arketing - - - 

2 Finance Adjustm ent on Central Expenses - - - 

(2,786) N et Expenditure O ther Corporate &  N on D istributed 88 1 87 

 Costs    

     
8,186 CO ST O F SER VICES 29,213 19,335 9,878 

     

Page 93



G LO SSAR Y 
 

 

 

93 

 

Accounting C oncepts 

The fundam ental accounting principles that are applied to ensure that the Statem ent of 

Accounts ‘present fairly’ the financial perform ance and position of the Council. 

Accounting Period 

The period of tim e covered by the accounts, norm ally a period of twelve m onths 

com m encing on 1 April. The end of the accounting period is the balance sheet date, 31 

M arch. 

Accounting Policies 

Accounting Policies and estim ation techniques are the principles, bases, conventions, 

rules and practices applied by the Authority that specify how  the effects of transactions 

and other events are to be reflected in its financial statem ents. An accounting policy 

w ill, for exam ple, specify the estim ation basis for accruals w here there is uncertainty 

over the am ount. 

Accruals 

Sum s included in the final accounts to cover incom e or expenditure, whether revenue or 

capital in nature, attributable to the accounting period but for w hich paym ent has not 

been m ade/received at the balance sheet date. 

Actuarial G ains and Losses 

For a defined benefit pension schem e, the changes in actuarial deficits or surpluses 

w hich arise because either events have not coincided with the actuarial assum ptions 

m ade for the last valuation (experience gains and losses) or the actuarial assum ptions 

have changed. 

Am ortisation 

The gradual elim ination of a debt by periodic paym ents over a specified num ber of 

years. 

Asset 

Som ething of w orth w hich is m easurable in m onetary term s. These are norm ally divided 

into current assets and fixed assets. 

Assets U nder C onstruction 

This is the value of w ork on uncom pleted tangible fixed assets at the balance sheet date. 

B alance Sheet 

A statem ent of the recorded assets, liabilities and other balances of the Authority at the 

end of the accounting period. 

C apital Adjustm ent Account 

The balance on this account principally represents am ounts set aside from  revenue 

accounts, capital receipts used to finance capital expenditure and the excess of 

depreciation over the M inim um  Revenue Provision. 

C apital C harge 

A charge to service revenue accounts to reflect the cost of utilising non-current assets in 

the provision of services. 

C apital Expenditure 

Expenditure on the acquisition of fixed assets that w ill be of use or benefit to the 

Authority in providing its services beyond the year of account or expenditure that adds 

to, and does not m erely m aintain, an existing fixed asset. 

C apital Expenditure charged to R evenue Account (C ER A) 

A m ethod of financing capital expenditure in the accounting period rather than over a 

num ber of years. 

  

Page 94



G LO SSAR Y 
 

 

 

94 

 

C apital Financing 

The m ethod by w hich m oney is raised to pay for capital expenditure. There are various 

m ethods of financing capital expenditure including borrow ing, leasing, direct revenue 

financing (CERA), usable capital receipts, capital grants, capital contributions, revenue 

reserves and earm arked reserves. 

C apital Program m e 

The capital schem es the Authority intends to carry out over a specified tim e period. 

C apital R eceipts 

M oney received from  the sale of fixed assets, or other m oney received tow ards capital 

expenditure. A specified proportion of this m ay be used to finance new  capital 

expenditure. 

C ash Flow  Statem ent 

A statem ent sum m arising the inflow s and outflow s of cash, arising from  transactions 

betw een the Authority and third parties, for revenue and capital purposes. 

C harging Authority 

The Authority responsible for adm inistering the Collection Fund, including raising bills 

for and collecting the appropriate council tax and national non-dom estic rates (N N D R). 

C ollection Fund 

A fund adm inistered by the Charging Authorities into w hich is paid council tax and 

N N D R incom e and outstanding com m unity charge incom e. Precepts are paid from  the 

fund to Precepting Authorities, including the Charging Authority, and the N N D R 

collected is paid to the G overnm ent. 

C om m unity Assets 

Assets that the Authority intends to hold in perpetuity that have no determ inable useful 

life, or that m ay have restrictions on their disposal. Exam ples of such item s are parks 

and historic buildings. 

C onsistency 

The concept that the accounting treatm ent of like item s, w ithin an accounting period, 

and from  one period to the next, is the sam e. 

C ontingent Asset 

A possible asset arising from  past events w hose existence w ill be confirm ed only by the 

occurrence of one or m ore uncertain future events not w holly w ithin the Authority’s 

control. 

C ontingent Liability 

A possible liability that can be the result of either a possible obligation arising from  past 

events w hose existence w ill be confirm ed only by the occurrence of one or m ore 

uncertain future events not w holly w ithin the Authority’s control or a present obligation 

arising from  past events w here it is not probable that a transfer of econom ic benefits 

w ill be required or the am ount of the obligation cannot be m easured w ith sufficient 

reliability. 

C orporate and D em ocratic C ore 

The corporate and dem ocratic core com prises all activities that the Authority engages in 

specifically because it is an elected, m ulti-purpose authority. The cost of these activities 

are thus over and above those w hich would be incurred by a series of independent, 

single purpose, nom inated bodies m anaging the sam e services. The code of practice, 

therefore, does not require these costs to be apportioned to services. 

C ouncil Tax 

A charge on residential property w ithin the Authority’s area to finance a proportion of 

the Authority’s expenditure. 

  

Page 95



G LO SSAR Y 
 

 

 

95 

C reditors 

Am ounts ow ed by the Authority for work done, goods received or services rendered 

w ithin the accounting period but for w hich paym ent w as not m ade at the balance sheet 

date. 

C urrent Assets 

Assets that can be expected to be consum ed or realised (cease to have m aterial value) 

during the next  accounting period. 

C urrent Liabilities 

Am ounts that w ill becom e due or could be called upon during the next accounting 

period. 

C urrent Service C ost (Pensions) 

The increase in the present value of a defined benefit pension schem e’s liabilities 

expected to arise from  em ployee service in the current period. 

C urtailm ent 

For a defined benefit pension schem e, an event that reduces the expected years of future 

service of present em ployees or reduces for a num ber of em ployees the accrual of defined 

benefits for som e or all of their future service. Curtailm ents can include term ination of 

em ployees’ services earlier than expected (due to ceasing an activity) and term ination of, 

or am endm ent to the term s of, a defined benefit schem e so that som e or all future 

service by current em ployees w ill no longer qualify for benefits or will qualify only for 

reduced benefits. 

D ebtors 

Am ounts due to the Authority for goods or services provided w ithin the accounting 

period but not received at the balance sheet date. 

D eferred D ebtors 

Am ounts due to the Authority that are not expected to be repaid in full w ithin the next 

accounting period. 

D eferred Liabilities 

These are liabilities w hich, by arrangem ent, are payable beyond the next year, either at 

som e point in the future or by an annual sum  over a period of tim e. 

D efined C ontribution Pension Schem e 

A pension or other retirem ent benefit schem e into w hich an em ployer pays regular 

contributions fixed as an am ount or as a percentage of pay and w ill have no legal or 

constructive obligation to pay further contributions if the schem e does not have 

sufficient assets to pay all em ployee benefits relating to em ployee service in the current 

and prior periods. 

D epreciation 

The m easure of the cost or revalued am ount of the benefits of the fixed asset that have 

been consum ed during the period. Consum ption includes the w earing-out, using up or 

other reduction in the useful life of a fixed asset. This can arise from  use, passing of tim e 

or obsolescence through, for exam ple, changes in technology or dem and for the goods 

and services provided by the asset. 

Em olum ents 

These are all sum s paid to, or receivable by, an em ployee and sum s due by w ay of 

expenses allow ances (as far as these sum s are chargeable to U K  incom e tax) and the 

m oney value of any other benefits received other than in cash. Pension contributions 

payable by either the em ployer or the em ployee are excluded. 

Expected R ate of R eturn on Pension Assets 

This applies to a funded defined benefit pension schem e and is the average rate of 

return, including both incom e and changes in fair value but net of schem e expenses, 

expected over the rem aining life of the related obligation on the actual assets held 

Page 96



G LO SSAR Y 
 

 

 

96 

by the schem e. 

Fair Value 

The fair value of an asset is the price at w hich it could be exchanged in an arm ’s length 

transaction less, w here applicable, any grants receivable tow ards the purchase or use of 

the asset.  

Financial R eporting Standards (FR Ss) 

Statem ents prepared by the Accounting Standards Com m ittee. M any of the Financial 

Reporting Standards (FRSs) and the earlier Statem ents of Standard Accounting 

Practice (SSAPs) apply to local authorities and any departure from  these m ust be 

disclosed in the published accounts. 

Financial Year 

Period of tim e to w hich a Statem ent of Accounts relates. The financial year of the 

Authority runs from  1 April to 31 M arch. 

Fixed Assets 

Tangible and intangible assets that can be expected to be of use or benefit to the 

Authority in providing its services for m ore than one accounting period. 

G eneral Fund 

The m ain account of the Authority that records the costs of service provision. 

G oing C oncern 

The concept that the Authority w ill rem ain in operational existence for the foreseeable 

future, in particular that the revenue accounts and balance sheet assum e no intention to 

curtail significantly the scale of operations. 

G overnm ent G rants 

Paym ents by central governm ent tow ards the cost of Local Authority services either 

specifically (e.g. im provem ent grants) or generally (e.g. revenue support grant). 

Im pairm ent 

A reduction in the value of a fixed asset below its carrying am ount on the Authority’s 

balance sheet. 

Incom e and Expenditure Account 

The Incom e and Expenditure Account com bines the incom e and expenditure relating to 

all the Authority’s functions. 

Infrastructure Assets 

These are fixed assets that are inalienable, i.e. expenditure on assets that cannot be 

sold, but w here there is econom ic benefit over m ore than one year to the Council. 

Exam ples of infrastructure are highw ays and  footpaths. 

Intangible Fixed Asset 

These are assets w hich do not have a physical substance, e.g. com puter softw are, but 

w hich yield benefits to the Council, and the services it provides, for a period of m ore 

than one year. 

Interest C ost 

This relates to a defined benefit pension schem e. The expected increase during the 

period is the present value of the schem e liabilities because the benefits are one period 

closer to settlem ent. 

International Financial R eporting Standards (IFR S) 

Accounting standards set by the International Accounting Standards Board. The 

standards provide guidance and advice for the preparation of financial statem ents. 

Investm ent 

An investm ent is considered to be long term  if it is intended to be held for use on a 

continuing basis in the activities of the Council. Investm ents should be classified as such 

only w here an intention to hold the investm ent for the long term  can clearly be 

dem onstrated or w here there are restrictions as to the investor’s ability to 

Page 97



G LO SSAR Y 
 

 

 

97 

dispose of the investm ent. Investm ents that do not m eet the above criteria should be 

classified as 

current assets. 

Investm ent Properties 

An interest in land and/or buildings w here construction w ork and developm ent has been 

com pleted and w hich is held for its investm ent potential, any rental incom e being 

negotiated at arm s length. 

Leasing 

A m ethod of financing capital expenditure w here a rental charge is paid for the asset 

over a specified period of tim e. 

Liability 

An account due to an individual or organisation that will be paid at som e future date. 

Liquid R esources 

Current investm ents that are readily disposable by the Authority w ithout disrupting its 

business and are readily convertible to cash. 

Long-Term  C ontracts 

A contract entered into for the design, m anufacture or construction of a single 

substantial asset or the provision of a service (or a com bination of assets or services 

w hich together constitute a single project), w here the tim e taken substantially to 

com plete the contract is such that the contract activity falls into different accounting 

periods. Som e contracts w ith a shorter duration than one year should be accounted for 

as long-term  contracts if they are sufficiently m aterial to the activity of the period. 

M inim um  R evenue Provision 

The m inim um  am ount w hich m ust be charged to the Authority’s revenue accounts each 

year and set aside as a provision to m eet the Authority’s credit liabilities. 

M onitoring O fficer 

U nder the provisions of the Local G overnm ent and H ousing Act 1989 Councils have a 

duty to appoint a M onitoring Officer to ensure the lawfulness and fairness of Authority 

decision m aking. Councils m ay choose w ho to designate as M onitoring O fficer except 

that it m ay not be the H ead of Paid Service (Chief Executive).  

N ational N on-D om estic R ates (N N D R ) 

An N N D R poundage is set annually by central governm ent and collected by Charging 

Authorities. The proceeds are redistributed by the governm ent betw een Local 

Authorities. 

N et B ook Value 

Am ount at w hich fixed assets are included in the balance sheet, i.e. their historical cost 

or current value less the cum ulative am ounts provided for depreciation. 

N on- C urrent Assets 

These are assets w ith a physical substance that yield benefits to the Authority and the 

services it provides for a period of m ore than one year. 

N on D istributed C osts 

These are overheads from  w hich no user benefits, and therefore they cannot be allocated 

to a service area. 

N on-O perational Assets 

These are fixed assets ow ned by the Council, but not directly occupied, used or 

consum ed in the delivery of Authority services. Exam ples of non-operational assets are 

investm ent properties and assets that are surplus to requirem ents, aw aiting sale or 

redevelopm ent. 

O perational Assets 

These are fixed assets held and occupied, used or consum ed by the Authority in the 

direct delivery of those services for w hich it has either a statutory or discretionary 

Page 98



G LO SSAR Y 
 

 

 

98 

responsibility. 

  

Page 99



G LO SSAR Y 
 

 

 

99 

Past Service C ost 

For a defined benefit pension schem e, the increase in the present value of the schem e 

liabilities related to em ployee service in prior periods arising in the current period as a 

result of the introduction of, or im provem ent to, retirem ent benefits. 

Post B alance Sheet Events 

Events, both favourable and unfavourable, w hich occur betw een the balance sheet date 

and the date on w hich the Statem ent of Accounts is signed by the responsible finance 

officer. 

Precept 

The am ount that a Precepting Authority requires from  a Charging Authority to m eet its 

expenditure requirem ents. 

Precepting Authority 

Local Authorities, including parish councils and police authorities, w hich cannot levy a 

council tax directly on the public but have the pow er to precept Charging Authorities. 

Prior Year Adjustm ents (or Prior Period Adjustm ents) 

Those m aterial adjustm ents applicable to prior years arising from  changes in accounting 

policies or from  the correction of fundam ental errors. They do not include norm al 

recurring conditions or adjustm ents of accounting estim ates m ade in prior years. 

Provisions 

Am ounts set aside in the accounts for future liabilities that are likely to be incurred, but 

w hich cannot  accurately be quantified. 

Prudence 

The concept that revenue is not anticipated but is recognised only when realised in the 

form  either of cash or of other assets, the ultim ate cash realisation of w hich can be 

assessed w ith reasonable certainty. 

Prudential Indicators 

The Local G overnm ent Act 2003 specifies a num ber of prudential indicators covering 

both capital and treasury m anagem ent activities w hich local authorities m ust set as 

part of their budget process. They are designed to show  the affordability of the capital 

program m e and that the local authority borrowing is prudent and sustainable. 

R ealisable Value 

The value of the asset at existing use, if sold between a w illing buyer and a w illing 

seller. 

R elated Party 

Tw o or m ore parties are related w here one party has control or is able to influence the 

financial or operational policies of another. 

R eserves 

Am ounts set aside in the accounts for the purpose of defraying particular future 

expenditure. A distinction is draw n betw een reserves and provisions, w hich are set up to 

m eet know n liabilities. 

R esidual Value 

The net realisable value of an asset at the end of its useful life. Residual values are 

based on current prices at the date of the acquisition (or revaluation) of the asset and do 

not take account of expected future price changes. 

R etirem ent B enefits 

All form s of consideration given by an em ployer in exchange for services rendered by 

em ployees that are payable after the com pletion of em ploym ent. Retirem ent benefits do 

not include term ination benefits payable as a result of either an em ployer’s decision to 

term inate an em ployee’s em ploym ent before the norm al retirem ent date or an 

em ployee’s decision to accept voluntary redundancy in exchange for those benefits, 

because these are not given in exchange for services rendered by em ployees. 

Page 100



G LO SSAR Y 
 

 

 

100  

  

Page 101



G LO SSAR Y 
 

 

 

101  

R evaluation R eserve 

This account contains surpluses and losses arising from  the periodic valuation of non-

current assets. 

R evenue Account 

An account w hich records the Authority’s day to day expenditure and incom e on such 

item s as salaries and w ages, running costs of service provision and the financing of 

capital expenditure. 

R evenue Expenditure Funded from  C apital U nder Statute 

Expenditure w hich m ay be properly capitalised but w hich does not result in or rem ain 

m atched w ith assets controlled by the Authority. 

R evenue Support G rant (R SG ) 

A general central governm ent grant paid to the Incom e and Expenditure Account in 

support of the Charging Authority's revenue expenditure. 

Schem e Liabilities 

The liabilities of a defined benefit pension schem e for outgoings due after the valuation 

date. Schem e liabilities m easured using the projected unit m ethod reflect the benefits 

that the em ployer is com m itted to provide for service up to the valuation date. 

Section 151 O fficer (s151) 

The Section 151 O fficer is required by the Local G overnm ent Act 1972 and by the 

Accounts and Audit Regulations 2003 to ensure that the Authority’s budgeting, financial 

m anagem ent, and accounting practices m eet relevant statutory and professional 

requirem ents. Furtherm ore section 25 of the Local Governm ent Act 2003 requires the 

Section 151 O fficer to com m ent on the robustness of the budget estim ates and the 

adequacy of reserves.  

Statem ent of R ecom m ended Practice (SO R P) 

This is the guidance issued by CIPFA to enable Authority’s to ensure that the Accounts 

published com ply w ith IFRS as it applies to local authority financial m atters. 

Stocks (inventories) 

Item s of raw  m aterials and stores purchased by the Authority to use on a continuing 

basis w hich have not been used. The value of those item s not used at the balance sheet 

date are included as assets of the Council. 

Support Services 

The costs of departm ents that provide professional and adm inistrative assistance to 

services e.g. Financial Services, H um an Resources. 

Tem porary B orrow ing/Investm ent 

M oney borrow ed or invested for an initial period of less than one year. 

U seful Life 

The period over w hich the Authority w ill derive benefits from  the use of an asset. 

W ork in Progress 

The value of work done on an uncom pleted project that has not been recharged to the 

appropriate account at the balance sheet date. 

 

Page 102



 

 

 

Ryedale District Council 

Report to the Overview and Scrutiny Committee 

on the 2012 Audit 

Final Report 

 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Agenda Item 4

Page 103



 

Deloitte LLP is a limited liability partnership registered in England and Wales with registered number OC303675 and its 
registered office at 2 New Street Square, London EC4A 3BZ, United Kingdom. 
 
Deloitte LLP is the United Kingdom member firm of Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu Limited (“DTTL”), a UK private company 
limited by guarantee,, whose member firms are legally separate and independent entities. Please see 
www.deloitte.co.uk/about for a detailed description of the legal structure of DTTL and its member firms. 
 

Member of Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu Limited 

 

 
       
 
 
 

                                           Deloitte LLP 
                                                                                                                                                1 City Square 

                                                                                                                                                  Leeds 
                                                                                                                                                  LS1 2AL 

                                                                                                                                                  United Kingdom 
 
Overview and Scrutiny Committee 
Ryedale District Council 

Ryedale House  

Malton 

North Yorkshire 

YO17 7HH 
 

 

Dear Sirs 

We have pleasure in setting out in this document our report to the Overview and Scrutiny Committee of Ryedale 

District Council (“the Council”) for the year ended 31 March 2012, for discussion at the meeting scheduled for 25 

September 2012. This report covers the principal matters that have arisen from our audit for the year ended 31 March 

2012. 

In summary: 

• The matters arising during our audit, which are summarised in the Executive Summary, have now been largely 

addressed and our conclusions are set out in our report. 

• In the absence of unforeseen difficulties, management and we expect to meet the agreed audit and financial 

reporting timetable and issue an unmodified audit report. 

 

We would like to take this opportunity to thank the management team for their assistance and co-operation during 

the course of our audit work. 

 

 

 

Paul Thomson 

Engagement Lead 

 

 

 

Page 104



 

September 2012        

 

Contents

Executive Summary 1 

1. Significant audit risks 4 

2. Risk management and internal control systems 7 

3. Other matters for communication 11 

4. Value for money (VFM) conclusion 12 

5. Annual Governance Statement (AGS) 14 

6. Responsibility statement 15 

Appendix 1: Briefing on audit matters 16 

Appendix 2: Audit adjustments and uncorrected misstatements 21 

Appendix 3: Draft Management Representation letter 22 

 

 

Page 105



 

Report to the Overview and Scrutiny Committee 1 

 

Executive Summary 

We have pleasure in setting out in this document our report to the Overview and Scrutiny Committee of Ryedale 
District Council (“the Council”) for the year ended 31 March 2012 for discussion at the meeting scheduled for 25 
September 2012.  This report summarises the principal matters that have arisen from our audit for the year ended 31 
March 2012.  The main audit visit took place during July and we are happy with the way that the audit has progressed.  
Audit working papers were of a good standard.  We would like to thank those officers involved in the audit. 

This summary is not intended to be exhaustive but highlights the most significant matters to which we would like to 
bring your attention. It should, therefore, be read in conjunction with the report and the appendices thereto. 

 

Completion of the audit 

The status of the audit is as expected at this stage of the timetable agreed in our audit plan.  

At the time of writing this report, certain procedures are still outstanding and need to be finalised before we can 
finalise our audit: 

• Final review of the accounts and Annual Governance Statement to be completed 

• Receipt of Letter of Representation 

• Receipt of report from Pension Scheme auditors to support the valuation of Pension Scheme Assets 

• Final review and close down procedures 

• Completion of VFM review 

 

We will report to you orally in respect of any modifications to the findings or opinions contained in this report that 

arise on completion of these matters.   

On satisfactory completion of the outstanding matters, we anticipate issuing an unmodified audit opinion on the 

truth and fairness of the financial statements and value for money conclusion. 

The matters that we have taken into account in forming our overall view are described in the following sections. 

 

Significant audit risks                               Status 

We discuss within Section 1 the results of our work in relation to audit risks which have been identified as 

significant to the financial statements. In summary these are: 

• Valuation of non-current assets, including heritage assets and reliability of the new asset register 

system – “Real Asset Management” software; 

• Collection of debt and the adequacy of bad and doubtful debt provisioning; 

• Pension scheme assumptions; 

• Presumed risk of revenue fraud; and  

• Presumed risk of management override of controls                                                                         

 
 
llll  

 

llll

llll  

llll  

llll  

 

 

llll  Risk appropriately addressed llll  Risk satisfactorily addressed but with unadjusted errors identified  llll  Material unresolved matter 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 106



 

Report to the Overview and Scrutiny Committee 2 

 

 

Page 107



 

Report to the Overview and Scrutiny Committee 3 

 

Executive Summary (continued) 

Risk management and internal control systems 

Our audit findings did not identify any significant deficiencies in the financial reporting systems.  Section 2 sets out 

the minor risk management and control observations arising from our audit procedures.    

 

Value for money audit – Financial resilience and prioritisation of resources 

Under the Audit Commission Code of Audit practice, as appointed auditors, we are required to draw a positive 
conclusion regarding the organisation’s arrangements to secure economy, efficiency and effectiveness of its use 
of resources (the value for money (VFM) conclusion).We have considered the financial standing of the Council for 
2011/12 in respect of our VFM conclusion.  We have reviewed the current and on-going expenditure demands, 
expected grant income and the current cash position of the Council.  We have also reviewed the risk assessments 
for the savings proposals in the 2012/13 budget and arrangements for the on-going management of those risks. 
Whilst the government’s funding cuts have caused a reduction in expected grant income in the future, the Council 
has drawn up plans on how to deal with these, and any anticipated future reductions. Based on our work we 
expect to issue an unqualified VFM conclusion. 

More details are given in Section 4. 

 

Identified misstatements and disclosure misstatements 

Audit materiality was £385,612 (2011: £361,677). 

A number of audit adjustments have been made to the financial statements, the most significant of which is an 
additional £138k of flood defence grant income and related creditor to be recognised on the balance sheet in 
2011/12. This has a nil impact on the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement (CI&E).  More details of 
this adjustment can be found in Section 1 and Appendix 2.  

Identified uncorrected misstatements, if adjusted, would have no impact on the deficit on provision of services or 
the net asset position.  Management has concluded that the total impact of the uncorrected misstatements, both 
individually and in aggregate, is not material in the context of the financial statements taken as a whole.    

Details of the audit adjustments and uncorrected misstatements are included in Appendix 2. 

 

Significant representations 

A copy of the representation letter to be signed on behalf of the Council has been included in Appendix 3. 

 

 

Page 108



 

Report to the Overview and Scrutiny Committee 4 

 

1. Significant audit risks 

The results of our audit work on significant audit risks are set out below:   

llll  Risk appropriately addressed llll  Risk satisfactorily addressed but with unadjusted errors identified  llll  Material unresolved matter 

  

Valuation of non-current assets, including heritage assets 

llll   

Background In the current climate the property market is still volatile and there is the potential for 

valuations of property and other assets to have fallen.  There is also a new financial 

reporting standard (FRS 30) this year requiring valuation and enhanced disclosure of 

heritage assets. 

Deloitte response We have obtained a copy of the latest third party valuation report and considered 

whether there is indication of any impairment from the third party valuations and 

whether any noted impairment should be applied more widely to other assets that have 

not been valued in the current year. 

We have reviewed the Council’s approach to identifying heritage assets and confirmed 

whether appropriate disclosures are made in the financial statements as necessary. 

As part of our work on fixed assets we have reviewed the outputs of the new fixed asset 

register software and determine whether it accurately reflects the position of the 

Council’s fixed assets at the balance sheet date. 

The results of our testing were satisfactory. 

 

 

 

 

Collection of debt and the adequacy of bad and doubtful debt provisioning  

llll   

Background In the current climate there is likely to be more pressure on the Council’s rate-payers’ 

financial resources.  It therefore follows that there is likely to be a higher level of unpaid 

debts at the balance sheet date and potentially more bad and/or doubtful debts 

occurring. 

Deloitte response We have documented the processes the Council has in place for reviewing and 

providing against bad and doubtful debts owed to the Council at the balance sheet date.  

We have reviewed the calculation of the year end provision and considered the 

adequacy of the provision in the light of available evidence including the aging profile of 

debtors at the year end and at the time of the audit, the history of bad debt exposure, 

recent changes in payment profile and post year-end cash receipts against year-end 

debtor balances. 

The adequacy of provisioning appeared reasonable and sufficient. 

Page 109



 

Report to the Overview and Scrutiny Committee 5 

 

1. Significant audit risks (Continued) 

Pension Scheme Assumptions  

llll   

Background In the current climate the choice of pension inflation, discount and yield assumptions will 

be both difficult and judgemental. Small and apparently insignificant changes to these 

key assumptions can have material consequences for the actuarial assessment of the 

liability included within the financial statements of the Council.   

Deloitte response We have documented the processes the Council has put in place to determine the 

assumptions and used our in-house pension and actuarial department to review these 

assumptions for reasonableness based upon prevailing market factors.  The 

assumptions were found to fall within an acceptable range, and were generally prudent 

except for the use of a more optimistic discount rate. 

The results of our testing were satisfactory. 

 

Presumed risk of revenue recognition fraud  

llll   

Background International Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland) 240 – “The auditor’s responsibility 
to consider fraud in an audit of financial statements” requires the auditors to perform 
certain audit procedures related specifically to fraud risk, and requires a presumption 
that revenue recognition is a key audit risk. 

For the Council we consider that the specific revenue recognition risk relates to the non-

recognition of cash receipts as income, or their recognition in the wrong accounting 

period 

Deloitte response We have performed testing by selecting a sample of cash receipts, both before and after 

the balance sheet date, and confirming that all income received was correctly recognised 

as income in the financial statements in the appropriate period.  In addition, testing of 

grant income has been performed to ensure that the provisions of the Code of Practice 

on Local Authority Accounting based on IFRS has been consistently applied. 

We identified one grant, in relation to the flood defence scheme, which had been 

received after the year end, but which related to the 11/12 period as per the grant letter, 

therefore we have adjusted for this. See Appendix 2 for further details. 

All other testing performed was satisfactory. 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 110



 

Report to the Overview and Scrutiny Committee 6 

 

1. Significant audit risks (Continued) 

Presumed risk of management override of controls  

llll   

Background International Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland) requires the auditors to perform 

certain audit procedures to respond to the risk of management’s override of controls. 

Deloitte response We have performed the following: 

• understood and evaluated the financial reporting process and the controls 

over journal entries and other adjustments made in the preparation of the 

financial statements, and tested the appropriateness of a sample of such 

entries and adjustments; 

• reviewed accounting estimates for biases that could result in material 

misstatement due to fraud, including whether any differences between 

estimates best supported by evidence and those in the financial statements, 

even if individually reasonable, indicate a possible bias on the part of 

management; 

• retrospectively reviewed management’s judgements and assumptions 

relating to significant estimates reflected in last year’s financial statements; 

and  

• obtained an understanding of the business rationale of significant 

transactions that we become aware of that are outside the normal course of 

business or that otherwise appear to be unusual given our understanding of 

the organisation and its environment. 

We have raised an observation regarding the authorisation of journals. The remaining 

results of our testing were satisfactory. 

 

 
 

  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 111



 

Report to the Overview and Scrutiny Committee 7 

 

2. Risk management and internal control 

systems  

Key controls over significant risks 

 No issues noted  Satisfactory – minor observations only  Requires improvement  Significant improvement required 

In Section 1 we discussed the identified significant audit risks.  For each of these significant audit risks we have 

assessed the design and implementation of internal controls in each of those areas, summarised below. 

Valuation of non-current assets, including heritage assets 2012 2011 

The Council performs regular checks on the 

existence and condition of assets to ensure that the 

valuation of assets is accurate. 

We reviewed the implementation of this control 

by reviewing the valuation procedures and the 

work of the expert in-house valuer. We also 

performed unrecorded disposal testing to prove 

existence of assets. 

  

 

Collection of debt and the adequacy of bad and doubtful debt provisioning 2012 2011 

The Council calculates the bad debt provision 

based on levels of historical debt and bad debt 

write offs.  

We tested the implementation of this control by 
reviewing the bad debt calculation to ensure 
that the policy had been correctly implemented 
and assessed the recoverability of debtors to 
consider the sufficiency of the policy.  

  

 

Pension Scheme Assumptions 2012 2011 

Disclosures and key assumptions are prepared by 

the actuary employed by North Yorkshire Pension 

Fund and are reviewed by management. 

We tested the implementation of this control by 

obtaining the IAS 19 report and having our 

internal experts review the report to show they 

are professionally competent and assumptions 

used are reasonable. 

  

 

Presumed risk of revenue recognition fraud 2012 2011 

For each payment received, the Council records 

details of the product/service that the payment 

relates to and uses this information to determine 

the period in which the payment should be 

recorded. 

We reviewed the implementation of this control 

by performing cut-off testing at the year end, 

tracing payments from the bank statement to 

the accounts system to confirm that they have 

been recorded in the correct period.  

  

 

Presumed risk of management override of controls 2012 2011 

All journals are written out as a paper copy. The 

journal is signed as authorised for input by the 

preparer input onto the system. The journal number 

and batch number is generated from the system 

and written on the paper copy. Only year-end items 

are filed with supporting working papers. 

We reviewed a sample of journals posted in the 

year to confirm that they were commercially 

reasonable and had adequate supporting 

documentation.  An observation has been 

raised below with respect to journal 

authorisation. 

  

Page 112



 

Report to the Overview and Scrutiny Committee 9 

 

2. Risk management and internal control 

systems (continued) 

Risk management and control observations 

In addition to the recommendations provided in relation to significant audit risks, we also identified two minor risk 

management and control observations which are detailed below. 

Update on prior year observations 

Documentation of journals 

  

2011 Description Review of the journals file showed that not all journals had supporting 
documentation. This may result in a loss of audit trail and lead to difficulties in 
officers understanding the rationale for specific journals if they need to understand 
this at some point in the future. 

2011 Recommendation Ensure all documents have sufficient documentation before processing. 

2012 Update All journals have supporting documentation, held either centrally with finance, or 

by the service departments. 

Satisfactory. 

 

Disposal of fixed assets 

  

2011 Description As part of fixed asset disposal testing it was noted that £220k of Civica software 

had been disposed of as part of the Northgate upgrade but that no formal 

documentation with authorised signatories had been completed. Potentially 

assets may be removed from the fixed asset register incorrectly or may be 

disposed of but the fixed asset register is not appropriately updated.  

2011 Recommendation It is recommended that a fixed asset disposal form is completed by the 

departmental head and then approved/countersigned by Finance. 

2012 Update 

 

Management intend to introduce a mechanism for formally recording and 

approving disposals in 2012/13.  

 

Page 113



 

Report to the Overview and Scrutiny Committee 10 

 

2. Risk management and internal control 

systems (continued) 

Current year observations 

Authorisation of journals 

Description Journals posted by senior members of the finance team (Peter Johnson (finance 

manager), Mike Wright and Mandy Burchell) are not authorized or reviewed by 

anyone other than the preparer.   

The lack of review means it is less likely that journals posted in error or 

fraudulently would be identified, which could have a potentially material impact on 

the financial statements. 

Recommendation All journals should be reviewed and signed by another member of the finance 

team to authorize the validity of the journal and promote transparency.  

Management response As from 1 April 2012, the new financial accounting software requires all journals 

raised by all members of staff, other than Peter Johnson, to be authorised online.  

Management have also agreed, going forward, that journals raised by Peter 

Johnson will be visible to, and authorised online by, Mike Wright and Mandy 

Burchell. 

 
 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 114



 

Report to the Overview and Scrutiny Committee 11 

 

3. Other matters for communication 

As part of our obligations under International Standards on Auditing (UK & Ireland), we are required to report to 
you on the matters listed below. 

Independence 

We confirm that we comply with APB Revised Ethical Standards for Auditors and that, in our professional 
judgement, we are independent and the objectivity of the audit engagement partner and audit staff is not 
compromised.   

If the Overview and Scrutiny Committee wishes to discuss matters relating to our independence, we would be 
happy to arrange this. 

 

Non-audit services 

We are not aware of any inconsistencies between APB Ethical Standards and the Council’s policy for the supply 

of non-audit services or of any apparent breach of that policy.  There were no non-audit services performed in the 

year. 

 

Audit fees 

The external audit fees in relation to audit services provided on behalf of the Audit Commission in the period from 
1 April 2011 to 31 March 2012 are as follows: 

Fees payable for the audit of the annual accounts (excluding Audit Commission rebate 
£7,316 and VAT ) 

£91,447 

The audit fee has been calculated in accordance with Audit Commission fee scale. 

The fees for certification of claims and returns are estimated at £20,000 and will be confirmed in our Annual Audit 

Letter at the next Overview and Scrutiny Committee meeting. 

 

Liaison with Internal Audit 

The audit team, following an assessment of the independence and competence of the Internal Audit department, 

reviewed the findings of Internal Audit to inform the risk assessment and consider the impact on our audit 

approach as deemed appropriate.     

 

Written representations 

A copy of the representation letter to be signed on behalf of the Overview and Scrutiny Committee is included at 

Appendix 3.   

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Page 115



 

Report to the Overview and Scrutiny Committee 12 

 

4. Value for money (VFM) conclusion 

From 2010/11 the Audit Commission introduced new requirements for local value for money (“VFM”) audit work at councils.  This 
year, auditors are again required to give their statutory VFM conclusion based on the following two criteria: 

• proper arrangements for securing financial resilience: work to focus on whether the Council has robust systems and 
processes to manage risks and opportunities effectively, and to secure a stable financial position that enables it to 
continue to operate for the foreseeable future; and 

• proper arrangements for challenging how economy, efficiency and effectiveness are secured: work to focus on whether 
the Council is prioritising its resources within tighter budgets, for example by achieving cost reductions and by improving 
efficiency and productivity. 

We have planned our local programme of work based on our risk assessment, which is informed by a series of risk factors 
determined by the Audit Commission. 

The key audit risk which we identified as part of our overall audit strategy is the delivery of financial targets and the 
management of the reduction in financial resources. 

Delivery of financial targets and the management of reduction in financial resources 

Risk & Response Following the Government’s comprehensive spending review and the extent of the reduction 
in the funding settlement announced in December 2010, the Council is facing severe 
financial pressures over the next few years.  

We have reviewed the risk assessments for the savings proposals in the 2012/13 budget 
and arrangements for the on-going management of those risks.   

Progress in developing plans for 2013/14 is on-going and we understand a number of 
meetings have already been held with members. Officers will be launching the strategy for 
2013/14 to staff by the end September 2012.  We are currently reviewing the minutes of the  
meeting held in respect of balancing the 2012/13 budget and creating the 2013/14 budget 
and will consider any issues arising from those minutes that are relevant to our VFM 
conclusion.   

Having achieved the savings required to balance the budget for 2011/12 through the 
successful delivery of the One-11 programme, the Council is now in the process of delivering 
the savings required for balancing the 2012/13 budget through a programme called ‘Going 
for Gold’.  Given the scale of the reduction in headcount which contributed to the delivery of 
the One-11 programme, the Council is anticipating and preparing for the challenges in 
achieving a balanced budgetary position for 2013/14. 

During the course of this work, we have considered the effectiveness of arrangements to 
assess the implications of savings measures and to manage their impact on the delivery of 
strategic priorities.  We have reviewed a sample of initiatives to assess the reasonableness 
of the quantification of savings to be achieved, and the processes for identifying and 
addressing any costs of implementation.   

 

Page 116



 

Report to the Overview and Scrutiny Committee 13 

 

4. Value for money (VFM) conclusion 

(continued) 

The VFM conclusion 

Under the Code, auditors are required to include a positive conclusion in their statutory audit report as to whether they 
are satisfied that, in all significant respects, the audited body has put in place proper arrangements to secure 
economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources.  The conclusion has regard to the criteria specified by 
the Commission and we do not consider all aspects of the Council’s arrangements.  This conclusion is given within 
our audit report on the Council’s accounts. 

We are required to report if, in our judgement, matters come to our attention which are significant enough to prevent 
us from concluding that proper arrangements are in place in the areas considered. In such a circumstance, we qualify 
our conclusion in relation to particular criteria, either on an ‘except for’ basis (i.e. the Council has put in place proper 
arrangements except for…) or in the form of an ‘adverse’ conclusion (i.e. the Council has not put in place 
arrangements in that…).   

For 2011/12, as at the time of writing this report, we have assessed the Council for both criteria as having proper 
arrangements in place.  We will update on this verbally at our meeting on 25 September and confirm whether we will 
be issuing an unqualified conclusion, as is currently anticipated. 

Page 117



 

Report to the Overview and Scrutiny Committee 14 

 

5. Annual Governance Statement (AGS) 

In June 2007, CIPFA in conjunction with the Society of Local Authority Chief Executives (“SOLACE”) published 
‘Delivering Good Governance in Local Government: A Framework’. This framework replaced the previous 
CIPFA/SOLACE framework ‘Corporate Governance in Local Government – A Keystone for Community Governance: 
A Framework’ which was published in 2001. 

The framework introduced, from 2007/08, an integrated Annual Governance Statement (“AGS”).  The AGS covers all 
significant corporate systems, processes and controls, spanning the whole range of a Council’s activities, including in 
particular those designed to ensure that: 

• the Council’s policies are implemented in practice; 

• high quality services are delivered efficiently and effectively; 

• the Council’s values and ethical standards are met; 

• laws and regulations are complied with; 

• required processes are adhered to; 

• financial statements and other published performance information are accurate and reliable; and 

• human, financial, environmental and other resources are managed efficiently and effectively. 

Our review is directed at: 

• considering the completeness of the disclosures in the governance statement and whether it complies with 
proper practice as specified by CIPFA; and 

• identifying any inconsistencies between the disclosure and the information that we are aware of from our work 
on the financial statements and other work relating to the Code of Audit Practice. 

We have reviewed the Council’s AGS in line with the requirements above.  We have concluded that the AGS includes 
all appropriate disclosures and is consistent with our understanding of the Council’s governance arrangements and 
internal controls derived from our audit work. 

 

Page 118



 

Report to the Overview and Scrutiny Committee 15 

 

6. Responsibility statement 

The Audit Commission published a ‘Statement of responsibilities of auditors and of audited bodies’ alongside the 

Code of Audit Practice. The purpose of this statement is to assist auditors and audit bodies by summarising, in the 

context of the usual conduct of the audit, the different responsibilities of auditors and of the audited body in certain 

areas. The statement also highlights the limits on what the auditor can reasonably be expected to do.  Responsibility 

for the adequacy and appropriateness of these methodologies and data rests with the Audit Commission.  

Our report has been prepared on the basis of, and our work carried out in accordance with, the Code and the 

Statement of Responsibilities. 

While our report includes suggestions for improving accounting procedures, internal controls and other aspects of your 

business arising out of our audit, we emphasise that our consideration of Ryedale District Council’s system of internal 

control was conducted solely for the purpose of our audit having regard to our responsibilities under Auditing 

Standards and the Code of Audit Practice. We make these suggestions in the context of our audit but they do not in 

any way modify our audit opinion, which relates to the financial statements as a whole. Equally, we would need to 

perform a more extensive study if you wanted us to make a comprehensive review for weaknesses in existing systems 

and present detailed recommendations to improve them.  

We view this report as part of our service to you for use, as Members, for corporate governance purposes and it is to 

you alone that we owe a responsibility for its contents. We accept no duty, responsibility or liability to any other parties 

as the report has not been prepared, and is not intended, for any other purpose. It should not be made available to 

any other parties without our prior written consent.  

If you intend to publish or distribute financial information electronically or in other documents, you are responsible for 

ensuring that any such publication properly presents the financial information and any report by us thereon, and for 

the controls over and security of the website. You are also responsible for establishing and controlling the process for 

electronically distributing accounts and other information. 

 

 

Deloitte LLP 
Chartered Accountants  

Leeds 

10 September 2012 

 

 

 

For your convenience, this document has been made available to you in electronic format.  Multiple copies and versions of this 

document may therefore exist in different media.  In the case of any discrepancy, the final signed hard copy should be regarded as 

definitive.  Earlier versions are drafts for discussion and review purposes only. 

Page 119



 

Report to the Overview and Scrutiny Committee 16 

 

Appendix 1: Briefing on audit matters  

Published for those charged with governance  

 This document is intended to assist the members and officers of the Council to 

understand the major aspects of our audit approach, including explaining the key 

concepts behind the Deloitte Audit methodology including audit objectives and 

materiality. 

Further, it describes the safeguards developed by Deloitte to counter threats to our 

independence and objectivity. 

This document will only be reissued if significant changes to any of those matters 

highlighted above occur. 

We will usually communicate our audit planning information and the findings from 

the audit separately.  Where we issue separate reports these should be read in 

conjunction with this "Briefing on audit matters". 

Approach and scope of the audit  

Primary audit objectives We conduct our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK & 

Ireland) as adopted by the UK Auditing Practices Board (“APB”).  Our statutory audit 

objectives are: 

l  to express an opinion in true and fair view terms to the members on the 

financial statements; 

l  to express an opinion as to whether the accounts have been properly prepared 

in accordance with the relevant financial reporting framework; 

l  to express an opinion as to whether the accounts have been prepared in 

accordance with the Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the 

United Kingdom 2011/12 based on International Financial Reporting 

Standards; 

l  to form an opinion on whether adequate accounting records have been kept by 

the Council; and 

l  to express an opinion as to whether the audited body has put in place proper 

arrangements to secure economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of 

resources. 

  

Other reporting 

objectives 

Our reporting objectives are to: 

l  present significant reporting findings to the members.  This will highlight key 

judgements, important accounting policies and estimates and the application of 

new reporting requirements, as well as significant control observations; and 

l  provide timely and constructive letters of recommendation to management.  

This will include key business process improvements and significant controls 

weaknesses identified during our audit. 

 

 

 

 

Page 120



 

Report to the Overview and Scrutiny Committee 17 

 

Appendix 1: Briefing on audit matters 

(continued) 

Materiality The concept of materiality is fundamental to the preparation of the financial 

statements and the audit process and applies not only to monetary misstatements 

but also to disclosure requirements and adherence to appropriate accounting 

principles and statutory requirements. 

 "Materiality" is defined in the International Accounting Standards Board's 

"Framework for the Preparation and Presentation of Financial Statements" in the 

following terms: 

"Information is material if its omission or misstatement could influence the economic 

decisions of users taken on the basis of the financial statements.  Materiality 

depends on the size of the item or error judged in the particular circumstances of its 

omission or misstatement.  Thus, materiality provides a threshold or cut-off point 

rather than being a primary qualitative characteristic which information must have if 

it is to be useful."  

We determine materiality based on professional judgment in the context of our 

knowledge of the audited entity, including consideration of factors such as 

shareholder expectations, industry developments, financial stability and reporting 

requirements for the financial statements. 

We determine materiality to: 

l  determine the nature, timing and extent of audit procedures; and 

l  evaluate the effect of misstatements. 

The extent of our procedures is not based on materiality alone but also local 

considerations of the Council, the quality of systems and controls in preventing 

material misstatement in the financial statements, and the level at which known and 

likely misstatements are tolerated by you in the preparation of the financial 

statements. 

For local statutory reporting purposes, individual materiality levels will be set for 

each of the subsidiary companies. 
  

Uncorrected 

misstatements 

In accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland) (“ISAs (UK 

and Ireland)”) we will communicate to you all uncorrected misstatements (including 

disclosure deficiencies) identified during our audit, other than those which we 

believe are clearly trivial.  

ISAs (UK and Ireland) do not place numeric limits on the meaning of ‘clearly trivial’.  

The Audit Engagement Partner, management and the members of the audit 

committee will agree an appropriate limit for 'clearly trivial'.  In our report we will 

report all individual identified uncorrected misstatements in excess of this limit and 

other identified errors in aggregate.  

We will consider identified misstatements in qualitative as well as quantitative terms. 

Page 121



 

Report to the Overview and Scrutiny Committee 18 

 

Appendix 1: Briefing on audit matters 

(continued) 

Audit methodology Our audit methodology takes into account the changing requirements of auditing 

standards and adopts a risk based approach.  We utilise technology in an efficient 

way to provide maximum value to the Council and create value for management 

and the Council whilst minimising a “box ticking” approach. 

Our audit methodology is designed to give officers and members the confidence 

that they deserve. 

For controls considered to be ‘relevant to the audit’ we evaluate the design of the 

controls and determine whether they have been implemented (“D & I”).  The 

controls that are determined to be relevant to the audit will include those: 

l  where we plan to obtain assurance through the testing of operating 

effectiveness; 

l  relating to identified risks (including the risk of fraud in revenue recognition, 

unless rebutted and the risk of management override of controls); 

 
l  where we consider we are unable to obtain sufficient audit assurance through 

substantive procedures alone; and 

l  to enable us to identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the 

financial statements and design and perform further audit procedures. 

  

Other requirements of 

International Standards 

on Auditing (UK and 

Ireland) 

ISAs (UK and Ireland) require we communicate the following additional matters: 

ISA (UK & 
Ireland) Matter 

ISQC 1 Quality control for firms that perform audits and review of financial statements, 

and other assurance and related services engagements 

240 The auditor’s responsibilities relating to fraud in an audit of financial statements 

250 Consideration of laws and regulations in an audit of financial statements 

265 Communicating deficiencies in internal control to those charged with governance 

and management 

450 Evaluation of misstatements identified during the audit 

505 External confirmations 

510 Initial audit engagements – opening balances 

550 Related parties 

560 Subsequent events 

570 Going concern 

600 Special considerations – audits of group financial statements (including the work 

of component auditors) 

705 Modifications to the opinion in the independent auditor’s report 

706 Emphasis of matter paragraphs and other matter paragraphs in the independent 

auditor’s report 

710 Comparative information – corresponding figures and comparative financial 

statements 

720 Section A: The auditor’s responsibilities relating to other information in 

documents containing audited financial statements 
 

Page 122



 

Report to the Overview and Scrutiny Committee 19 

 

Appendix 1: Briefing on audit matters 

(continued) 

Independence policies and procedures  

Important safeguards and procedures have been developed by Deloitte to counter threats or perceived threats to 

our objectivity, which include the items set out below. 

Safeguards and 

procedures 
l  Every opinion (not just statutory audit opinions) issued by Deloitte is subject to 

technical review by a member of our independent Professional Standards 

Review unit. 

l  Where appropriate, review and challenge takes place of key decisions by the 

Second Partner and by the Independent Review Partner, which goes beyond 

ISAs (UK and Ireland), and ensures the objectivity of our judgement is 

maintained. 

l  We report annually to the members our assessment of objectivity and 

independence.  This report includes a summary of non-audit services provided 

together with fees receivable. 

l  There is formal consideration and review of the appropriateness of continuing 

the audit engagement before accepting reappointment. 

l  Periodic rotation takes place of the audit engagement partner, the independent 

review partner and key partners involved in the audit in accordance with our 

policies and professional and regulatory requirements. 

l  In accordance with the Revised Ethical Standards issued by the APB, there is 

an assessment of the level of threat to objectivity and potential safeguards to 

combat these threats prior to acceptance of any non-audit engagement.  This 

would include particular focus on threats arising from self-interest, self-review, 

management, advocacy, over-familiarity and intimidation.  Any non-audit work 

which exceeds a deminimis amount set by the Audit Commission must be 

approved by the Commission prior to agreeing to carry out the work. 

 
l  In the UK, statutory oversight and regulation of auditors is carried out by the 

Professional Oversight Board (POB) which is an operating body of the Financial 

Reporting Council.  The Firm’s policies and procedures are subject to external 

monitoring by both the Audit Inspection Unit (AIU), which is a division of POB, 

and the ICAEW’s Quality Assurance Directorate (QAD).  The AIU is charged 

with monitoring the quality of audits of economically significant entities and the 

QAD with monitoring statutory compliance of audits for all other entities.  Both 

report to the ICAEW’s Audit Registration Committee.  The AIU also reports to 

POB and can inform the Financial Reporting Review Panel of concerns it has 

with the accounts of individual companies. 

l  Our work is carried out in line with the Audit Commission standing guidance for 

local government auditors. Compliance with that guidance and the quality of our 

work is subject to the Audit Commission’s annual Quality Review Process. 

 

Page 123



 

Report to the Overview and Scrutiny Committee 20 

 

Appendix 1: Briefing on audit matters 

(continued) 

Independence policies Our detailed ethical policies’ standards and independence policies are issued to all 

partners and employees who are required to confirm their compliance annually.  We 

are also required to comply with the policies of other relevant professional and 

regulatory bodies.   

Amongst other things, these policies: 

l  state that no Deloitte partner (or any immediate family member) is allowed to 

hold a financial interest in any of our UK audited entities; 

l  require that professional staff may not work on assignments if they (or any 

immediate family member) have a financial interest in the audited entity or a 

party to the transaction or if they have a beneficial interest in a trust holding a 

financial position in the audited entity; 

l  state that no person in a position to influence the conduct and outcome of the 

audit (or any immediate family member) should enter into business relationships 

with UK audited entities or their affiliates; 

l  prohibit any professional employee from obtaining gifts from audited entities 

unless the value is clearly insignificant; and 

l  provide safeguards against potential conflicts of interest. 

  

Remuneration and 

evaluation policies 

Partners are evaluated on roles and responsibilities they take within the firm 

including their technical ability and their ability to manage risk. 

  

APB Revised Ethical 

Standards 

The Auditing Practices Board (APB) has issued five ethical standards for auditors 

that apply a ‘threats’ and ‘safeguards’ approach. 

The five standards cover: 

l  maintaining integrity, objectivity and independence; 

l  financial, business, employment and personal relationships between auditors 

and their audited entities; 

l  long association of audit partners and other audit team members with audit 

engagements; 

l  audit fees, remuneration and evaluation of the audit team, litigation between 

auditors and their audited entities, and gifts and hospitality received from 

audited entities; and 

l  non-audit services provided to audited entities. 

Our policies and procedures comply with these standards. 

Page 124



 

Report to the Overview and Scrutiny Committee 21 

 

Appendix 2: Audit adjustments and uncorrected misstatements 

Recorded audit adjustments – corrected misstatments 

We report all individual identified recorded audit adjustments in excess of £7,712 and other identified misstatements in aggregate adjusted by management in the table below: 

  Comprehensive income and expenditure statement Balance sheet 

  

(Credit)/ charge to 
deficit on provision of 

services 
£ 

(Credit)/ charge 
to other 

comprehensive 
income  

£ 

Increase/ 
(decrease)  

in net assets 
£ 

   
 

 

Recognition of flood defence grant  - increase debtors and increase revenue grant receipts in advance £138k   net effect NIL - net effect NIL 

  
   

Total adjusted misstatements relating to current year items  0 0 0 

  
   

Uncorrected misstatements 

The following uncorrected misstatements were identified during the course of our audit.  We will obtain written representations from the Overview and Scrutiny Committee confirming that after 
considering all these uncorrected items, both individually and in aggregate, in the context of the Statement of Accounts taken as a whole, no adjustments are required.   

  Comprehensive income and expenditure statement Balance sheet 

  

(Credit)/ charge to 
deficit on provision 

of services 
£ 

(Credit)/ charge 
to other 

comprehensive 
income 

£ 

Increase/ 
(decrease)  

in net assets 
£ 

Factual misstatements   
 

 

Incorrect amortisation of intangibles - increase amortisation within the comprehensive income and expenditure 
statement £62k, decrease intangible assets on the balance sheet £62k, increase net deficit in the General fund £62k 
decrease Capital Adjustment Account £62k.  - 62,422 (62,422) 

  
   

Total misstatements relating to current year items  - 62,422 (62,422) 

  
   

P
age 125



 

Report to the Overview and Scrutiny Committee 22 

 

Appendix 3: Draft Management Representation 

letter 

We ask that the Committee notes the format of the letter below, and recommends the Corporate 
Director can sign the letter on behalf of the Council.   

Ryedale District Council – Audit of the annual accounts for the year ended 31 March 2012 

This representation letter is provided in connection with your audit of the financial statements of Ryedale District 

Council (“the Council”) for the year ended 31 March 2012 for the purpose of expressing an opinion as to whether the 

financial statements give a true and fair view of the financial position of the Council as of 31 March 2012 and the 

results of its operations, other recognised gains and losses and its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance 

with the applicable accounting framework. 

We acknowledge our responsibilities for preparing financial statements for the Council which present a true and fair 

view and for making accurate representations to you. 

We confirm, to the best of our knowledge and belief, the following representations. 

Financial statements 

1. We understand and have fulfilled our responsibilities for the preparation of the financial statements in 
accordance with the applicable financial reporting framework which give a true and fair view. 

2. Significant assumptions used by us in making accounting estimates, including those measured at fair value, 
are reasonable. 

3. Related party relationships and transactions have been appropriately accounted for and disclosed in 
accordance with the requirements of IAS24 “Related party disclosures”.  

4. The effects of uncorrected misstatements and disclosure deficiencies are immaterial, both individually and in 
aggregate, to the financial statements as a whole.  A list of the uncorrected misstatements and disclosure 
deficiencies is detailed in Appendix 2 to the Report to the Overview and Scrutiny Committee. 

5. We confirm that the financial statements have been prepared on the going concern basis.  We are not aware 
of any material uncertainties related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt upon the Council’s 
ability to continue as a going concern.  We confirm the completeness of the information provided regarding 
events and conditions relating to going concern at the date of approval of the financial statements, including 
our plans for future actions. 

6. The financial statements are free from material misstatement.   

7. All events subsequent to the date of the financial statements and for which the applicable financial 
reporting framework requires adjustment of or disclosure have been adjusted or disclosed. 

8. We have provided you with: 

• Access to all information of which we are aware that is relevant to the preparation of the financial 
statements such as records, documentation and other matters; 

• Additional information that you have requested from us for the purpose of the audit; and 

• Unrestricted access to persons within the entity from whom you determined it necessary to obtain 
audit evidence. 

 

 

 

Page 126



 

Report to the Overview and Scrutiny Committee 23 

 

Appendix 3: Draft Management Representation 

letter (continued) 

9. All transactions have been recorded and are reflected in the financial statements and the underlying 
accounting records. 

10. We acknowledge our responsibilities for the design, implementation and maintenance of internal control to 
prevent and detect fraud and error. 

11. We have disclosed to you the results of our assessment of the risk that the financial statements may be 
materially misstated as a result of fraud. 

12. We have disclosed to you all information in relation to fraud or suspected fraud that we are aware of and that 
affects the Council and involves: 
(i). management; 
(ii). Members of the Council  
(iii). employees who have significant roles in internal control; or 
(iv). others where the fraud could have a material effect on the financial statements. 

13. We have disclosed to you all information in relation to allegations of fraud, or suspected fraud, affecting the 
entity’s financial statements communicated by employees, former employees, analysts, regulators or others. 

14. We are not aware of any instances of non-compliance, or suspected non-compliance, with laws, regulations 
and contractual agreements whose effects should be considered when preparing financial statements 

15. We have disclosed to you the identity of the Council’s related parties and all the related party relationships 
and transactions of which we are aware. 

16.  No claims in connection with litigation have been or are expected to be received.  

17. We have no plans or intentions that may materially affect the carrying value or classification of assets and 
liabilities reflected in the financial statements.  

18. Where required, the value at which assets and liabilities are recorded in the balance sheet is, in the opinion of 
the Members, the fair value.  We are responsible for the reasonableness of any significant assumptions 
underlying the valuation, including consideration of whether they appropriately reflect our intent and ability to 
carry out specific courses of action on behalf of the Council.  Any significant changes in those values since the 
balance sheet date have been disclosed to you. 

19. There have been no irregularities involving members or employees who have a significant role in the 
accounting and internal control systems or that could have a material effect on the financial statements. 

20. There have been no events since the balance sheet date which require adjustment of or a disclosure in the 
financial statements or notes thereto.  Should further material events occur, which may necessitate revision of 
the figures included in the annual accounts or inclusion of a note thereto, we will advise you accordingly. 

21. The Council has satisfactory title to all assets and there are no liens or encumbrances on the Council’s 
assets. 

22. We recognise that we are responsible for ensuring that the statement of accounts as published on the website 
properly presents the financial information and your auditor's report and for the controls over, and security of, 
the website.  We also recognise that we are responsible for establishing and controlling the process for 
electronically distributing annual reports and other information. 

 

 

Page 127



 

Report to the Overview and Scrutiny Committee 24 

 

Appendix 3: Draft Management Representation 

letter (continued) 

23. We confirm that: 

• all retirement benefits and schemes, including UK, foreign, funded or unfunded, approved or 

unapproved, contractual or implicit have been identified and properly accounted for; 

• all settlements and curtailments have been identified and properly accounted for; 

• all events which relate to the determination of pension liabilities have been brought to the    actuary’s 

attention; 

• the actuarial assumptions underlying the valuation of the scheme liabilities accord with the Members’ 

best estimates of the future events that will affect the cost of retirement benefits and are consistent 

with our knowledge of the business; 

• the actuary’s calculations have been based on complete and up to date member data as far as 

appropriate regarding the adopted methodology; and 

• the amounts included in the financial statements derived from the work of the actuary are appropriate. 

24. All known material liabilities have been properly included in the annual accounts and all material contingent 
liabilities have been disclosed. 

25. Our annual report will be consistent with and include the financial statements as audited. 

We confirm that the above representations are made on the basis of adequate enquiries of management and staff 

(and where appropriate, inspection of evidence) sufficient to satisfy ourselves that we can properly make each of the 

above representations to you. 

Yours faithfully 

 

________________________________________ 

Corporate Director (S151), signed on behalf of Ryedale District Council 

Date _________________________ 

 

 

Page 128


	Agenda
	4 Annual Statement of Accounts and Annual Governance Statement
	Ryedale ISA260 Report 2012 FINAL


